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BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG
Unit 1901, 19th Floor,

Far East Finance Centre, No.16 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

BRANCH OFFICE

1505 Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road
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Hong Kong

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Half year results
Announced on 28 August 2020

Full year results
Announced on 29 March 2021

REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To be closed from Tuesday, 22 June 2021 to
Friday, 25 June 2021

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
To be held on Friday, 25 June 2021

DIVIDENDS
Interim : Nil
Final : Nil

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.renco.com.hk
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BUSINESS PROFILE
EHEIT

Renco Holdings Group Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in (a) the manufacture and sales of a broad
range of printed circuit boards (“PCBs”), (b) the carrying out
of treasury investments, including investment in securities and
other related activities, and (c) the rendering of financial services
including asset management, investment and other consultancy
related services.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the consolidated annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Despite the serious impact on all businesses globally during
2020 because of the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19" or “COVID-19 Outbreak”),
segment of the Group has gained a minor growth in
sales during the Year in comparison with 2019 due to the
continuous efforts of the management and their team. The
hardship encountered during the Year came mostly from the
strengthening of the Renminbi ("RMB”) in exchange for US
Dollar (“USD") as the billing of the PCBs sector are mostly in
USD. This has produced a tremendous loss in exchange, both
realized and unrealized in the ledgers of the manufacturing
segment. To solve this on-going problem, it is imperative that
more domestic business transaction setting in RMB is to be
sought in the coming future.

manufacturing

Another problem encountered lately by all PCBs manufacturers
globally is the very acute rise in prices of all major materials
starting late last year, such as laminates, prepreg, copper etc.
The market for raw materials has been manipulated and supplies
are in short, to the extent that some of these are currently
under an allocation basis, leading to loss in sales as delivery of
our products cannot be committed. This will be on-going for a
period and may only get worse if the United States continues to
adopt its current fiscal policy.
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Chairman’s Statement

TRERE

For treasury investment segment and financial service
segment, the financial results unfortunately continued to
suffer a significant loss during the Year caused by (i) the
provision of impairment losses on several overdue receivables
arising from the financial assistances provided by the Group
(“Overdue Financial Assistances”) and additional provision
of impairment losses on certain overdue receivables under the
litigation proceedings on Overdue Financial Assistances; (ii) the
substantial fair value losses arising from the adverse market
price movements in the listed securities held by the Group at
the fair value through its profit and loss; and (iii) the impairment
losses on goodwill arising from the funds deem acquired by the
Group in the treasury investment segment caused by the current
worldwide capital market fluctuations and the adverse impacts
of the COVID-19 Outbreak. Meanwhile, the regulated activities
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), such
as Type 1 (Dealing in Securities), Type 4 (Advising on Securities),
Type 6 (Advising on Corporate Finance) and Type 9 (Asset
Management) under section 127(1) of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “"SFO”), and
the restructuring business are facing difficulties in developing
their businesses under such complicated and challenging
situations during the Year.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Surrounded by the unstable investment environment and
financial market, the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the”Directors”) and the management of the Company
considered that the Group should concentrate more on
improving the risk management and control and compliance
management in relation to the inflow of sustainable returns
while exploring the opportunities in assets management
and other financial services related businesses, and also on
enhancing the recoverability of the transactions and maintaining
sufficient level of cash flow.
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Following the strategic upgrade and the implementation of new
strategic plan due to the changes in the major shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”), the Group has been
actively diversifying its business and will continue to better
utilize its available resources to develop and upgrade the
traditional manufacturing business in PCBs, to maintain the
treasury investment and financial service, and to explore the
scope of business for identifying new investment and business
development opportunities, including, but not limited to,
the broad application of artificial intelligence technology in
telecommunications, the construction of intelligent cities and
financial technology. Due to the COVID-19 Outbreak, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been implemented
across the PRC and Hong Kong since January 2020 which
caused temporary disruption in the Group’s business. Following
the development of the COVID-19 Outbreak and recent
regulations and policies released by the government of Hong
Kong, it is anticipated that the travelling arrangement between
the PRC and Hong Kong may be resumed and the sales and
operations of the manufacturing segment and financial services
segment of the Group may possibly be restored gradually in the
second half year of 2021.

As at the date of this report, the Group has acknowledged the
material effect on the financial results of the Group caused
by the COVID-19 Outbreak which may continue to hinder the
repayment of the debts from the borrowers of the loans and
issuers of the bonds in the coming years, resulting in additional
provision of impairment loss for the loan receivables and note
receivables. The Group will actively place utmost importance
on epidemic prevention and control, and closely monitor daily
operating management to reduce the adverse impacts on the
Group'’s operations and financial performance caused by the
epidemic.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

TRERE

As part of building up the new brand name and corporate
image of the Group, the Company announced on 29 July 2020
that the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda approved the
English name of the Company be changed from “HKBridge
Financial Holdings Limited” to “Renco Holdings Group Limited”
and the Chinese name "BRHEREBBRAF" be adopted
as the secondary name of the Company to replace its existing
secondary name in Chinese "BEBERMITRBERAT", with
effect from 23 June 2020. The Certificate of Registration of
Alteration of Name of Registered non-Hong Kong Company
was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on
20 July 2020 confirming the registration of the new English
name “Renco Holdings Group Limited” also known as “&4
FIEIREBABRAE" in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the "Companies Ordinance”). Following the adoption of the
aforesaid new names, the Company has also adopted a new
logo with effect from 29 July 2020. The Group’s management
believes that the adoption of the aforesaid new names and
new logo of the Company will enhance the identification
and recognition of its current business activities and future
development with a more clear and suitable corporate identity
and image, in alignment with the Group’s long-term strategic
targets.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to the management team and all staff for their
dedication and commitment to make valuable contributions to
the Group during the Year and to thank all our Shareholders,
business partners and customers for their continuous support.
With our combined efforts, we are looking forward to
overcoming all those challenges and to achieving the Group's

success in the years to come.

Li Yongjun
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of HK$277.58
million, representing an increase of approximately 32.85% as
compared with the total revenue of HK$208.94 million for the
corresponding year in 2019. Such an increase in revenue was
mainly due to the increase in sales volume from manufacturing
segment of the Group. The total revenue of the Group for the
Year represented by the manufacturing segment amounted to
HK$461.03 million (2019: HK$425.09 million). The loss for the
treasury investment segment was HK$183.45 million (2019:
HK$216.15 million).

The Group reported a loss before income tax of approximately
HK$1,036.99 million (2019: HK$602.60 million),
mainly attributable to the unrealised fair value losses on
financial investments held for trading through profit or loss of

which was

approximately HK$256.53 million and impairment losses on
trade receivables, other receivables, loan receivables and note
receivables of HK$308.12 million in total.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$1,029.97 million, as compared
with the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$658.62 million for the corresponding year
in 2019. Basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year was approximately 46.65 Hong Kong
cents, as compared with the basic loss per share of 29.83 Hong
Kong cents for the corresponding year in 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE S AT

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend any declaration of
final dividend payment for the Year (2019: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Manufacturing business

During the Year, the principal business of the Group’s
manufacturing segment remained unchanged and was involved
in the manufacture and sale of a wide range of PCBs.

Compared to the revenue for the year of 2019, the sales of
goods in the Group’s manufacturing segment increased by
approximately 8.45% from approximately HK$425.09 million in
2019 to approximately HK$461.03 million in 2020 whereas its
gross profit margin increased from 8.72% in 2019 to 9.45% in
2020.

Treasury investment
During the Year,
continued to make effective use of its available financial
resources in monitoring and making investment/disposal on a
wide variety of financial assets including investments in listed
equity securities, and the provision of
financial assistance to independent third parties.

the Group's treasury investment team

investments in funds,

For the Year, the Group’s treasury investment segment recorded
a loss of approximately HK$926.80 million (2019: HK$442.80
million) in the form of realised and unrealised fair value losses
and interest income. The substantial fair value losses arising
from the adverse market price changes of listed securities held
by the Group were mainly due to the downturn of the Hong
Kong stock market and the downward share price performance
of the individual listed securities held during the Year. The
impairment losses were arisen as a result of the increase in
credit-impaired receivables of the treasury investment segment.
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Financial service

During the Year, Renco Investments Limited (formerly known
as “"Hong Kong Bridge Investments Limited”) ("Renco
Investments”) has the licenses to conduct Type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) and Renco
Capital Partners Limited (formerly known as “Hong Kong Bridge
Capital Partners Limited) (“Renco Capital”) held the licenses
to conduct Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) and Type 6 (Advising
on Corporate Finance) regulated activities under section
127(1) of the SFO respectively. Renco Investments and Renco
Capital, which are both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, actively participated in asset management,
consultancy services, corporate solution services and debt, asset
and shareholding restructuring business during the last three
years.

Due to severe business competition and for cost-saving purpose,
the Board and the management committee of the Group had
determined to submit a request to cease carrying on Renco
Capital’s businesses in Type 1 (Dealing in Securities) and Type 6
(Advising on Corporate Finance) regulated activities pursuant to
section 195(1)(d) of the SFO. Subsequent to such submission,
the Group received a confirmation letter dated 25 February
2021 from the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"),
stating that the licences of Renco Capital for Type 1 (Dealing in
Securities) and Type 6 (Advising on Corporate Finance) regulated
activities were revoked with effect from 24 February 2021.

Asset management

During the Year, the Group continued to act as a general
partner of several offshore private funds launched by the Group
which were related to investments under the concept of One
Belt One Road (the "OBOR"). Besides, the Group has set up
several offshore private funds (the “HKBridge Funds”) for
investments in listed equity security investments and unlisted
debt investments.

Due to the global macroeconomic downturn, some limited
partners of several offshore private funds had withdrawn their
contribution of capital, and the general partners had been
carrying out a series of restructuring schemes for the relevant
offshore private funds. As at the date of this report, out of the
total of 12 investment funds established by the Group, 8 were
related to the OBOR and 4 were related to the HKBridge Funds.
The aggregated amount of assets under management was
approximately HK$2.62 billion.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE S AT

The Group gradually started to build up its credential in the
asset management business and established a solid foundation
for further development in the years to come. Up to 31
December 2020, the Group made a total sum of contributions
of approximately HK$1.38 billion (31 December 2019: HK$1.56
billion) to some of the above funds.

Investment, consultancy and corporation solution
services

For investment, consultancy and corporation solution services,
the Group built up a professional team with investment banking
and corporate finance experience and exposure in order to
improve the efficiency and quality of services.

During the Year, the Group did not engage in any consultancy
and corporate solution services due to the current capital market
fluctuations and the adverse impacts of the COVID-19 Outbreak.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operations through a
combination of internally generated cash flows, shareholders’
equity and borrowings from banks and the independent third
parties.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total equity of
approximately HK$1,189.19 million (31 December 2019:
HK$2,178.78 million) and net debts (trade payables,
payables and accruals, loan from a related party, loans from
Directors, and borrowings less bank balances and deposits)
of approximately HK$1,436.74 million (31 December 2019:
HK$2,058.60 million), representing a gearing ratio, defined
as net debts over total equity plus net debts, of 54.71% (31
December 2019: 48.52%).

other
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The Group's net current assets of approximately HK$880.40
million (31 December 2019: HK$1,851.53 million) consisted
of current assets of approximately HK$1,972.10 million (31
December 2019: HK$3,493.48 million) and current liabilities
of approximately HK$1,091.70 million (31 December 2019:
HK$1,641.95 million), representing a current ratio of 1.81 (31
December 2019: 2.13).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current assets consisted
of approximately HK$28.46 million (31 December 2019:
HK$19.45 million) held as bank balances and deposits, which
were mainly denominated in HK$, US$ and RMB.

The Group’s manufacturing segment’s current assets also
consisted of approximately HK$123.86 million (31 December
2019: HK$109.09 million) held as trade receivables. Debtors
turnover days was 98 days (31 December 2019: 94 days).

The Group’s inventories decreased from approximately
HK$56.34 million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$55.22 million as at 31 December 2020. Inventory turnover
days in the Group’s manufacturing segment was 48 days (31
December 2019: 53 days). Trade payables increased from
approximately HK$113.32 million as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$137.59 million as at 31 December 2020.
Creditors turnover days was approximately 121 days (31
December 2019: 107 days).

Interest-bearing Borrowings

The bank loans were secured by certain buildings and right-
of-use assets related to leasehold land, corporate guarantee of
the Company and personal guarantee of a Director during the
Year. As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of approximately
HK$131.86 million (31 December 2019: HK$139.37 million)
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.85% to 4.35% per
annum (31 December 2019: 2.58% to 4.35% per annum).
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As at 31 December 2020, other loan obtained from an associate
amounting to approximately HK$177.94 million was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable within the next 4 years. The
remaining balance of other loans was secured by equity interests
in certain subsidiaries and an associate of the Group, trade
and loan receivables and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, bearing interest at a rate for the range of 3% to
8% per annum (31 December 2019: 5% to 8% per annum),
of which HK$200.00 million and HK$478.19 million were
repayable within the next twelve months and next 2 to 3 years
respectively.

Apart from the secured borrowings described above, there
were loans advanced by Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok”),
an executive Director, of HK$119.46 million at an effective
interest rate of 7% per annum (2019: 7% per annum) which
are repayable on demand. Furthermore, there was another loan
advanced by Mr. Liu Tingan (“Mr. Liu”), who resigned as an
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company
on 6 April 2020, for an amount of HK$2.80 million which is
non-interest bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment. The
financial assistances provided by Mr. Cheok and Mr. Liu were
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of the Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
However, they are fully exempted from the reporting,
announcement, and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules because they are
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and are not
secured by the assets of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Subscription of Interest in Funds

Set out below are the particulars of the Group’s major unlisted
fund investments:

(a) Partners Special Opportunities Fund | (the “Partners

Fund”)

On 25 January 2017, the Group contributed HK$200.00
million into the Partners Fund. The Partners Fund is
managed by Grand Highlight Investments Limited (“Grand
Highlight”) (whereas Partners Investment Management
Limited tendered its resignation as the manager of the
Partners Fund with effect from 4 September 2019), with
the objective of generating long term capital appreciation
for its investors. The subscription of the Partners Fund
constituted a disclosable transaction under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules and further details of which were set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 25 January 2017
and 22 October 2019 respectively.

According to the placing memorandum of the Partners
Fund, the investment objective of the Partners Fund is to
generate long term capital appreciation for its shareholders
and the Partners Fund will seek to achieve its investment
objective primarily by investing in debt securities or equity
securities of both private and listed companies in Hong
Kong or elsewhere or in other financial instruments as the
investment adviser(s) may determine.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Partners Fund and the extensive experience and skills of
the directors of the Partners Fund and the manager, the
Board believes that the subscription of the Partners Fund
will enable the Group to capture investment opportunities
and further diversify the Group’s investment portfolio.
The subscription is also in alignment with the Group’s
expansion plan on carrying out financial investments
by investing in high-yield equity and debt products to
maximise the long-term investment return of the Group.
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In August 2019, the Group obtained joint control of
the Partners Fund through the Group’s ownership of
50% equity interest in Grand Highlight. Accordingly, the
Partners Fund has been re-classified under “Investments
in joint ventures” in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements since then. The underlying investment in the
Partners Fund is holding a bond issued by an independent
third party of the Group (the “Bond Issuer”), the maturity
date of which fell on 20 December 2020. Grand Highlight,
the general partner of the Partners Fund, has approached
the Bond Issuer to attempt to collect back the investment
or to discuss on the extension arrangement for the bond.
As at the date of this report, both parties were still
negotiating certain terms but had not reached consensus
on any arrangement yet.

In the opinion of the management of the Group, the
Group, or together with Grand Highlight, may conduct
debt restructuring arrangement for the underlying
investment of the Partners Fund, and/or even to proceed
with litigation proceedings against the Bond Issuer if there
is no substantial progress in the coming months. Further
announcement(s) regarding any significant developments
on the investment in the Partners Fund will be published as
and when appropriate.

Pursuant to the Deed of Undertakings and relevant
extension agreement executed on 22 April 2017 between
the Bond Issuer and the Group, the Bond Issuer of the
partners Fund and its related person as the guarantor
should have paid the Group an extra interest of 8% (Since
July 2019: 2%) per annum on the Group’s contribution to
the Partners Fund on or before 20 December 2020. The
outstanding amount of receivables was recorded in the
trade receivables in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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(b)

Since the current financial performance and the status of
the business operations of the Bond Issuer for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was much worse than previous
year, no settlement was received during the Year and
the Bond Issuer was unable to meet the repayment plan.
Default payment by the Bond Issuer caused significant
increase in credit risk on the above trade receivable
compared to last year and it was considered credit-
impaired under HKFRS 9 as at 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, the management of the Group provided
additional significant impairment loss of HK$28.20 million
(2019: HK$16.71 million) for the trade receivable from the
Bond lIssuer and impairment loss on the bond receivable
held by the Partners Fund of HK$125.98 million of which
HK$62.32 million was recorded by the Group as share of
loss of the joint ventures during the Year. The carrying
amount of the trade receivable as at 31 December 2020
was approximately HK$15.49 million (31 December 2019:
HK$39.00 million).

Huarong International Fortune Innovation LP (the
“Huarong Fund”)

On 10 April 2017, the Group contributed HK$340.00
million in the Huarong Fund as one of the limited partners.
The Huarong Fund is managed by Huarong International
Capital Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The net proceeds
raised by the Huarong Fund were used to acquire not
more than HK$2.23 billion of shares in Fullshare Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 607), and such other assets
with mutual consent by all limited partners of the Huarong
Fund. The contributions made to the Huarong Fund
constituted a disclosable transaction under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules and further details of which were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 23 December
2016, 8 December 2017, 11 December 2017, 26 March
2018, 3 July 2018, 2 October 2018, 3 January 2019, 16
August 2019 and 22 October 2019 respectively.

(b)
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Pursuant to a share charge agreement entered into on 22
March 2017 with two chargers which are independent
third parties of the Group, 69,120,000 shares in Zall Smart
Commerce Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 2098) (the
“Zall Shares”) were provided in favour of the Group's
subscription of interest in the Huarong Fund as security
for the full and punctual performance of all the secured
liabilities. The Group recognised the fair value of Zall
Shares of HK$293.00 million as derivative financial asset
as at 31 December 2018 and disposed of all Zall Shares in
2019.

As at 31 December 2020, with reference to the substantial
fair value losses arising from the adverse market price
changes of the listed securities held by the Huarong Fund,
the fair value of the investment in the Huarong Fund was
zero (31 December 2019: zero) if the distribution of the
net sale proceeds of the Huarong Fund was calculated.

As at the date of this report, the Group is undergoing
litigation proceedings in connection with the Huarong
Fund. Due to the cross-border delivery of the writ of
summons being interrupted by the pandemic, the aforesaid
litigation was severely postponed. The Group together
with other plaintiffs have filed and served the statement
of claim to the High Court on 9 March 2021. Further
announcement(s) regarding any significant developments
on the litigation matters will be published as and when
appropriate.

Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road Natural
Resource Fund LP (the “Natural Resource Fund”)

On 14 May 2017 and 12 March 2018, the Group
contributed HK$220.00 million and HK$375.00 million
respectively in the Natural Resource Fund, while the Group
also acted as the general partner of the Natural Resource
Fund, as the only second-tier limited partner. Further
details of the Natural Resource Fund were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 14 May 2017, 12 March
2018 and 22 October 2019 respectively.
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According to the Amended and Restated Limited
Partnership Agreement of the Natural Resource Fund,
the primary purpose of the Natural Resource Fund is
to achieve long-term capital appreciation, principally
through investing in equity, equity-related investments,
fixed income securities, debt instruments and loans in
connection with energy, mining or agricultural businesses,
or infrastructure relating to any of the foregoing.

On 16 May 2019, following the withdrawal of the first-tier
limited partner, the Group has become the general partner
and the only limited partner in the Natural Resource Fund.
According to the accounting policy of the Group, the
investment in the Natural Resource Fund was derecognized
from the financial assets at FVTPL, and the assets, liabilities
and returns of the Natural Resource Fund have been
consolidated into the Group's financial statements since
then.

At the date when the Group became the only limited
partner (hence being deemed to obtain control) of the
Natural Resource Fund, the Natural Resource Fund (i)
had a loan receivable from an independent third party of
HK$220.00 million with interest rate of 6% per annum;
and (ii) held a bond with principal amount of HK$375.00
million issued by an independent third party, which is
interest-bearing at 10% per annum and whose maturity
date fell on 12 September 2020 (“Bond 1”). The carrying
amount of Bond | was recorded as note receivable of
approximately HK$412.00 million in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2019.
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Facing the adverse impacts brought by the current
worldwide capital market fluctuations and the COVID-19
Outbreak, the Group has withdrawn the contribution from
the Natural Resource Fund since 29 May 2020 and received
a distribution in kind of the loan receivable with carrying
amount of HK$231.60 million in total in order to lower the
investment risk .

On 29 May 2020, in order to enhance the investment
quality of the fund, the general partner and manager of
the Natural Resource Fund together with that of the Fixed
Income Fund (as defined below) have decided to adjust
the investment strategies and entered into a series of
restructuring and debt assignment agreements with several
funds (the “OBOR Funds Restructuring”). Pursuant to
the restructuring and debt assignment agreements, each
of the Natural Resource Fund and the Fixed Income Fund
acquired 50% interest of Hong Kong Bridge High-tech
Investment Fund, L.P. (the “"High-Tech Investment Fund”)
and HKBridge Special Situation Fund, L.P. (the “Special
Situation Fund”) respectively; and the Natural Resource
Fund acquired 100% interest of Hong Kong Bridge One
Belt One road M&A Fund, L.P. (the "M&A Fund”), by
assigning Bond | and Bond Il (as defined in section (d)
below) to the original limited partners of the High-tech
Investment Fund, the Special Situation Fund and the M&A
Fund and became the new limited partners of these funds.
The OBOR Funds Restructuring took retroactive effect on 1
January 2020.

Details of the investments of the M&A Fund and the High-
Tech Investment Fund are set out in sections headed “(e)
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road M&A Fund LP” and
“(f) Hong Kong Bridge High-Tech Investment Fund LP”
below respectively.
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(d)

Upon the completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
each of the capital of the High-tech Investment Fund and
the Special Situation Fund has contributed as to 50% by
the Natural Resource Fund and 50% by the Fixed Income
Fund respectively since 1 January 2020. Subsequently,
the Fixed Income Fund transferred its 50% interest in the
Special Situation Fund to the Natural Resource Fund with
effect from 17 July 2020. The Natural Resource Fund has
become the only limited partner of the Special Situation
Fund since then.

With reference to the investment objectives of the Natural
Resource Fund, the general partner continues to look for a
new first-tier limited partner to expand the fund investing
activities. The Board considers that all the subscriptions of
interests in the Natural Resource Fund were beneficial to
the Group and the Shareholders as a whole, by generating
the returns from medium to long term investments and
to enhance the experience of assets management in the
coming years.

As at the date of this Report, the Natural Resources Fund
holds of 100% interest of the M&A Fund and the Special
Situation Fund respectively as the only Limited partner of
each fund.

Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road Fixed Income
Fund LP (the “Fixed Income Fund”)

On 14 May 2017 and 12 March 2018, the Group
contributed HK$220.00 million and HK$375.00 million
respectively to the Fixed Income Fund, while the Group
also acted as the general partner of the Fixed Income
Fund, as the second-tier limited partners. Further details
of the Fixed Income Fund were set out in the Company'’s
announcements dated 14 May 2017, 12 March 2018 and
22 October 2019 respectively.

According to the Amended and Restated Limited
Partnership Agreement of the Fixed Income Fund, the
primary purpose of the Fixed Income Fund is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation, principally through
investing in fixed income securities, debt instruments
and loans, including but without limitation the loans,
convertible bonds, fixed income securities, money market
and convertible securities.

(d)
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On 16 May 2019, following the withdrawal of the first-
tier limited partner, the Group has become the general
partner and the only limited partner in the Fixed Income
Fund. According to the accounting policy of the Group,
the investment in the Fixed Income Fund was derecognized
from the financial assets at FVTPL, and the assets,
liabilities and returns of the Fixed Income Fund have been
consolidated into the Group's financial statements since
then.

At the date when the Group became the only limited
partner (hence being deemed to obtain control) of the
Fixed Income Fund, the Fixed Income Fund (i) had a loan
receivable from an independent third party of HK$220.00
million with interest rate of 6% per annum; and (ii) held a
bond with principal amount of HK$375.00 million issued
by an independent third party, which is interest-bearing
at 10% per annum and whose maturity date fell on 12
September 2020 (“Bond 11”). The carrying amount of
Bond Il was recorded as note receivables of approximately
HK$409.00 million in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

Facing from the adverse impacts brought by the current
worldwide capital market fluctuations and the COVID-19
Outbreak, the Group has withdrawn the contribution from
the Fixed Income Fund to the extent of HK$220.00 million
on 29 May 2020 in order to lower the investment risk and
received a distribution in kind of the loan receivable with
carrying amount of HK$230.73 million.

On 29 May 2020, in order to enhance the quality of the
investments, the general partner and manager of the
Fixed Income Fund have decided to adjust the investment
strategies and underwent the OBOR Funds Restructuring.

Details of the OBOR Funds Restructuring are set out in
section headed “(c) Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road
Natural Resource Fund LP” above.

Subsequently, the Natural Resource Fund transferred its
50% interest in the High-tech Investment Fund to the Fixed
Income Fund with effect from 17 July 2020. The Fixed
Income Fund has become the only limited partner of the
High-tech Investment Fund since then.
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(e)

With reference to the investment objectives of the Fixed
Income Fund, the general partner continues to look for a
new first-tier limited partner to expand the fund investing
activities. The Board considers that all the subscriptions of
interests in the Fixed Income Fund were beneficial to the
Group and the Shareholders as a whole, by generating
the returns from medium to long term investments and
to enhance the experience of assets management in the
coming years.

As at the date of this Report, the Fixed Income Fund holds
of 100% interest of the High-Tech Investment Fund as the
only Limited partner.

Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road M&A Fund LP
(the “"M&A Fund”)

At the date when the Group became the only limited
partner (hence being deemed to obtain control) of the
M&A Fund, the M&A Fund had a loan receivable from an
independent third party of HK$200.00 million which is
interest-bearing at 5% per annum and a further interest-
free financing amount of approximately HK$18.00 million
to the same borrower (the "Borrower”). The maturity
dates of these loans were extended to 31 December 2021
during the year (the “Loan 1”). The Loan | was secured by
the Borrower’s interest in certain bonds issued by China
Resources and Transportation Group Limited (the “CRTG"),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock
Code: 269).

(e)
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With reference to the investment objectives of the
M&A Fund, the purpose of the activities is primarily
to achieve long-term capital appreciation, principally
through investing in equity or equity-related investments
or fixed income debt investment or convertible bonds in
overseas energy resources, agriculture, hight-tech industry,
advanced manufacturing and service industries and/or
other investments in connection with the foregoing or the
Belt and Road Initiative of the PRC at the discretion of the
general partner.

Upon the completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the Natural Resource Fund has become the only second-
tier limited partner of the M&A Fund. Under such
circumstances, and according to the accounting policy of
the Group, since the Group was the general partner and
the only second-tier limited partner of the M&A Fund,
its assets (including the Loan | which is recorded as loan
receivables), liabilities and returns have been consolidated
into the Group's financial statements since then.

The M&A Fund had not received the outstanding amounts
from the Borrower during the Year as the Borrower was
still suffering from the adverse impacts brought by the
COVID-19 Outbreak. The recoverable value of the bonds
issued by CRTG as the security decreased significantly
due to the poor financial performance of CRTG according
to the financial statements in the interim report 2020 of
CRTG published on 29 December 2020. Having considered
the worsened situation, the general partner and the
manager of the M&A Fund decided to provide impairment
loss of HK$65.34 million (2019: HK$nil) for the Loan | for
the Year according to the HKFRS 9. The carrying value of
the Loan | amounted to approximately HK$186.00 million
as at 31 December 2020.
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(7)

Hong Kong Bridge High-Tech Investment Fund LP (the
“High-Tech Investment Fund”)

The High-Tech Investment Fund entered into the share
sale and purchase agreement with four independent third
parties of the Group to acquire of 64,148,063 shares of
the SuperRobotics Shares Batch 3 (as defined below).
Details of the subscription of interest in the High-Tech
Investment Fund were set out in the subject headed
“Subscription of Listed Securities” under the section
headed “Management discussion and Analysis” of this
report.

On 12 September 2017, the High-Tech Investment Fund as
lender and the Borrower entered into the loan agreement
to lend the total principal amount of HK$80.00 million
with the interest of 5% per annum and further interest-
free financing amount of approximately HK$4.15 million
and the expiry dates of the loans were extended to 31
December 2021 (the “Loan II”). The Loan Il was secured
by the Borrower’s interest in certain bonds issued by the
CRTG.

With reference to the investment objectives of the High-
Tech Investment Fund, the purpose of the activities is
primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity, equity-related
investments or equivalent, fixed income securities, debt
securities and loans or convertible bonds in connection
with hi-tech industries and/or other investments in
connection with the foregoing as determined by the
general partner’'s discretion, temporary investments and
entering into options, futures and derivatives contracts for
the purpose of hedging the equity, currency and interest
rate exposure of investing in the portfolio companies.

Upon the completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring, the
Fixed Income Fund has become the only limited partner of
the High-Tech Investment Fund. Under such circumstances
and according to the accounting policy of the Group, the
subscription of interest in the High-Tech Investment Fund,
the assets (including the Loan Il which are recorded as
loan receivables), liabilities and returns of the High-Tech
Investment Fund have been consolidated into the Group's
financial statements since then.

(7)
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The High-Tech Investment Fund had not received the
outstanding amounts from the Borrower during the
Year. Having considered the worsened situation and the
aforesaid reasons, the general partner and the manager
of the High-Tech Investment Fund decided to provide
impairment loss of HK$25.32 million (2019: HK$Nil) for the
Loan Il for the Year according to the HKFRS 9. The carrying
value of the Loan Il amounted to approximately HK$72.00
million as at 31 December 2020.

Hong Kong Bridge Landmark Investment Fund LP (the
“Landmark Fund”)

The capital of the Landmark Fund was contributed HK$220
million by the Group as the only second-tier limited partner
since 27 December 2017. The Landmark Fund subscribed
a bond issued by the Borrower of the total principal
amount of HK$200.00 million with an interest rate of 5%
per annum, together with further interest-free financing
amount of approximately HK$18.00 million on the same
date (the “Bond IIl”). The Bond Il was secured by the
Borrower's interest in certain bonds of HK$100.00 million
issued by the CRTG and the expiry date of the Bond Il
was extended to 31 December 2021. The subscription of
interest in Landmark Fund did not constitute a disclosable
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules as all
the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the transaction contemplated
under the subscription are less than 5% as at the date of
subscription.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Landmark Fund, the purpose of the activities is primarily
to achieve long-term capital appreciation, principally
through investing in convertible debts, equity securities,
equity-related securities, debt securities, loans as well as
engaging in bridge and mezzanine financing and entering
into repurchase agreements or any other investment in
connection with the foregoing of the general partner’s
discretion.

Since the Group was the general partner and the only
second-tier limited partner of the Landmark Fund, its
assets, liabilities and returns have been consolidated into
the Group’s financial statements.
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The Landmark Fund had not received the outstanding
amounts due from the Borrower during the Year. After
having considered the worsened situation and the
aforesaid reasons, the general partner and the manager
of the Landmark Fund decided to provide additional
impairment loss of HK$41.02 million (2019: HK$23.61
million) for the Bond Il according to the HKFRS 9. The
carrying value of the Bond Ill amounted to approximately
HK$185.00 million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: HK$216.00 million).

HKBridge Absolute Return Fund LP (the “Absolute
Return Fund”)

The Absolute Return Fund entered into the share sale and
purchase agreement with four independent third parties
of the Group to acquire net of 24,397,946 shares of the
SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2 (as defined below). Details
of the subscription of interest in the Absolute Return Fund
were set out in the section headed “Subscription of Listed
Securities” of the Management discussion and Analysis of
this report.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Absolute Return Fund, the purpose of the activities
is primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity securities of
portfolio companies in the industry of inflight wireless
network engineering and services with their main business
in Hong Kong, temporary investments and entering into
options, futures and derivatives contracts for the purpose
of hedging the equity, currency and interest rate exposure
of investing in the portfolio investment.

(h)
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Upon the completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the Group held 100% (2019: 75%) interest in Absolute
Return Fund. The unrealised fair value loss of the
equity investments of the Absolute Return Fund were
consolidated to the Group in both years.

Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road Infrastructure
Investment Fund Il LP (the “Infrastructure Fund IIl”)
The capital of the Infrastructure Fund Il had been
contributed by the Group for HK$150.00 million as the
only second-tier limited partner since 12 March 2018.
The Infrastructure Fund Il subscribed a bond issued by an
independent third party to the Group, of the total principal
amount of HK$150.00 million with an interest rate of
10% per annum (the “Bond IV") on the same date.
Whereas the expiry date of the subscription was extended
to 12 September 2020. The subscription of interest in
the Infrastructure Fund Ill did not constitute a disclosable
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules as all
the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the transaction contemplated
under the subscription are less than 5% at the date of
subscription.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Infrastructure Fund Ill, the purpose of the activities is
primarily to achieve long-term capital appreciation,
principally through investing in equity, equity-related
investments, fixed income securities, debt securities or
loans in connection with road, railway, port, sea and
inner river transportation, airplane, energy, electricity,
undersea power cable, fiber, telecommunication or
information technology industries or any other investments
in connection with the foregoing at the general partner’s
discretion.
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According to the accounting policy of the Group, the assets,
liabilities and returns of the Infrastructure Fund Ill have been
consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

Upon the completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring, the
Group received the distribution in kind of subscription of
Bond IV and assigned it to offset the borrowings of the Group
in 2020. The carrying value of the Bond IV amounted to
approximately HK$165.87 million as at 31 December 2019. The
Group remained as the only second-tier limited partner of the
Infrastructure Fund Il with contribution amount of HK$1 as at
31 December 2020.

Goodwill arising from the OBOR Funds Restructuring

Pursuant to the OBOR Funds Restructuring, all parties agreed
to offset the value of distribution in kinds (being the original
investment amount of the underlying assets) with original
amount of capital contribution to the respective funds
regardless of the changes in value of the underlying net assets
of the funds in the past years. In particular, the underlying assets
of High-Tech Investment Fund being the equity investments in
SuperRobotics Shares (as defined below) has suffered significant
fair value losses since they were acquired by the High-Tech
Investment Fund few years ago. This result in the fair value of
the net assets/liabilities of the funds acquired by the Group
on 1 January 2020 being smaller than the fair value of the
consideration transferred (i.e. the fair value of receivables
assigned to the original limited partners of the respective funds).
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The goodwill arising from the OBOR Funds Restructuring was
allocated to the respective funds, each of which represents
a cash-generating unit, for impairment testing. At 1 January
2020, i.e. the effective date of the OBOR Funds Restructuring,
the recoverable amounts of the funds were determined with
reference to the carrying value of their net identifiable assets/
liabilities with major assets being investments in listed shares
and loan receivables. As a result, an aggregate impairment loss
on goodwill of HK$331.00 million was recognised during the
Year.

Subscription of Listed Securities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held financial assets at
FVTPL of approximately HK$177.40 million (31 December
2019: HK$333.86 million) of which the club debenture of
HK$4.27 million was classified as non-current assets and the
listed equity investments of HK$173.13 million (31 December
2019: HK$329.59 million) was classified as current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.
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Listed below are the particulars of the Group's major listed TXH#IIAEBZFTEEFTRERE S
equity investment:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_F-FF+-A=+-HLEFE

Approximate
percentage of

Cost/ investments
Approximate fair value Market attributable
percentage as at prices as at to the
Number of of interest 1 January Additions/ 31 December Group's total Dividend Disposal Fair value
Name of investees Notes shares held 2020 (transfer) 2020 Market value assets received gain/(loss) gain/(loss)
RIBZTH RIBZEE
FiERREE —-A-H +ZB RES
‘iz 2B%E/ =+-8 rE@EE HEKE ATERE
BRREXTEE st BRGABE  BHESL AFE 1§ e mE REZEY BlkRE (&%) (58
(HK$'000) (HK$'000) (HKS) (HK$000) (HK$000) (HK$000) (HK$000)
(F#7) (F#7) (#7) (F#7) (F#7) (Fi#&7m) (F#7)
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 8176)
(the "SuperRobotics Shares Batch 1") (a) 41,666,666 8.23% 120,833 - 0.900 37,500 1.27% N/A N/A (83,333)
BABEERERAR (EBHTAMROMS 8176)
(IE—HBABERR) (a) 41,666,666 8.23% 120,833 - 0.900 37,500 1.27% ER TER (83,333)
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 8176)
(the “SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2") ) 64,148,063 12.67% 186,029 - 0.900 57,733 1.96% N/A N/A (128,296)
BABEERBRAD (BFEMRARM KR 8176)
(MEZHBABERR) ) 64,148,063 12.67% 186,029 - 0.900 57,733 1.96% TBA TBA (128,296)
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 8176)
(the "SuperRobotics Shares Batch 3") () 24,397,946 4.82% - 70,754 0.900 21,958 0.74% N/A N/A (48,796)
BABEERERAR (EBHTAMROML 8176)
(IE=HBABERR) (© 24,397,946 4.82% - 70,754 0.900 21,958 0.74% ER TER (48,796)
Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 2277)
(the "Huarong Investment”) (d) 84,170,000 4.63% 22,727 (35,772) N/A - N/A N/A N/A 13,045
ERRERHERAR
(BRBTARMASE  2277) ((ERERE) (a) 84,170,000 4.63% 22,727 (35,772) TEH - TEA TEA TERA 13,045
Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 993)
(the "Huarong Financial") (a) 237,359,400 2.73% - 35,772 0.162 38,452 1.30% N/A N/A 2,680
ZRERERERERAD
(ERBHTAMBARE  993) (MEREE) (@) 237,359,400 2.73% - 35,772 0.162 38,452 1.30% TER @R 2,680
Bank of Gansu Co., Ltd.
(HKSE Stock Code: 2139)
(the “Bank of Gansu") (e) 11,506,000 0.45% - 29,316 1.520 17,490 0.59% N/A N/A (11,826)
HERTRHBRAD
(BEBHRFBAME : 2139) (HEET) (e 11,506,000 0.45% - 29,316 1.520 17,490 0.59% TERA TBA (11,826)
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On 23 November 2016, the Group agreed to enter into
a placing letter with a placing agent, pursuant to which,
among others, the Group (i) subscribed for a total number
of 35,416,666 shares (the “SuperRobotics Shares”) in
SuperRobotics Holdings Limited (“SuperRobotics”) at a
subscription price of HK$4.80 per share, whose shares
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock
Code: 8176); and (ii) acquired 6,250,000 SuperRobotics
Shares from New Cove Limited (a then substantial
shareholder of SuperRobotics) at a purchase price of
HK$4.80 per share. On 5 December and 14 December
2016, the above two transactions were completed
respectively, and a total consideration of approximately
HK$200.00 million (exclusive of stamp duty, trading fees,
transaction levies and brokerage) was paid out by the
Group. Further details of the subscription and acquisition
of SuperRobotics Shares Batch 1 were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 November 2016.

The principal activities of SuperRobotics are the provision
of engineering products and related services and the sales
of beauty products and provision of therapy services.

The Board noted that the robust development of the
robotic industry in the PRC represents an enormous
potential for market expansion for SuperRobotics in the
future. The construction of intelligent cities has been in
full swing based upon the artificial intelligent technology.
The wide application of intelligent robotics covers from
police use to various aspects such as services and security.
The investment team of the Group considered that
the investment in SuperRobotics would be expected to
generate the returns to the Group after the realization
and the large-scale expansion of the use of relevant
technologies in the future.
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(b) SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2

On 6 December 2019, the Group entered into a deed of
adherence and assignment, pursuant to which the Group
acquired the interest of 75% in the Absolute Return Fund
at the consideration of HK$160.00 million to become one
of the limited partners, while the Group also acted as
the general partner and manager of the Absolute Return
Fund. The fair value of SuperRobotics Shares Batch 2,
being the asset/portfolio investment under the Absolute
Return Fund, as at the date of acquisition amounted to
HK$186.03 million. Further details of the Absolute Return
Fund were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
6 December 2019. The Absolute Return Fund has become
an indirect subsidiary of the Group since 6 December 2019
according to the Group’s accounting policy. Pursuant to
the OBOR Funds Restructuring, the Group further acquired
25% interest of the Absolute Return Fund during the
year and become the only limited partner of the Absolute
Return Fund.

The Absolute Return Fund’s investment objective is to
generate returns by investing all or substantially all of its
assets in the equity securities of the portfolio companies
in the industry of in-flight wireless network engineering
and services as their main business in Hong Kong (the
“Portfolio Investment 1”). The Absolute Return Fund
may choose to invest all or substantially all of its assets
in a single investment. It is therefore possible that the
underlying investments of the Portfolio Investment | will be
concentrated.

With reference to the investment objectives of the
Absolute Return Fund, the Absolute Return Fund
currently holds the Portfolio Investment | in relation to
the broad application of artificial intelligence technology
in telecommunications and the construction of intelligent
cities. The general partner and manager are continuing to
research on the industry of high and new technology to
expand the fund investing activities. The Board considers
that the subscription of interests in the Absolute Return
Fund was beneficial to the Group and the Shareholders as
a whole, by generating the returns from the investments
and to enhance the experience of assets management in
the coming years.
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On 29 May 2020, the Natural Resource Fund, the Fixed
Income Fund and the two limited partners of the High-
tech Investment Fund entered into the OBOR Funds
Restructuring, pursuant to which each of the Natural
Resource Fund and the Fixed Income Fund acquired the
interest of 50% of the High-tech Investment Fund by
assigning their note receivables to the previous limited
partners respectively to become the new limited partners,
while the Group also acted as the general partner and
manager of the High-tech Investment Fund. The series
of restructuring and debt assignment agreements
became effective on 1 January 2020. The fair value of
SuperRobotics Shares Batch 3, being the asset/portfolio
investment under the High-tech Investment Fund, as at the
date of acquisitions amounted to HK$70.75 million. The
High-tech Investment Fund has become an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company since 1 January 2020
according to the Group's accounting policy.

The High-tech Investment Fund’s investment objective is to
generate high risk-adjusted returns by primarily investing
in equity, equity-related investments, fixed income
securities, debt securities and loans or convertible bonds
in connection with hi-tech industries in Hong Kong (the
“Portfolio Investment I1").

With reference to the investment objectives of the
High-tech Investment Fund, the High-tech Investment
Fund currently invests in the debt equity and holds the
Portfolio Investment Il in relation to the broad application
of artificial intelligence technology in the industry of
telecommunications and the construction of intelligent
cities. The general partner and manager of the High-
tech Investment Fund are continuing to research on the
industry of high and new technology to expand the
fund investing activities. The Board considers that the
subscription of interests in the High-tech Investment Fund
was beneficial to the Group and the Shareholders as a
whole, by generating the returns from the investments and
to enhance the experience of assets management in the
coming years.
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(d) Huarong Investment and Huarong Financial

On 8 December 2017, the Group acquired a total number
of 88,000,000 shares (the “"Huarong Investment
Shares”) in Huarong Investment Stock Corporation Limited
(“Huarong Investment”) (whose shares were then listed
on the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 2277)) through
a broker from an independent third party at the price of
HK$0.90 per share. The total consideration of HK$79.20
million for the acquisition of Huarong Investment Shares
was financed by the Group’s net proceeds received from
the exercise of the put option by the Group during 2017.
On 5 February 2018 and 6 February 2018, the Group
further acquired a total of 2,600,000 Huarong Investment
Shares at the average price of HK$1.32 per share through
a broker from an independent third party. Further details
of the acquisition of Huarong Investment Shares in 2017
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8
December 2017.

The principal activities of Huarong Investment are direct
investments, foundation and substructure construction
services, financial services and others.

Due to the unexpected continuing downturn in the share
price performance of Huarong Investment, the Group's
investment team decided to minimise the continuing
unrealised losses by completing the disposal of the total
number of 6,430,000 Huarong Investment Shares through
a broker at the total consideration of approximately
HK$3.35 million during the year of 2018.

The Huarong Investment together with Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited (“Huarong
Financial”) (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 993)) published the joint
announcements dated 11 November 2020 to disclose
that the privatization scheme became effective on 10
November 2020 and the withdrawal of the listing of
Huarong Investment Shares on the Stock Exchange became
effective on 12 November 2020 after the trading hours.
Upon the completion of the privatization scheme, the
balance of 84,170,000 Huarong Investment Shares have
been converted into a total of 237,359,400 shares (the
“Huarong Financial Shares”) in Huarong Financial on 13
November 2020.
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The principal activities of Huarong Financial are (i)
engaging in the broking and dealing of securities, futures
and options contracts, as well as the provision of margin
financing services, (ii) engaging in the provision of
underwriting, sponsoring and financial advisory services
of securities to institutional clients, (iii) engaging in the
provision of asset management services, as well as the
direct investments in equities, bonds, funds, derivative
instruments and other financial products, and (iv) involving
in money lending, the provision of pawn loan services
and the provision of financial lease services through its
subsidiaries.

As at the date of this report, all of the Huarong Financial
Shares have been pledged as security for a long-term
borrowing of HK$660.00 million of the Group.

Bank of Gansu

After the OBOR Funds Restructuring initiated by the
general partner and manager of the Fixed Income Fund
and Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One Road Growth Income
Fund, L.P. (the “Growth Fund”) of which a subsidiary of
the Group acted as the limited partner, the Fixed Income
Fund and the Growth Fund held a total of 3,336,740
shares in Bank of Gansu (the “Bank of Gansu Shares”)
upon completion of the OBOR Funds Restructuring. The
initial cost of such shares was HK$4.97 million at the date
of the execution of the OBOR Funds Restructuring. During
the Year, the Group also acquired 8,169,260 Bank of
Gansu Shares at an initial cost of HK$24.34 million.

Bank of Gansu mainly operates its businesses through
three segments: (i) the Corporate Banking Segment
offers financial products and services, including loans,
discounted bills, deposits, and fee-and commission-based
products and services; (ii) the Financial Market Operation
Segment issues debit cards denominated in Renminbi to
retail customers holding deposit accounts with the Bank
of Gansu; and (iii) the Retail Banking Segment offers retail
customers financial products and services, including loans,
discounted bills, deposits, and fee-and commission-based
products and services.
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During the Year, the investment in the Bank of Gansu Shares
recorded an unrealized fair value loss of HK$11.83 million due
to the unexpected downturn in the share price performance
of Bank of Gansu. With reference to the investment objectives
of the Fixed Income Fund and the Growth Fund, the general
partner and manager considered that the investment in Bank
of Gansu was beneficial to the Group and the Shareholders, by
generating the returns from medium to long term investments
and by enhancing the experience of assets management in the
coming years.

As at the date of this report, all of the Bank of Gansu Shares
have been pledged as security for a long-term borrowing of
HK$660.00 million.

Deposits of Investment in potential business

Following the strategic upgrade and the implementation of
new strategic plan of the Group, the Group entered into two
investment agreements with two independent third parties
respectively and paid the investment deposit of HK$50.00
million for securing the potential new businesses in the PRC
in January 2019 respectively. The transactions of investment
deposit payment did not constitute a disclosable transaction
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules all the applicable
percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transaction contemplated under the subscription
were less than 5% at the date of the investment agreements.
The deposits were recorded in the other receivables in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Having conducted the due diligence on each potential
investment, the management of the Group acknowledged
that certain criteria of the two potential investments did not
meet the Group’s expectation and decided to negotiate the
withdrawal of the investment deposits in due course. Although
the due date for the refund of investment deposits had been
extended to 31 December 2021, the Group expected the
investment deposits could only be fully recovered in one or two
years. Having considered there was significant increase in the
credit risk on the deposits which might not refunded before
the original maturity date due to the COVID-19 Outbreak,
the management of the Group decided to provide additional
impairment loss of approximately HK$21.00 million (2019:
HK$2.00 million) for the other receivables for the Year according
to the HKFRS 9.

PROVISION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

During the Year, the Group also engaged in the provision of
financial assistance to some independent third parties. As at 31
December 2020, the total outstanding receivables in relation to
this activity amounted to approximately HK$1,431.51 million (31
December 2019: HK$2,548.93 million) and those transactions
that were summarized below were relatively significant to the
Group at the time of entering into the relevant agreements
between the Group and those relevant independent third parties
respectively.

The Group has provided additional impairment of approximately
HK$260.15 million for those overdue financial assistances
during the Year (2019: HK$140.27 million). The Board is of
the opinion that such impairment provided by the Group were
made in accordance with the requirements of the accounting
standards. In order to lower the investment risks and reduce
the losses, the Group puts its best efforts to maximize the
recovery of the relevant financial assistances by restructuring or
conducting lawsuits against several debtors.

Due to the continued adverse impacts of the COVID-19
Outbreak, the Board will keep assessing and ascertaining the
recoverability of the following transactions closely and may
further increase the provisions for impairment for the coming
years.
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(@) Zhanjiang Advance

On 22 March 2017, the Group entered into a loan facility
agreement with BV I REEMEREBRLE (the
“Zhanjiang Borrower”) and the guarantors for the
provision of a loan facility of not more than RMB200.00
million (the “Loan Facility”). Details in relation to the
provision of the financial assistance was set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 March 2017.

Due to the default of repayment and failure of the
negotiation for settlement of the Loan Facility, the Group
filed a statement of claim (RE&F#K) on 30 June 2019 at
the Intermediate People’s Court of Shaoguan AR ™ 4k
ANEJEBT (the “Shaoguan Court”) against the Zhanjiang
Borrower and the guarantors to claim for the principal
amount of the Loan Facility of RMB200.00 million and the
interest accrued which remained outstanding amounted
to approximately RMB60.75 million as at 30 June 2019.
Subsequent to such filing, the Group received a notice
of acceptance for litigation proceedings (X IRZEHFEHN
2)issued by Shaoguan Court on 16 July 2019. On 24
July 2019, the Group paid the required litigation fee to
Shaoguan Court to confirm the first hearing of the said
litigation proceedings which was originally scheduled to be
held on 20 August 2019, but was adjourned to be held on
14 February 2020. Details in relation to the aforesaid legal
proceedings were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 July 2019.

Due to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group was informed
by Shaoguan Court on 2 February 2020 that the date of
the first hearing of the said litigation proceedings was
adjourned to a date and time to be determined in due
course. Finally, the first hearing of the said litigation
proceedings was held on 9 July 2020.

(a)

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN AR

HILIE®R
N _E—t+tFE=ZB_+_H AEERE
ITMRBREMERERSRAD (MHEIMG
A RERAGTILERBE HE LUE
HABEARME200.00EE T2 ERHNE

(TERmME) ARERHMBER Z5F
BEHNEARNBHA T —tF=A
_+ Ezl'\/_‘l:

HREXERRMERME 2 BN E
BAAB AEBR_ZT—-NAEA=1+H
REBEATHPRARER (TR ZER)
HETERARERAEZ BN > Uk
EXMELASBEARK20000E8TK
A ZE-NERNA=1+HNEXAEEZE
HABEMNARKG0.7SEABTIEHBER -
REXEHFRE FEBR _Z—NEL
B+ BEERMAIREENZERY
BAE-RZE—AFLtAZ+IHHEH R

EENBRERENMRERGRIESE M’
D/L;‘J:;I fg?ﬁ'ﬁ:zg—)\H?Eﬂ (}_E /\‘\:%

—RENBT BB REEE-ST
SE-H+mART) cBMERERF
HECRRAASAPA-S—NEL
Bo+HEAZ AL

R TECEF_R R AEEZEERRH
A fs LaiERsRz B REGSAHEAR
2019 B mERIEZEMA TER > BH
REBSRBES E%T'?EEEOH—TQ%TJ:?I
FARFERZZEZEFLANLHE
THIE

“ECEFESFR MEEREBRARAE 39



Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE S AT

40

On 21 January 2021, the Group received the first

judgement issued by Shaoguan Court (the “First

Judgement”). It was held that the Zhanjiang Borrower
and the guarantors were liable to make payment to
the Group for (i) the total sum of about RMB178.36
million (the “New Principal”), including the outstanding
principal and interests accrued at the rate of 4.75% per
annum from the borrowing date to 16 May 2019, (ii) the
interest on the amount of the New Principal accrued from
16 May 2019 to 19 August 2019 at the rate of 4.75%
per annum, and (iii) the interest on any outstanding
amount commencing from 20 August 2019 until the final
settlement of the amount of the New Principal will accrue
at the one-year term of Loan Prime Rate (B I5REF|
&) announced by National Interbank Funding Center (&
ERITREEZEIFE T 0)in PRC. The Group subsequently
submitted an appeal against the first judgement on 9
February 2021 after having consulted with the PRC legal
advisors. Subsequent to such filing of appeal, the Group
received a notice of acceptance for appeal proceedings
issued by Shaoguan Court on 19 February 2021.

Although pursuant to the First Judgement, the Group
can apply to the Shaoguan Court to exercise its right
in the 55% equity interest in the Zhanjiang Borrower if
the Zhanjiang Borrower fails to repay, having regard to
the lengthy legal proceedings and enforcement process
the management of the Group considered that the loan
amount due from the Zhangjiang Borrower would probably
not be recovered until second half of the year of 2022
and determined to provide additional impairment loss of
HK$20.83 million (2019: HK$39.60 million) during the
Year for the loan receivable according to the HKFRS 9. The
carrying amount of the amount due from the Zhanjiang
Borrower as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$214.42 million (31 December 2019: HK$219.98
million).

As at the date of this report, the Group has not yet
received the date of the hearing of the said appeal
proceedings from Shaoguan Court and will continue
to consult with the PRC legal advisors for further legal
actions. Further announcement(s) regarding any significant
developments on the above litigation will be published as
and when appropriate.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

RN_Z_—F—HC + B> xEEEBE
BRR AR B HEMNE —REFRE (F—R
HAE)) BEREIERARERATD
REEZM)EEEEN17836BB AR
(Mrax)) (BEEXETERBERH
EE-NFRATANHEBERELT
K4 T5%stENF L), (N BEZE—NF
HA+ARHEEZZE—HAENB+ANH
b IR ERFERERBL75% B E
WA E R(IVB_E—AENB_+
HEEMASR2HERZBHIL iXxEZ
REEEBITEBEREFR LM —
FHERTSRENXGFERMELENF]
BoRBATREZEEBMB  AEERZ
T —F "B NHOBBAEREREH £
MEOREN LSRG BBIER LFHE
AERRZSEZT—FZA+NBKERA
BABTIEA > & LRFREEEREM -

RIBEFE—RFAE NRETIERAKRSE
BEEF AEBETEBEARPER
BHEIERAZSSNRENEE AEH
CEERAEZRIARN EIEERFAR
AREFRREIGRNERREIEESS
TEITETHEAERD URESE
MBREENFIT AEELRFEARNS
FEWE R HRBIIPRERL - R_TZ
EEF+ A=+ —HEWEIGBHRAN
IREEENMRERERRERE20.838
BAET (CE—NE 3960888 %
“NAE2N4402888BT (CTE—AE+ZA
=+—H :219.98FHEET) °

BEXRS O xEEFHARREIBEEE
BBy £ 5r B 50 B HAZE AN » b 7Ry 4l 4 22 P [
ERERGEURNE-—SERTH-
AEBRNBEREMR LMEFRZER
BEARERFLE— DT NG



(b) Zhonghong Advance

On 25 January 2018, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with Zhonghong Holding Co., Ltd. (the
“Zhonghong Borrower”) in the amount of RMB200.00
million (the “Zhonghong Advance”). To secure the
recovery of the principal amount of the provision of
financial assistance and to reduce the risk of impairment
loss, on 13 September 2018, the Group had filed an
application for arbitration proceedings at the Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration (the “SCIA") against
Zhonghong Borrower and the relevant guarantors for the
breach of the supplemental agreements and the guarantee
agreement dated 3 September 2018. On 18 September
2018, the Group received the notice of acceptance for
arbitration proceedings issued by the SCIA. In January
2019, hearing of the arbitration proceedings was
conducted. At the end of April 2019, the Group received
the arbitral awards (3;7#Z) dated 25 April 2019 given by
SCIA in respect of the aforesaid arbitration proceedings.
Further details of the Zhonghong Advance in relation to
the provision of financial assistance and the abovesaid
developments on the arbitrations were set out in the
Company’'s announcements dated 13 February 2018,
19 March 2018, 25 May 2018, 6 September 2018, 20
September 2018 and 3 May 2019 respectively.

As at the date of this report, the disposal of the Sea Area
Use Certificate (838 A #583) through public auction
approved by the Hainan Court GEEEEBOMFHAR
7£B%) and the relevant properties held by the guarantors
of the Zhonghong Borrower as pledged securities of
the Zhonghong Advance held by the Group have not
yet been initiated. The Group will continue to consult
the PRC legal advisors for further legal actions against
Zhonghong Borrower and the relevant guarantors. Further
announcement(s) regarding any significant developments
on the above arbitrations will be published as and when
appropriate.
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Meanwhile, in order to increase the recoverability of
the Zhonghong Advance, the Group has been exploring
potential well-known buyers or property developers during
the past two years to set up the restructuring arrangement
between Zhonghong Borrower and existing creditors of
Zhonghong Borrower.

Although pursuant to the Arbitral Awards, the Group
can apply to the Hainan Court to auction the relevant
guarantor’s assets, as the recovering process of the
Zhonghong Advance will involve restructuring discussion
with other major creditors of Zhonghong Borrower, in the
opinion of the management of the Group, the outstanding
amount of loan would likely be recovered within three to
four years. Having considered the restructuring plan would
be complicated and time to be spent, the management of
the Group decided to provide additional impairment loss of
HK$24.51 million (2019: HK$30.88 million) during the Year
for the loan receivable according to HKFRS 9. The carrying
amount of the amount due from the Zhonghong Borrower
as at 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$231.62
million (31 December 2019: HK$233.53 million).
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(c) China Gem Jiangsu Advance

The Group entered into a loan agreement dated 19
October 2017 with RAGXER OL&%) BRAE
“China Gem Enterprise Development (Jiangsu) Limited”
(the “"China Gem lJiangsu”) for the provision of a loan
of RMB100.00 million with the interest rate of 9% per
annum and extra undertaking of interest of 9% per annum
of the principal amount. The collaterals of the loan are
493,160,00 shares of China Gem Holdings Limited, whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(HKSE Stock Code:1191) and HK$100.00 million equity
interests in a fund owned by a related company of China
Gem Jiangsu. The transaction of China Gem Jiangsu
Advance did not constitute a disclosable transaction
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules respectively as all
the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the transaction contemplated
under the subscription are less than 5% at the date of the
loan agreement.

On 28 August 2019, the Group and China Gem lJiangsu
entered into a supplemental agreement to lower the
interest rate to 12% per annum and extend the expiry
date of the loan to 30 June 2020 after obtaining
additional shares of China Gem Holdings Limited, pre-sale
agreements in properties in the PRC and interest in a fund
held by China Gem Jiangsu as further securities.

Since the then financial performance and the status of
the business operations of China Gem Jiangsu as at 31
December 2020 were much worse than that of previous
year, no settlement had been received during the Year and
the China Gem Jiangsu was unable to meet the repayment
plan. Default repayment by China Gem Jiangsu caused
significant increase in the credit risk on loan receivable
and it was considered credit-impaired by the management
as at 31 December 2020. The Management of the Group
decided to provide additional impairment loss of HK$57.91
million (2019: HK$32.04 million) during the Year for the
loan receivable from the China Gem Jiangsu. The carrying
amount of due from the China Gem lJiangsu as at 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$61.05 million (31
December 2019: HK$104.35 million).

(c)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Sales of the Group’s products in manufacturing segment are
principally denominated in US dollars and the purchases of
materials and payments of operational expenses are mainly
denominated in US dollars, HK dollars and RMB. Most of
the Group's purchases and expenses during the Year are
denominated in RMB. As such, the Group had incurred a net
exchange loss of HK$22.13 million for the Year (31 December
2019: a net exchange gain of HK$3.13 million) due to the
depreciation of US dollar.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not entered into any
financial instruments for hedging purpose. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure in
the future and will consider hedging such exposure to minimise
exchange risk should the need arise.

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Macroeconomic Risk

The Group is operating in a highly competitive business
and economic environment, the manufacturing segment in
particular. Manufacturing segment is in a turmoil, being greatly
affected by the recent Sino-US trade war and its customers
which are highly volatile, combined with the rising labour and
production costs. The Group’s manufacturing segment has to
compete with its competitors on various factors such as product
variety, product performance, customer service, quality, pricing,
new product innovation, timely delivery and brand recognition.

On the other hand, volatility in the Hong Kong securities
market may affect the Group's performance on listed securities
investments resulting in fluctuations in unrealised fair value
gains or losses. An interest rate hike is likely and will not
only affect the Group’s cost of borrowings, but also costs of
purchase of materials.

44 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

4 BE | B
AEBRENEZERBEEFTEUETAR
HEM MEXBYNEIZARETHATEY
ET - BARARKESFE AEBREEEZ
ABOEBERZEHUARESE Rt A&
BEERETREMRAEEELEREGEF
222 13FBE BT (CE—NE ERWRE B8
3.13B&8ATT) °

N _EBF+_R=+—H AERLES]
UEAEHEYRERZEMIE - AM EFE
HEBEEERIERN TEETEERY
HEZE R B LUER 2R 9N R b o

JE| % Bz A~ B RE E 2=

REEERRE
FEBERFIIINEBREERE TS
ERUREDERE - REDERR TR E
BERBRERBIRBELE  BETR IS
FIREEMRATRAE Lk AEBBIRE D
B RAREBRFHFESEARNERRSE B
FOoANMERBE - EaXBE -FERARH%H @
B -EE ERfH BENERREDTE-

S—BE EERATRNB AP ESE
B RS RENER SRARRATEK
HRAEERD - REATERA TEREE
A B EE R TR R B A A
Bo



Credit Risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
and services are provided to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group mainly trades with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that credit
terms are granted subject to in-depth credit verification
procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and trade receivable balances
of manufacturing segment are substantially covered by credit
insurance. In this regard, the management team considers
that the Group's credit risk under the manufacturing segment
is minimal. Since the Group mainly trades with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collaterals.

In respect of loans to associates, loan receivables and note
receivables, the Group assesses the background and financial
conditions of the debtors, and requests securities pledged from
the debtors and/or guarantee as collaterals from the debtors’
related parties in order to minimise credit risk.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk, which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to the failure to perform
an obligation by the counterparties arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets, was stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020.

Foreign Currency Risk

As the PCBs business is operating in the PRC, the Company
faces foreign currency risks due to the exchange gain/loss from
exchange rate fluctuations as well as the currency conversion
risk due to the converted net asset value fluctuations of
investment projects in the PRC. To manage the foreign currency
risk effectively, the Company closely monitors foreign exchange
markets and utilises multiple strategic approaches, such as
optimising cash management strategy and deploying project
finance instruments, to control foreign exchange risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2020, excluding those employed by the
Company’s associates, the Group had 1,126 employees (31
December 2019: 1,183 employees). For the Year, our total staff
costs amounted to HK$149.65 million (31 December 2019:
HK$149.25 million).

Under the Group’s remuneration policy, employees are rewarded
in line with market rate and in compliance with statutory
requirements of all jurisdictions where it operates. Employees
are also granted discretionary bonus subject to the individual’s
performance and business results of the Group.

The Group follows a policy of encouraging its subsidiaries to
send their staff to attend training classes or seminars that are
related directly or indirectly to the Group's businesses.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 May 2016, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”), which is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purposes of
the Share Award Scheme are (i) to provide those eligible persons
with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the
Company, (i) to encourage and retain such individual to work
with the Company; and (iii) to provide additional incentive for
them to achieve performance goals, with a view to achieving
the objectives of increasing the value of the Company and
aligning with the interests of those eligible persons directly
to the Shareholders through their ownership of shares in the
Company (the “Shares”). Further details of the Share Award
Scheme in relation to the adoption, amendments and fulfilments
were set out in the Company’s announcements and circulars
dated 17 May 2016, 7 June 2016, 21 June 2016, 5 July 2016,
24 August 2016, 14 September 2016, 30 September 2016, 31
March 2017 and 3 April 2018 respectively.
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At the special general meeting held on 20 July 2016, Mr. Liu
as the then executive Director of the Company was entitled
under the certain vesting conditions to receive an aggregate of
60,000,000 new Shares in the following five years respectively
pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Up to the date of this report, 12,000,000 Shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme (“Award Shares”) for the year
of 2016 and 12,000,000 Award Shares for the year of 2017
were issued and vested to Mr. Liu, 24,000,000 unissued Award
Shares for the years of 2018 and 2019 were forfeited. Mr. Liu
indicated his willingness to relinquish his right of entitlement to
12,000,000 unissued Award Shares for year of 2019 (forfeited)
and 12,000,000 unissued Award Shares for the year of 2020
voluntarily.

Mr. Liu, who resigned as an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company on 6 April 2020, proposed
to the Board to consider the termination of the Share Award
Scheme in order to reduce the operating cost. In view of the
changes in the operating strategies of the Group as reported at
the Board meeting held on 27 March 2020, the Board resolved
(i) to enter into an agreement with Mr. Liu for the termination
and cancellation of the remaining 24,000,000 unissued Award
Shares,
Scheme. As a result, no further grant of Award Shares will be
made thereunder with effect from 27 March 2020. Further
details in relation to the termination of the Share Award Scheme
was set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March
2020.

and (ii) to terminate and cancel the Share Award
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of HK$915,000
(31 December 2019: Nil) and had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

There were no significant events occurred subsequent to 31
December 2020 which would materially affect the Group's
operating and financial performance as of the date of this
report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 22 June 2021 to Friday, 25 June 2021, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify for the attendance of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 25 June 2021, share transfer forms accompanied by
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 21 June
2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company are of the
opinion that during the Year, the Group has properly operated
in accordance with the “Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report” in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the "CG Code”) which sets out (a) the code provisions
(which are expected to comply with); and (b) the recommended
best practices (which are for guidance only). The Group has
complied with the code provisions and one of the recommended
best practices of the CG Code for the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 except for one deviation from the
code provisions as stated in the section headed “Compliance
with the CG Code” below during the period from 1 January
2020 to 5 April 2020.

The Board is committed to the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence highlighted by the CG Code
to better enhance the value of the Shareholders and proper
management of corporate assets in the following ways:

risk management
disclosure of

1. ensuring the decision-making process,
process, internal audit and controls,
information and the communication with stakeholders are
carried out in accordance with good management practices
and compliance with the respective regulatory standards;

2. cultivating a culture of integrity, transparency and
accountability for the Company, its staff and the Directors
and emphasising the importance of their roles in such an
environment; and

3. adopting quality standards widely recognised to foster
quality management in every aspect of daily operations to
enhance the performance and value of the Company as a
whole.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERARS

Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term business return for Shareholders. To achieve this objective,
the Group's strategy is to place high emphasis on achieving
long-term financial performance and maintaining the Group's
strong financial profit. The “Chairman’s Statement” and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” contain discussions and
analyses of the Group’s performance and the basis on which
the Group generates or preserves value over the longer term,
and the basis on which the Group will execute its strategy for
achieving the Group’s objectives.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Directors confirm that, during the Year, the Company acted
in compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save for the
deviation mentioned below:

From 1 January 2020 to 5 April 2020, Mr. Liu had been
acting as an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) as well as the chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Liu tendered his resignation from the
aforesaid positions with effect from 6 April 2020. The aforesaid
arrangement during the period from 1 January 2020 to 5 April
2020 deviates from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
which provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The Directors are of the opinion that such arrangement during
the period from 1 January 2020 to 5 April 2020 enabled
stronger leadership for managing the Company and carried
out effective and efficient management and solid business and
strategic planning. The Directors believe that such arrangement
did not have a material adverse impact on the corporate
governance of the Company during the aforesaid period.
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Following Mr. Liu’s resignation as an executive Director, the
Chairman as well as the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 6 April 2020, Mr. Li Yongjun, a non-executive
Director, was appointed as the Chairman in place of Mr. Liu
on 6 April 2020. The office of chief executive officer of the
Company has been vacant since then. Starting from 6 April
2020, the Company does not have the same individual acting
in the capacity as the Chairman as well as the chief executive
officer and accordingly, the Company has complied with the
requirements under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code since
6 April 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE
"MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct (the
“Own Dealing Code"”) regarding securities transactions by the
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company, having made specific enquiries, confirms that
each member of the Board complied with the Own Dealing
Code throughout the Year. Members of the Company’s
management, who, due to their positions in the Company, are
likely to be in possession of inside information, also complied
with the provisions of the Own Dealing Code.

The Own Dealing Code has been uploaded to the Company's
website.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERARS

CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE
BOARD
With effect from 6 April 2020,

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Liu resigned as the Chairman, an executive Director,
chief executive officer, chairman and member of the
executive committee of the Board (the
Committee”) and the authorised representative of
the Company under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules (the
“Authorised Representative”) due to adjustment of his

"Executive

work arrangements;

Mr. Cheok, an executive Director, resigned as the deputy
chairman of the Board and member of the Executive
Committee;

Mr. Li Yongjun, a non-executive Director, has been
appointed as the Chairman; and

Mr. Shan Yongxin, has been
appointed as the Authorised Representative.

an executive Director,

Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 6 April 2020.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As at 31 December 2020, the Board consisted of six Directors,
with a variety and a balance of skills and experience in

accounting, banking, manufacturing, marketing, finance and
investment professions. Their biographical particulars are set
out on pages 93 to 107 of this annual report. List of Directors

and Their Role and Function, which sets out the members and
composition of the Board, has been uploaded on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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Members of the Board and their respective attendance to Board
meetings and general meetings held during the Year are as

follows:

Corporate Governance Report

attendance at

attendance at
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B ERBRERAFERETZ2ESS
EEARERAEZHEERNOT
Number of Number of

Board general
meetings meetings
EEEEEZ REXEZ
Names of Directors ERNL HEXR i fE =
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tingan (resigned as the AEhE (BERZE=FF
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer PIF N HEHEEEF
on 6 April 2020) TTI#8 %) 2/2 1/1
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (resigned as SR RANLE (ERZEZZF4F
the Deputy Chairman on 6 April 2020) P98 7~ HEEERIE/E) 4/6 2/3
Mr. Shan Yongxin BRELE 6/6 2/3
Non-executive Director FEMITEE
Mr. Li Yongjun (appointed as TKEBERE (ERZEZZTF
Chairman on 6 April 2020) P98 7~ HIEZF 75 F/E) 6/6 2/3
Independent Non-executive Directors B IFHITEE
(“INEDs") (TBIZIFHITTEE)
Mr. Ng Man Kung SxteE 6/6 3/3
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence R2Eq St 6/6 3/3
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei EHEELE 6/6 2/3
The number of Board meetings held during the Year was 6. AEEYRTONEFTTZH
The number of general meetings held during the Year was 3 ZAEEERTIANREAD (BFF ((I©NR_ZT_

(including:

adjourned SGM held on 22 June 2020).

(i) a special general meeting ("SGM") held on 10
February 2020 (being adjourned) and (ii) the reconvention of
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During the Year, the Company had reached the minimum
requirement of three INEDs forming more than one-third of
the Board, all of whom have accounting and related financial
management expertise. They are dedicated to provide the
Company with professional advice with respect to the steady
operation and development of the Company. They also exercised
supervision and coordination to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders.

Each INED during the Year had provided an annual confirmation
of independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on such annual confirmation received from
each of the INEDs, the Company considers that all INEDs are still
considered to be independent during the Year for their tenure
of office in the Company for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

All existing non-executive Director and INEDs have signed
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of not
more than three years, and will be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company pursuant to the New Bye Laws of the Company and
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors is reviewed by
the remuneration committee of the Board (“Remuneration
Committee”) and is fixed from time to time by the Board
subject to the authority granted pursuant to the Company’s
New Bye Laws by the Shareholders at the Company’s general
meetings.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Board are
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (executive Director), Mr. Shan Yongxin
(executive Director), Mr. Li Yongjun (non-executive Director and
Chairman), Mr. Ng Man Kung (INED), Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
(INED) and Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (INED).
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THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

One of the main responsibilities of the Board is to supervise and
direct the management of the Company (the “Management”)
to operate under good corporate governance in order to
maximise value of the Shareholders while balancing the interest
of its various stakeholders. The Board holds meetings quarterly
so as to monitor the performance and discuss the business
development of the Company against the budget, to discuss
and decide on major corporate, strategic and operational issues,
and to evaluate any available investment opportunities.

The major duties performed by the Board are as follows:
1. setting the Company’s values and standards;

2. setting the objectives of the Company and responsibilities
of the Board and its various committees;

3. establishing the strategic direction for the Company;
4.  setting targets for the management of the Group;

5.  monitoring the performance of the management of the
Group;

6. reviewing the annual and interim results of the Group;

7. ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective
internal control is in place to assess and manage the risk
of the Group and implementing appropriate systems to
manage these risks;

8. overseeing the Company’s relationships with its
Shareholders, the community, various
government authorities, interest groups and others;

customers,

9. identifying and assessing any matters of a substantial
Shareholder or a Director resulting in conflict of interest;

10. determining material acquisitions and disposals of assets,
investments, capital, projects, authority levels, major
treasury policies, risk management policies and key human
resources issues; and
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1.

considering and determining issues which are the
responsibilities of the Board pursuant to the Company's
Memorandum of Association and New Bye Laws and
the relevant laws and regulations in force by which the
Company is governed from time to time.

The Board is also responsible for the following corporate
governance duties:

to develop and review the Company’'s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on any amendment or updating (if any);

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and the Company's
senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Report”) under the CG Code; and

to be responsible for performing any other corporate
governance duties and functions set out in the CG Code
and the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time), or
delegating the responsibility to a committee or committees
(if applicable).

During the Year, the Company had reviewed its corporate

governance policy by the Board in achieving high standards of

corporate governance duties. The Board will further develop and

review this policy regularly and at least annually so as to make

recommendations on any amendment or updating (if any).
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During the Year, the Board had delegated its authority to
the nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination
Committee”) to review its board diversity policy for the
Company and the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee. The Board (via the reporting from the Nomination
Committee) had reviewed and considered the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Company’s board diversity
policy during the Year and would, together with the Nomination
Committee, regularly review the progress on achieving those
objectives.

The Board delegates to the Management in respect of the major
corporate matters as stated below:

1.  preparation of the annual and interim results of the Group
to be approved by the Board;

2 execution of the corporate strategies and directions of the
Group adopted by the Board;

3. implementation of sufficient systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures of the Group; and

4. carrying out daily business operations and decision-
makings of the Group, etc.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board
has established various committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. These committees are
governed by their respective terms of reference, which describe
the authorities and duties of these committees and will be
regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. These committees
include the Audit Committee of the Board (the "Audit
Committee”), the Remuneration Committee of the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the Nomination Committee,
and the Executive Committee whose terms of reference had
been set out in writing and have been uploaded to the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. The Board was aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern which were detailed in note 3(b) to the
consolidated financial statements. Having considered the factors
in note 3(b), the Board has prepared the accounts on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s auditor, BDO
Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 115 to 122 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is composed of three INEDs throughout
the Year.

The chairman of the Audit Committee is an INED who has
the appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee discharges
its responsibilities as follows and in accordance with its existing
terms of reference being adopted by the Board:

1. reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the interim and
annual results and financial statements of the Company
and of the Group and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgements;

2. reviewing and monitoring the reporting, accounting and
financial policies and practices of the Group;

3. reviewing and primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, retirement, resignation or removal of
the Company’s external auditor and reviewing their
remuneration and terms of engagement, discussing their
audit plan and scope of audit, and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process up to applicable standard, and also reporting
the issues raised by the external auditor, including but
not limited to those stated in their management letter
addressed to the Board, implementing policy on engaging
external auditor to supply non-audit services;
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acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

reviewing the fairness and reasonableness of connected
transaction(s) or continuing connected transaction(s) of the
Company, if any;

ensuring full access by the respective responsible teams
of the Group under corporate governance function of any
concerns that may have arisen during the course of their
corporate governance works;

conducting annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems
as delegated by the Board and considering any findings
of major investigation of its internal control and risk
management matters; and ensuring the Group's
management has discharged its duty to have an effective
internal control and risk management system including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff from the Group; and

reviewing arrangements which can be used by employees
of the Company, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters, and the whistleblowing policy
and system for employees which has been adopted by the
Board on 27 March 2012.
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During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
(whereas all of which had been held with the attendance of
the Company’s external auditor) to review the financial results
and reports for the year ended 31 December 2019 and for
the six months ended 30 June 2020, risk management and
internal control processes, related party transactions, continuing
connected transactions and discloseable transactions (if any),
roles and responsibilities as well as works performed by the
teams under corporate governance function, and the re-election
of the Company's external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated annual
results and financial statements of the Group for the Year,
including the significant accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
at its meetings during the Year is set out below:

RAEFE BEZZEERRTmMREE A
EREINEREINEBRBMEREZBE R TR
1) UBHABE_T-AE+-A=+—H
HEFERBEE T _ZTFB=+HILKE
RZUHBEERBS RBREERANIEERE
F BAEALIXRS FEEEXSMATHRE
Ry WA BEEEEELABERBRZATGRK
BEKRFETZ I UREEIEZEED

BEREZECSCEEREFERNESFEZRS
EXERMBRE OEFAEERMNZERS
stIRAIR B A -

rEREEELEZEGTER-

REFE SBRZEENENHEERZHFE
oA

Attendance
Members of Audit Committee EZEZEEWME HEE
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Chairman) R4 (FE) 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung (Member) SxHtEE (BE) 2/2
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (Member) EEELE (HE) 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment and re-election of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect to the Company. During
the Year, the remunerations paid/payable to the external auditor,
BDO Limited, were as follows:
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Fee paid/
payable
Type of services provided by the external auditor YMEEAZ EXEM IR 1t =~ ARFS 48 A eft  EER
(HK$'000)
(FET)
Audit services: ZERE -
Audit of the financial statements for the year ended EBEZBE_EEF+HA=+—H
31 December 2020 IFFEZFEMBRE 1,500
Non-audit services: FEIZERTS -
Review of continuing connected transaction(s) BERNERERS 10
Agreed-upon procedures on preliminary announcement #1372 & A2 R ERF
of results 30
Agreed-upon procedures on interim financial statements BREEHE_E S F,xB=1+HIEEA
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 Zqﬂ,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁzﬁ%/&&f 180
Report on environmental, social and governance MRBE - HENEAERBS 110
Subtotal: INEE 1,830
Tax services TR 75 AR5 33
1,863
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Throughout the Year, three members of the Remuneration
Committee were INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee performs the following roles
and functions in accordance with its terms of reference and its
written remuneration policy adopted by the Board:

1. ensuring formal and transparent procedures for overseeing,
developing and determining policies on the remuneration
packages of Directors and the Company’s senior
management;

2. assessing the achievement and performance and reviewing
the performance-based remuneration of executive
Directors and the Company’s senior management by
reference to the Company’s corporate goals;

3. approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
agreements or letters of appointment (as appropriate);

4. providing effective supervision and administration of the
Company'’s share award or option schemes and other share
incentive schemes (if available);

5. (i) determining with delegated responsibility on
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and the Company’s senior management or
(i) recommending to the Board on executive Directors’
and the Company’s senior management’'s remuneration
packages whereas the Remuneration Committee adopted
the aforesaid model (ii) during the Year, and (iii) reviewing
the remuneration of non-executive Directors; and

6. ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the Year, the Company has reviewed and made

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of Directors and the Company’s senior management.
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During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was
held to discuss and review the remuneration packages and
bonus (if any) of executive Directors and other Directors and the
terms of their service agreements and letters of appointment,
the management's remuneration and the remuneration policy
of the Company and the Group as well as the cancellation of
the Share Award Scheme (with reference to the Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference and Listing Rules).

The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee at its meetings for the Year is set out below:
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Attendance
Members of Remuneration Committee HNEZEESRE HEE
Mr. Ng Man Kung (Chairman) B E (F/EF) 171
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Member) RIS (B E) 11
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (Member) EZEELE (BHE) 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Throughout the year, three members of the Nomination
Committee were INEDs.

The Nomination Committee performs the following roles and
functions in accordance with its nomination procedures and
criteria as follows and in accordance with its terms of reference
and its written nomination policies adopted by the Board:

1. determining the policy for the nomination of Directors
during the Year;

2. adopting the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the Year by considering the candidates’
past performance and experience, academic and working
qualifications, general market conditions in accordance
with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the
Company’s New Bye Laws so as to make the composition
of the Board filled with a diverse and a balance of skills
and experience;
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3. reviewing regularly the roles of Directors and considering
any issue on conflict of interest, their performance and
conduct;

4. assessing the independence of INEDs pursuant to the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules; and

5. reviewing regularly the nomination policy and board
diversity policy of the Company to ensure the effectiveness
of these policies and to review any progress on achieving
those objectives in these policies.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) to enhance its effectiveness. The Nomination Policy
is intended to provide a flexible set of guidelines for the
effective functioning of the Company’s nomination process.
The Board and the Nomination Committee intend to review
the Nomination Policy (together with the board diversity policy
(the “Diversity Policy”)) at least annually and anticipate
that modifications may be necessary from time to time as the
Company’s needs and circumstances evolve, and as applicable
if and where the legal obligations or requirements in the Listing
Rules or laws of Hong Kong or Bermuda or other regulations
change. The details of the Nomination Policy were set out
below:

Purpose

The purpose of the Nomination Policy is to describe the process
by which candidates of possible inclusion in the Company's
recommended slate of director nominees are selected.
The Nomination Policy is administered by the Nomination
Committee.
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Composition of the Board
The Nomination Committee will ensure that:

1. the Board will consist of Directors with a variety and
a balance of skills and experience in accounting,
manufacturing, marketing, finance, investment and legal
professions and with reference to the criteria set out in the
Diversity Policy;

2. the Company will always maintain the minimum number of
INEDs as required by the Listing Rules; and

3. regular assessment will be conducted on the independency
of INEDs for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and if there is any reason for doubting whether such
INED is still considered as independent pursuant to the
Listing Rules or other regulations, it may propose the re-
designation of the INED into other directorate position in
the Board.

Nomination and selection criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account the
Company’s current needs and the qualities needed for the
Board's service, including but not limited to:

1. the ethical character, integrity and maturity of judgment of
the candidate;

2. the candidate’s experience at the policy-making level
in the industry and business, the PRC and Hong Kong
governments, education or other settings;

3. the candidate’s insight into material aspects of the
Company’s business;

4. the expertise of the candidate in areas that are useful to
the Company and complementary to the background and
experience of other Board members;
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the candidate’s willingness to take an active interest in the
Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of
its business, and to devote the required amount of time
to carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the Board
and various committees’ membership if being invited,;

the candidate’s willingness to report to the Board in a
timely manner any new change in his/her office held
in other public companies or organisations and other
significant commitments, the time involved, identities of
such public companies and organisations;

the willingness of the candidate to serve on the Board for
multiple terms;

the willingness of the candidate to refrain from engaging
in activities that may be in conflict with the Director’s
duties and responsibilities to the Company and its
Shareholders;

the candidate’s independence under the Listing Rules if
he/she is appointed as INED, and if the proposed INED
will be holding his/her seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, the reasons why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote sufficient time to
the Board, his/her perspectives, skills and experience that
he/she can bring to the Board and how the proposed INED
contributes to diversity of the Board,

the candidate’s service on other boards of directors of the
Group or of other companies (whether they are listed or
non-listed);

the candidate’s willingness to participate in continuous

professional development courses annually to be arranged
and funded by the Company;
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12. the candidate’s willingness to attend general meetings of
the Company;

13. the candidate’s obligation to disclose his/her information
on all civil judgments of fraud, breach of duty, or other
misconduct involving dishonesty (if any);

14. the candidate’s willingness to comply with the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements in full for discharging
Directors’ liabilities.

For those potential new director candidates who appear upon
first consideration to meet the Board’s selection criteria, the
Nomination Committee will conduct appropriate inquiries into
their background and qualifications and, depending on the
result of such inquiries, arrange for in-person meeting with the
potential candidates.

In the case of incumbent Directors whose terms of office are set
to expire, the Nomination Committee will review such Directors’
overall service to the Company during their terms of office in
the Company, and if feasible and appropriate, will conduct an
exit interview.

The Nomination Committee may use multiple sources for
identifying director candidates, including but not limited to:

1. its own contacts and referrals from other Directors,
members of the management of the Company, the
Company’s professional advisors, and executive search
firms;

2. the director candidates being recommended by the
Shareholders with the evaluation in the same manner with
other director candidates being recommended by other
sources; and
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3. making recommendations for director nominees to be
proposed to the Board for election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Nomination
Committee will consider any written recommendation of
director candidates pursuant to Bye law 85 of the New Bye
Laws of the Company. Recommendations must include the
candidate’s name, contact information and a statement of
the candidate’s background and qualifications, and must
be lodged at the head office or the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the chairman of the Board/
Company Secretary.

The Board has adopted a Diversity Policy of the Company to
enhance its effectiveness. In designing the Board’s composition,
the Diversity Policy has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, regional and industry
experience, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of
services and time to be devoted as a Director. The Company will
consider all measurable objectives for implementing the Diversity
Policy, and also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The Board
strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to
support the execution of its business strategies and in order for
the Board to be effective. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The details of the Diversity Policy were set out below:

1. Purpose
1.1 The Diversity Policy sets out the approach to diversity
on the Board.

2. Scope of Application
2.1 The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

2.2 The Diversity Policy applies to the Board and does

not apply to diversity in relation to employees of the
Group.
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3. Diversity Policy Statement
3.1 In designing the Board’'s composition, the Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
Board members.

3.2 Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
regional and industry experience, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

3.3 The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
the composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board on appointment of
new Directors. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of the Board’s diversity.

4. Measurable Objectives
4.1 The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually all measurable objectives for implementing
the Diversity Policy and achieving the Board's diversity
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

4.2 Selection of candidates for Board members will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, regional and
industry experience, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, as well as the
criterion set out in the Company’s nomination policy.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

4.3 The Board’s composition (including gender, ethnicity,
age, length of service, educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge) will
be disclosed in the Company’s CG Report annually
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules.
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5. Monitoring and Reporting
5.1 The Nomination Committee will report annually,
in the CG Report, on the Board’'s composition
under diversified perspectives, and monitor the
implementation of the Diversity Policy.

6. Review of the Diversity Policy
6.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Policy
regularly, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of the Diversity Policy and to review any progress on
achieving those objectives in the Diversity Policy.

6.2 The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting had been
held to discuss and review (i) the retiring Directors to be re-
elected at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company; (ii)
the independence of the INEDs; (iii) the terms of appointment
of Directors; (iv) the structure, size and composition (including
the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (v)
the role, performance and conduct of the existing Directors
(including but not limited to the issues on any conflict of
interest); (vi) any nomination of potential candidate in place of
the resigned Director(s) to the Board; and (vii) the nomination
policy and Diversity Policy (including its measurable objectives
and progress on achieving those objectives) of the Company
(with reference to the Nomination Committee’s terms of
reference and Listing Rules).
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The attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee at its meetings for the Year is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

REFE JRREEEGNENHEERZHFE
foERE ST

Attendance
Members of Nomination Committee RBZEETHE HEE
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (Chairman) EHEELE (FE) 11
Mr. Ng Man Kung (Member) EXHEE (E) A
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Member) RERE (B E) 11

Under the CG Code provision A.4.2, every Director including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The New
Bye Laws of the Company has provided that at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation such that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Under the CG Code provision A.4.2, all Directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by the
Shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after appointment. The New Bye Laws of the Company has
provided that the Board shall have power from time to time and
at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his appointment and shall then be subject to
re-election at such meeting, but shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee operates with overall delegated
authority from the Board. The Executive Committee carries out
the following tasks for the purposes of dealing with the affairs
relating to the day-to-day operations of the Group:

1. determining group strategies;

2. setting targets for the management;
3. reviewing business performance;

4.  ensuring adequate funding; and

5. examining major investments.

During the period from 1 January 2020 to 5 April 2020, the
members of the Executive Committee were Mr. Liu Tingan
(Chairman) (executive Director) and Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (Deputy
Chairman) (executive Director) and Mr. Shan Yongxin (executive
Director). Mr. Liu Tingan resigned as the chairman and member
of the Executive Committee with effect from 6 April 2020. In
addition, Mr Cheok Ho Fung resigned as the deputy chairman
and member of the Executive Committee with effect from 6
April 2020.

Mr. Shan Yongxin (executive Director) has become the sole
member of the Executive committee since 6 April 2020.

During the Year, no Executive Committee meeting had been
held as no significant events and transactions was carried out.

The terms of reference for the Executive Committee had been
amended and restated with effect from 27 March 2020.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Group provides briefings, reading materials and other
training opportunities to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills so as to keep them abreast of their
collective responsibilities and to put more emphasis on the
importance of roles, functions and duties of Directors.

The Group continuously updates the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices, and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

During the Year and as required by and in compliance with the
CG Code, the Directors participated in the following trainings:

ExnA

Name of Directors
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Types of Training
S A R

BITEFE

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tingan BERSRE (FEFRITE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) — #2%;) (BER_-ZE_F4F
(resigned on 6 April 2020) 748 7\ HEE1E) - - C
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (resigned as the sa LE (B
Deputy Chairman on 6 April 2020) ZECEFNANH
FHEEIE ) A - C
Mr. Shan Yongxin BREZRE - - C
Non-executive Director FEMITEE
Mr. Li Yongjun (appointed as FARERE (R ZEFE-F
Chairman on 6 April 2020) FUANAEZESFE
JE) - - C
INEDs BIFHITESE
Mr. Ng Man Kung SRSt - - @
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence R2EE T A - -
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei EEESLE - - C
A:  attending seminars/conferences/forums (via different means) Al HEMNE g2k dHE (BEBEFAEE

B:  giving talks at seminars/conferences/forums

C:  self-reading: (newspapers, journals & updates re: global & Hong
Kong economy, business of the Group, updates on Listing Rules,
directors’ duties, relevant statutory requirements)

ED)
B: ﬁ/\\ﬁﬂgqu/ %&/?uﬁﬁi@ 'f—_l'//\u%
C: BE: BRE-BrHEsWER AR IRIKEK
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board established a whistleblowing policy on 27 March
2012 which deals with and governs proper and fair concerns
raised by the Group’s employees about any suspected
malpractice or misconduct regarding financial reporting, internal
control or other matters within the Group. The Audit Committee
shall review regularly this policy and ensure that arrangements
are in place for independent and fair investigation of these
matters and for appropriate following-up action.

The responsible teams of different sections or departments
within the Group under corporate governance function play a
major role in monitoring the internal corporate governance of
the Group. They have unrestricted access to the information
that allow them to review all aspects of the Group’s risk
management and governance processes in connection with
nature of compliance and legal requirements. It also has the
power to consult directly with the Audit Committee without the
consent of the Company’s management.

During the Year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2
of the CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
of such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in
the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its businesses and operations. The
system comprises the following phases:

e [dentification: ldentify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of

objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.
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° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

Based on the enterprise risk assessments conducted in 2020, no
significant risk was identified which might materially affect the
Group’s businesses and operations except the adverse impacts
of the COVID-19 Outbreak.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system in place which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
controls across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present
and functioning.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside

information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures for the Group's directors, officers and all relevant
employees. The term refers to employee
of the Group, who, because of his office or employment, is
likely to be in possession of the unpublished inside information.
The above mentioned persons are also recommended to
make reference to the
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in

June 2012. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from

“relevant employee”

“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information”

time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

o Internal controls on handling and dissemination of inside
information are in place.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2020, no
significant control deficiency, which might affect the reliability
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an internal audit (“IA") function, which consists
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified
Public Accountant). The IA function is independent from the
Group’s daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting
interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.
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An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually and the
results are reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensures that review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board's review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
and the Group’'s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment; (ii) the scope and quality of
Management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA
function and the Audit Committee during the Year, concluded
that the risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate. Such systems, however, are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It
is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

OPERATION RISKS

The Group has implemented appropriate policies and procedures
for all major operations. The Management closely monitors
the procurement process and performs due diligence check on
suppliers. The quality assurance department and the reliability
department ensure the stability of the manufacturing process
and monitor products quality. The Group also strives to promote
human resources reforms and comprehensively enhances cost
management. At the same time, the Management also keeps
a close eye on every investment process to ensure that they
have exercised due care towards those investments made. By
establishing clear policies and a well-documented business
process, the exposure to operation risks is considered as
minimal.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy
on 27 March 2012 for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders and other stakeholders and encouraging them
to communicate actively with the Company. This policy sets
out the principles of the Company, in relation to shareholders’
communications, with the objective of ensuring that its
communications with the Shareholders and other stakeholders
(including potential investors) with ready, equal and timely
access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals
and plans, material developments, governance and risk profile),
in order to enable the Shareholders and other stakeholders
to exercise their rights in an informed manner mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications (such as interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars, notices of
meetings, proxy forms and listing documents), annual general
meetings and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on
the website of the Company.
Interim reports, annual reports and circulars and
associated explanatory documents etc are sent to the
Shareholders and are also posted on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company’s website
(www.renco.com.hk) under a dedicated
section in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions or where permitted,
be updated on a regular basis and in a timely manner. The
Company's website provides the Shareholders with the
corporate information, such as principal business activities,
the development of corporate governance and the corporate
social responsibilities of the Group such as environmental
protection, etc.

“Investor Relations”

in single language, and will
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Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address (as indicated below), in order to enable them or even
the Board to make any enquiry that they may have with respect
to the Company or the Group. if the registered
Shareholders have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend, they can contact Tricor Tengis Limited,
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer
Office through the online holding enquiry service at www.
tricoris.com or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com or
hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or fax at (852) 2810 8185 or in
person at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

In addition,

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. However, Shareholders may send their enquiries to
the following contacts:

Principal place of : Unit 1901, 19th Floor, Far East Finance
business in Hong Centre, No.16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong Kong

For the attention of Chairman of the
Board/Company Secretary

Telephone 1 (852) 2710 2323

Fax : (852) 2323 8137

Email . investor.relations@renco.com.hk

The Company’s general meeting allows the Directors, members
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee respectively, and its external
auditor to meet and communicate with its Shareholders and
to answer Shareholders’ questions. The Company will ensure
that the Shareholders’ views can be properly communicated to
the Board. For each substantially separate issue at a general
meeting, a separate resolution should be proposed by the
chairman of that meeting, for instances, nomination of persons
as Directors by means of a separate resolution. The Procedures
for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director
of the Company has been uploaded on the website of the
Company.

Corporate Governance Report

ﬁ%%/ﬂ%&m

IREREIR M BEAGTNE  EENE S
R BEFA (BT XFATR) ZBAEE R M

BEBREAAQBREEMRBEMZEN KRB
EEENAIUBRLEREZRARABHEER
REBH I HARBZECLKRREEM
ERESRERKREZAEZETH AJEB
ABukwww.tricoris.comZ &E Fis-enquiries@hk.
tricorglobal.com@ £ 4%(852) 2980 1333/ FHE
(852) 2810 8185, MRERE B E /T ABEH1835%
BHPRLABBERABIEBERHBRER
DEREEERFERRABEH

AAF—RAEREOERELEH AT
B8 5 BT ¥ EL 2 g 50 R AU AR M

EAFE | AAEREIGFEESRPL
=k 19181901
KRG ASBESS
FEABME

Bz : (852) 2710 2323

FE : (852) 2323 8137

B . investor.relations@renco.com.hk
KRB ZREAGEEFT HEBEZEZEZ H

MEEGTRIEREZEGRBZMEURING
ZEMBAERREERBERE THRERRZ
RE - ARARERRRZERUBEEES
o MRRAGLAMBEERFTHEZBYSE
HME  ZAGEFERREEBIOREZE  HIU
DBIRBRZANRBATHEESF KRR
RBATSERARDEFZEFELHESR
NSIEEVEE

“ECEFESFR MEEREBRARAE 79



Corporate Governance Report
TEERARS

The proceedings of general meeting are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate
governance practices. Notice of an annual general meeting
(whether for the passing of a special resolution and/or an
ordinary resolution) shall be called by not less than twenty
business days’ notice and twenty-one days’ notice in writing at
the least and a special general meeting called for the passing of
a special resolution shall be called by twenty-one days’ notice
in writing at the least, and a general meeting of the Company
(other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for the
passing of a special resolution) shall be called by ten business
days’ notice and fourteen days’ notice in writing at the least
(whereas the notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it
is served or deemed to be served and of the day for which it
is given), and the accompanying circular also sets out details
of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the general meeting exercises his power
under the Company’'s New Bye Laws to put each proposed
resolution to the vote by way of a poll, save for the resolutions
(if any) proposed by the chairman of the meeting regarding
the approval on the procedural and administrative matters as
defined in the Listing Rules. The procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll are explained at the general meeting prior to
the polls being taken. Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at a general meeting are entitled to ask about the poll
voting procedures and details of the proposed resolutions at the
general meeting whose questions should be answered during
the general meeting prior to the conduction of poll voting.
Announcement on poll voting results of general meeting will
be posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.
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On 29 July 2020, the Company had announced that the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda had approved the English
name of the Company be changed from “HKBridge Financial
Holdings Limited” to "“Renco Holdings Group Limited” and
the Chinese name "RFIIZEREBEBIRAT" be adopted as
the secondary name of the Company to replace its existing
secondary name in Chinese "BBE&RIERARAT", with
effect from 23 June 2020. The Certificate of Registration of
Alteration of Name of Registered non-Hong Kong Company
was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 20
July 2020 confirming the registration of the new English name
“Renco Holdings Group Limited” also known as “BRFHERGE
BB AT" in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance. Following the adoption of the aforesaid new names,
the Company has also adopted a new logo with effect from 29
July 2020.

During the Year, at the reconvention of the adjourned SGM
held on 22 June 2020, among others, (i) the Company’'s
Memorandum of Association had been amended to reflect the
change of name of the Company; and (ii) the New Bye Laws
of the Company had been adopted as the bye-laws of the
Company in substitution for and to the exclusion of the then
existing bye-laws of the Company, details of which are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 17 January 2020. The
amendments to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and the adoption of the New Bye Laws of the Company was
effective on 23 June 2020 respectively.

The Company continues to commit to a proactive policy of
promoting investor relations and effective communication with
the Shareholders and analysts by better utilising the Company's
website (www.renco.com.hk) as a channel to disclose the
Company’s updated information and corporate communications
to the Shareholders, stakeholders and the public on a timely
basis.
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Shareholders Rights

The Directors, pursuant to Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (“Companies Act”) and notwithstanding anything
in the Company’'s New Bye Laws shall, on the requisition of
the Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the general meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company's registered office and the principal place of business
in Hong Kong, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a general
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a general meeting, but any general meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.

A general meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which general meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth (1/20) of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
or not less than 100 Shareholders, may make a requisition in
writing to the Company to do the following (which will be
done at the expense of the requisitionists unless the Company
otherwise resolves):

(i) to give the Shareholders a notice of the next annual
general meeting and notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and/or
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(i) to circulate to the Shareholders a notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt

with at that meeting.

A copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists, or two
or more copies which between them contain the signatures
of all the requisitionists, must be deposited at the registered
office and the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the
Company.

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution,
not less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one week
before the meeting,

and there must be deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

However please note that if, after a copy of the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or
less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though not
deposited within the time limit stated above shall be deemed to
have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by
reason of the failure of the Directors duly to convene a general
meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to
the Shareholders to be the goal.
at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating
the Shareholders and investors to make informed investment

The dividend policy aims

decisions relating to the Company.
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According to the dividend policy, while the Company intends to
declare and pay dividends in the future, the payment and the
amount of any dividends will depend on a number of factors,
including but not limited to:

(i)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(ii)  the Group's expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(iii) profits available for distribution, retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Company and each of the
members of the Group;

(iv) the Group's liquidity position;

(v) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate and
relevant.

The Company in general meeting may declare dividends
in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. The recommendation of the
dividends by the Company shall be determined at the sole
discretion of the Board and shall be subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Act and every other Act of Bermuda,
the New Bye Laws of the Company and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations. Any declaration of annual dividend for
the financial year ended of the Company will be subject to the
approval by the Shareholders. The dividend policy adopted by
the Board is intended for the Company to maintain adequate
cash reserves to meet its capital requirements, fund its future
growth and enhance shareholder value when dividends are
recommended.

The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed by the Board
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends

will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any
given period.

29 March 2021
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

Details of the analysis of the Group's revenue for the Year by
geographical location are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion on the Group’s business review, and operating
and financial performance during the Year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development as well as the
Group’s financial key performance indicators are included
in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 8 and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 48 of this
annual report.

Particulars on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and key relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and others were set out in the ESG Report on pages
291 to 324 of this annual report. All these disclosures form part
of the contents of the Report of the Directors.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is now operating in a highly competitive business
and economic environment, in particular, the manufacturing
segment. Manufacturing segment is greatly affected by its
customers which are highly volatile combined with rising labour
and production costs. The Group’s manufacturing segment
has to compete with its competitors on various factors such
as product variety, product performance, customer service,
quality, pricing, new product innovation, timely delivery and
brand recognition. On the other hand, volatility in Hong Kong
securities market may affect the Group's performance on listed
securities investments resulting in fluctuations in unrealised fair
value gains or losses. Rising in interest rate is highly likely and
this will affect not only the Group’s costs of borrowings but
also costs of purchases on materials. In addition to risks and
uncertainties mentioned above, the Group is also subject to
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the normal
course of the Group's business and further details of which are
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to comply with the relevant
laws and regulations such as the Companies Act in Bermuda,
the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, and laws and
regulations implemented by relevant jurisdictions. The Company
believes the existing laws and regulations do not have any
significant effect on the Group’s activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 123 to 127.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any declaration of
dividend payment for the Year (2019: Nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 290. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s issued share capital for
the Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s New Bye Laws which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders
though there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 128.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Companies Act, the contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution or payment of
dividends to the Shareholders provided that immediately
following such distribution or payment, the Company is able to
pay off its debts as and when they fall due.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves include share
premium of approximately HK$2,559,569,000 which may be
available for dividend distribution upon the passing of special
resolution by the Shareholders at the general meeting to reduce
the share premium amount and transfer it to contributed surplus
after offsetting with the accumulated losses of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the revenue from the largest and the five largest
customers amounted to approximately 17% (2019: 27%) and
74% (2019: 92%) of the Group’s revenue respectively.

For the Year, the purchase of materials from the largest and the
five largest suppliers amounted to approximately 11% (2019:
16%) and approximately 43% (2019: 51%) of the Group's total
purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) has any interest in any of the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group for the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary, for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the financial affairs of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public
float of 25% as required by the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Tenancy Agreement

On 26 May 2017, Topsearch Printed Circuits (HK) Limited
("Topsearch PC (HK)") as a tenant (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a tenancy agreement
(the “Tenancy Agreement”) with Keentop Investment Limited
as a landlord (an investment holding company and a connected
person of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules,
which is beneficially owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Cheok
Ho Fung, an executive Director, and his spouse, Mrs. Cheok
Chu Wai Min) in respect of the lease of the properties known as
House 7 and the Garden appurtenant thereto and Car Parking
Spaces Nos. 7A and 7B on Basement Floor, Las Pinadas, No. 33
Shouson Hill Road, Hong Kong for a lease term of three years
commencing from 1 June 2017 to 31 May 2020 (both days
inclusive) as director’s quarters provided to Mr. Cheok and his
family.

Keentop Investment Limited charged Topsearch PC (HK) a
monthly rental of HK$165,000 (exclusive of rates, management
fee and other outgoings) and a monthly management fee
of HK$18,000. The annual cap under Tenancy Agreement is
HK$2,350,000. The terms of the Tenancy Agreement have been
negotiated on an arm’s length basis and are considered as fair
and reasonable and on normal commercial terms and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The
Tenancy Agreement is exempt from Shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules.

In respect of the Tenancy Agreement which constitutes
continuing connected transaction of the Company, the INEDs
have reviewed the said transaction and confirmed that the said
transaction has been entered into:

(1) after arm’s length negotiation and for the purpose of and
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

()

on normal commercial terms; and
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(3) according to the Tenancy Agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Board confirmed that the Company's external auditor
was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "“Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their
unqualified letter(s) containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transaction and confirmed
the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules as
follows. The auditor has reported their conclusions to the Board
stating that:

(@) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the said transaction has not been
approved by the Board;

(b) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the said transaction was not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
Tenancy Agreement governing the said transaction; and

() with respect to the aggregate amount of the said
transaction, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention
that causes them to believe that the said transaction has
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Tenancy Agreement

On 29 May 2020, Topsearch PC (HK) as a tenant (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
a renewed tenancy agreement (the “Renewed Tenancy
Agreement”) with Keentop Investment Limited as a landlord
(an investment holding company and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules, which is
beneficially owned as to 50% by each of Mr. Cheok Ho Fung,
an executive Director and his spouse, Mrs. Cheok Chu Wai Min)
in respect of the lease of the properties known as House 7 and
the Garden appurtenant thereto and Car Parking Spaces Nos.
7A and 7B on Basement Floor, Las Pinadas, No. 33 Shouson Hill
Road, Hong Kong for a lease term of three years commencing
from 1 June 2020 to 31 May 2023 (both days inclusive) as
director’s quarters provided to Mr. Cheok and his family.

entered into

Keentop Investment Limited charged Topsearch PC (HK) a
monthly rental of HK$165,000 (exclusive of rates, management
fee and other outgoings) and a monthly management fee
of HK$18,000. The annual cap under the Renewal Tenancy
Agreement is HK$2,350,000. The terms of the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement have been negotiated on an arm’s length basis and
are considered as fair and reasonable and on normal commercial
terms and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. The Renewed Tenancy Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company but is exempt from
Shareholders’ approval,
requirements under the Listing Rules.

annual review and all disclosure

In respect of the Renewed Tenancy Agreement which constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company, the INEDs have
reviewed the said transaction and confirmed that the said
transaction has been entered into:

(1) after arm’s length negotiation and for the purpose of and
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms; and
according to the Renewed Tenancy Agreement governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Tingan (resigned as an executive director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer on 6 April 2020)
Mr. Cheok Ho Fung
(resigned as the Deputy Chairman on 6 April 2020)
Mr. Shan Yongxin

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li Yongjun (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 6 April 2020)

INEDs:

Mr. Ng Man Kung
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei

In accordance with the Listing Rules and Bye law 84 of the
Company’s New Bye Laws which became effective on 23 June
2020 (“New Bye Laws"), at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and Company’s Bye law 83(2)
of the New Bye Laws, the Directors shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or,
subject to authorization by the Members in general meeting,
as an addition to the existing Board but so that the number of
Directors so appointed shall not exceed any maximum number
determined from time to time by the Members in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Members after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Accordingly, Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (executive Director) and
Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (INED) shall retire from office by rotation
pursuant to Bye law 84 of the New Bye lLaws, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

All the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has any
service contract with the Company in respect of any unexpired
period which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tingan (“Mr. Liu”)

(resigned on 6 April 2020)

Mr. Liu, aged 59, was an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer of the Company, the chairman
and member of the Executive Committee since 22 March
2016 before he tendered his resignation from the aforesaid
positions with effect from 6 April 2020. During his appointment,
Mr. Liu was responsible for the overall strategic and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics, China with a bachelor’s
degree in Economics in 1983. He attained a master's degree
in Economics at Renmin University of China in 1987. In 1990,
Mr. Liu joined a scholarship programme in Monetary Policy and
Financial Markets launched by the University of Oxford, the
United Kingdom. Mr. Liu has over 30 years of experience in
finance management.
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M. Liu was a non-executive director and the chairman of the
board of China GEM Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code:
1191) from March 2020 to July 2020. Mr. Liu was the managing
director and chief investment officer of Reorient Financial Group
Limited. Mr. Liu was also the managing director of Reorient
Global Limited (being a subsidiary of Yunfeng Financial Group
Limited (formerly known as Reorient Group Limited) (HKSE Stock
Code: 0376) from July to December 2015. He was the deputy
chairman and president of China Life Insurance (Overseas)
Company Limited from June 2008 to March 2015. Mr. Liu
worked at China Life Insurance Company Limited (“China Life")
(HKSE Stock Code: 2628) and was the board secretary general
and spokesman of China Life between November 2003 and May
2008. He was the general manager of the investment centre
of former China Life between September 2000 and May 2004.
Mr. Liu has been the council member of Hong Kong Institute
of Directors since 2014 and was the deputy chairman of Hong
Kong Institute of Directors from 2014 to 2018. Mr. Liu was a
member of Insurance Advisory Committee of the Government
of HKSAR from 2010 to 2016, a member of Financial Services
Development Council of the Government of HKSAR from 2013
to 2017, a member of the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange from 2010 to 2015. From 2008 to 2015, he was
the executive director of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association.

94 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

BAEER S EF=RETEFtA
BEFEPEERERAD (RGBT
FR LT (EBHZFARMGMAIE 1191)) 2 &
EEIEREFERTEZT - ELEEEHES
MEBERATDZEFHLEREEREE
R _E—AFtAE+ZRB BEETZE
Reorient Global Limited ( EAZE#RESHERS
RAB (RiBInRERBBRAR) (BHEMM
BR1D1KSE 1 0376) ZHBAR) 2 EHAKIE
RIEENEABE_S—HE=R HAR
BASRE (8% RNDBRABZAIEER
ROH - BAEESTHNPEAASRERNOE
Rasl (TFEAE)) (BFEBPIRMDANR
2628) "R ZEE=F+—HEZZETZE/\FH
BHEATBEASEETZMERTEES A
R _EEEFEANBE_STNFELBHM
T%TEHIJ¢E]\%§$E%¢U?E?§@ 2qkE
B MFEASBES2g 288 N
T-—NEFEECZ _/\E;\é}r%%§$ g2 8
FREBNEENR I ZEFEEZE—READ
ARITHERNREZHAEZEEEZE T
——FEIZtFEEEESHERRZ
BRI E—EFEEE-AEGBETHIFN
ETHEEgZHE - R_BEENEE_T—F
FORADTBPELERGZHITES



On 8 March 2016, the Company entered into a service
agreement with Mr. Liu on his appointment as an executive
Director, Chairman, Chief Executive Officer for a term of three
years commencing on 22 March 2016. The term is renewable
automatically for successive term of three years on the same
terms and conditions, unless notified by either party in writing
of its decision not to renew the agreement. Such agreement
may be terminated by either party as agreed which should not
exceed one year. He is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to the Company’s New Bye Laws. His remuneration
will be approved by the Board subject to the authority granted
by the Shareholders to authorise the Board to fix the Directors’
remuneration at the annual general meeting of the Company
with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the
Company and the prevailing market situation and shall be
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.

Mr. Liu's service agreement was renewed automatically for
successive term of three years on the same terms and conditions
therein on 22 March 2019. Subsequently, he entered into a
supplemental agreement with the Company on 28 June 2019 to
change some conditions in relation to his basic salary, fixed and
discretionary bonus and Share Award Scheme under the clause
of remuneration and benefits which had been reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee of the Board and approved by the
Board with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the
Company and the prevailing market situation. Save as disclosed
above, the other clauses in the service agreement remain
unchanged.

Under the employment agreement with Mr. Liu, he was entitled
to receive an annual remuneration of HK$1,346,000 and an
annual discretionary bonus subject to the approval of the
Board for the period from 1 January 2020 to 5 April 2020. The
remuneration and benefits were determined with reference to
Mr. Liu’s past working experience, duties and responsibilities
with the Company and the prevailing market situation.
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Mr. Liu remains as a key management personnel of the
Company and director of many subsidiaries of the Company.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than
the relationship arising from being an executive Director,
the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the
Company and the chairman and member of the Executive
Committee before he tendered his resignation with effect from
6 April 2020, Mr. Liu does not have any relationships with any
other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders,
or controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. Details of Mr. Liu's interests or deemed
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 6 April 2020
have been disclosed in this annual report on page 109 under the
section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares”. There are no other matters concerning Mr. Liu that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor any
information required to be disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok™)

Mr. Cheok (alias: Peter), aged 69, is an executive Director who
tendered his resignation as the deputy chairman of the Board
and a member of the Executive Committee with effect from 6
April 2020. He is the founder of the Group.

Mr. Cheok has over 30 years of experience in the PCBs industry
and is also involved in the business of real estate development in
China, and other high-tech products.

Mr. Cheok had held the positions of financial controller and
various management positions in different multinational
companies involved in computer related products, application
systems, motor vehicles and agricultural equipment, ship
repairing and oil-rig construction, business-form printing and
PCBs manufacturing. Mr. Cheok has been a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1980,
a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants since 1981 and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since 1990.
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Mr. Cheok entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 30 May 2002 for an initial fixed term of three years and
shall continue thereafter for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day immediately following the
expiry of the then current terms of the service agreement.
Such agreement may be terminated by either party by giving
not less than six months’ written notice to the other party.
He is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to the New
Bye Laws of the Company. His remuneration and performance
bonus was approved by the Board subject to the authority
granted by the Shareholders to authorise the Board to fix the
Directors’ remuneration at the annual general meeting of the
Company with reference to his duties and responsibilities with
the Company and the prevailing market situation and shall be
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.
Under the employment agreement with Mr. Cheok, he was
entitled to receive an annual remuneration of HK$5,426,000
including the housing benefits in kind for the Year.

Prior to 15 January 2016, Mr. Cheok was one of the substantial
Shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules), a director and
a shareholder of Inni International Inc. which was also one of
the substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheok had not held any other
position with the Company or other members of the Group
and he had not held any other directorships in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years. Other
than the relationship arising from being an executive Director
(and being the deputy chairman of the Board and a member
of the Executive Committee befor he tendered his resignation
with effect from 6 April 2020), Mr. Cheok does not have any
relationships with any other Directors and senior management,
substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Cheok has no interest or deemed interest and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and there are no other matters
concerning Mr. Cheok that need to be brought to the attention
of the Shareholders nor any information required to be disclosed
pursuant to sub-paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Mr. Shan Yongxin (“Mr. Shan”)
Mr. Shan, aged 41,
member of the Executive Committee. He joined the Group on
30 August 2019.

is an executive Director of the Board and a

Mr. Shan obtained a Master’s degree in Economics from Central
University of Finance and Economics, the PRC in June 2004. He
was granted the qualification as a chartered financial analyst
("CFA") by CFA Institute certified by the Occupational Skill
Testing Authority of Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC in March 2010 and was registered as a
non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since September 2011.

Mr. Shan has over 15 years of working experience in corporate
finance, merger and acquisition, audit consulting and financial
management. From August 2004 to July 2011, Mr. Shan worked
with PricewaterhouseCoopers in Beijing. He was a departmental
manager prior to leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers in Beijing.
Mr. Shan then served with PricewaterhouseCoopers in New
Zealand during the period from August 2011 to July 2014. He
was a senior manager prior to leaving PricewaterhouseCoopers
in New Zealand. From December 2014 to April 2016, Mr. Shan
was the finance-in-charge officer of Anbang Insurance Group
(USA). During the period from April 2016 to September 2018,
Mr. Shan worked with Beijing Orient Landscape & Environment
Co., Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002310).
subsidiaries and was a vice-president of one of its various
subsidiaries before he left. Since March 2019, Mr. Shan has
been serving as the vice president of Eternal Glory Holdings
Limited, a substantial Shareholder of the Company.

He had served in its various
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On 30 August 2019, the Company entered into a service
contract with Mr. Shan on his appointments as an executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee for an
initial term of three years commencing from 30 August 2019.
The term is renewable automatically for successive term of
three years on the same terms and conditions, unless not less
than thirty days’ notice given by either party in writing of its
decision not to renew the agreement. Such agreement may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
written notice to the other party. He is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company pursuant to the Company’s New Bye Laws.
His remuneration was approved by the Board subject to the
authority granted by the Shareholders to authorise the Board to
fix the Directors’ remuneration at the annual general meeting
of the Company with reference to his duties and responsibilities
with the Company and the prevailing market situation and shall
be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to
time. Under the employment agreement with Mr. Shan, he was
entitled to an annual remuneration of HK$2,893,000 per annum
for the Year.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Shan had not held any other
position with the Company or other members of the Group
and he had not held any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other
than the relationship arising from being an executive Director
of the Board and a member of the Executive Committee, Mr.
Shan does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Shan has no interest or
deemed interest and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and
there are no other matters concerning Mr. Shan that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor any
information required to be disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Non-executive Director

Mr. Li Yongjun (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 52, is a non-executive Director of the Board and
was appointed as Chairman with effect from 6 April 2020. He
joined the Group on 30 August 2019.

Mr. Li obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in the PRC in September 2008. He obtained a qualification
certificate as a senior engineer in the PRC in July 2001.

Mr. Li has over 20 years’ working experience in enterprise
strategic decision making and corporate management. He is
currently the president of Yongxinhua Holding Group Co., Ltd.
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Yongxinhua Holding").
Mr. Li founded the Yongxinhua Holding in 2003, which is an
integrated and multipurpose corporation and a co-partner of
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation
(UNESCO) in the world intangible cultural heritage industry.
Its principal activities include equity investment in financial
institutions, cultural industry integration and innovation
development, development and construction of cultural industry
park and protection of intangible cultural heritage. Since May
2018, Mr. Li has been serving as an executive director and
vice chairman of the board of directors of Crown International
Corporation Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 727).
Mr. Li was the chief executive officer of Crown International
Corporation Limited from July 2018 to March 2019.

Mr. Li is also the Asia chairman of the Global Hope Coalition,
the vice chairman of the “Belt and Road” Silk Road Planning
Researching Center, the vice chairman of the China Industry
University Research Collaboration Association and the vice
chairman of the China Intangible Cultural Heritage Protection
Association.
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On 30 August 2019, the Company entered into a service
contract with Mr. Li on his appointment as a non-executive
Director for an initial term of three years commencing from 30
August 2019, which is renewable automatically for successive
term of three years on the same terms and conditions, unless it
is terminable by either party by giving to the other one month’s
prior notice in writing. He is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
pursuant to the Company’s New Bye Laws. His remuneration
was approved by the Board subject to the authority granted by
the Shareholders to authorize the Board to fix the Directors’
remuneration at the annual general meeting of the Company
with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the
Company and the prevailing market situation and shall be
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee from time to time.
Under the employment agreement with Mr. Li, he was entitled
to receive an annual remuneration of HK$600,000 for the Year.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than
the relationship arising from being a non-executive Director,
(and the Chairman of the Board since 6 April 2020), Mr. Li
does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Details of Mr. Li's interest or
deemed interest and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at
31 December 2020 have been disclosed in this annual report
on page 109 under the section headed “Directors’ Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares”
concerning Mr. Li that need to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders nor any information required to be disclosed
pursuant to sub-paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

. There are no other matters
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

INEDs

Mr. Ng Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”)

Mr. Ng, aged 69, is an INED. He joined the Group on 22
March 2016. He is currently the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ng graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
an attendance certificate in banking. Mr. Ng has been senior
management in banking industry of Hong Kong for 28 years. He
was appointed as the managing director and general manager
of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 1992 and the vice-
chairman and chief executive of Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited in 2001. He retired from Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited in 2012. Mr. Ng was a member of the council of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University from 1999 to 2003 and
was a member of Fujian Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference from 1993 to 2013.
Mr. Ng served as a business consultant of China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holdings Limited from January
2014 to April 2015 and a non-executive director of Roma
Group Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 8072) from August 2017 to
December 2017. He has been appointed as the chairman of the
supervisory board of Well Link Bank in Macau since 31 March
2018.

Mr. Ng is currently the INED of Fujian Holdings Limited
(HKSE Stock Code: 181) since June 2014, the INED of ELL
Environmental Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1395)
since September 2014 and the INED of Green Future Food
Hydrocolloid Marine Science Company Limited (HKSE Stock
Code: 1084) since September 2019. Mr. Ng was the INED of
Guoan International Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 143) from
March 2016 to February 2021 and the INED of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 755) from May 2017 to
January 2021.

102 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

BiERITES

BXHIEE (TB5EL))

REE IR ABUFNTESE KNS
—ANEFEZRZH+ZHMAREE REFHFME
BEgIFE BEZEZEENEMARERLREZESN
é\o
RELEREAETIASZERBRTEHRE R
RETEBRTEEBSEFNSRAEEEL
o REEN— NN _EESZEAERETAE
BABEHREERBKIE TN _ST— 5%
ZEAERBITARRBBIEFERITHAEH
BR-E——FEERIBITERABRK R
EER—NANEE_SE=-FHBETSE
BEIREREEHNERBE—NAN=ZFEZ
T -——FETPFEARBAEERRESRD
ZEERB-RALENRE—OFE—AZEC
Z—HFNBHETREEAFEEBIE (B &
BRERABDXEBERER_ZE—tHEN\BE
—E—tE+_BEIREEEEBRLAR (&
HEFTARMA S 0 8072) MUIEMITES - 8
“E-N\FZA=t+—HE  HEZEAEM
URBIRITEEGEFo

RESEH - OERBRETEABIZERE
RAB) (BHBBZFARMAIE - 181) B IE
BITESE H-_T—UFAARBETARIER
ERERAR (BB FARKRMMAIE - 1395)
NBIUFERTEERHA_ST—NFNLBIRLE
EEFHKBEESEINEERAR EEBHR
FRB& AR - 1084) MBI IFHITES - 2%
A EBR_E—R"E-BE_ET”-_—F_H#E
EREZEREERAR (EBBRAARKRG AR
143) WBUIERTTES KR _E—tFHA
EER_—F—HAEILEIIAEHMERR
NE) (BABRATRMAASE : 755) EILIER

7z

TESE o



Mr. Ng had signed a letter of appointment with the Company
as an INED for an initial term of three years effective from 22
March 2016. The term is renewable automatically for successive
terms of three years each commencing from the next day after
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by the INED or the Company expiring at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter. He is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company pursuant to the New Bye Laws of the Company.

Mr. Ng was entitled to a director’s fee of HK$220,000 for the
Year. The director’s fee payable to Mr. Ng was approved by the
Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders to
authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ng had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than
the relationship arising from being an INED, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee,
Mr. Ng does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ng has no interest or deemed
interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and there are no
other matters concerning Mr. Ng that need to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders nor any information required to be
disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (“Mr. Lau”)

Mr. Lau, aged 49, is an INED. He joined the Group on 22 March
2016. He is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Lau is currently a practising certified public accountant
in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK. Mr. Lau graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration in 1994 and obtained a master’s degree
in corporate finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2007.

Mr. Lau joined BBMG Corporation on 6 August 2008 as joint
company secretary and qualified accountant. Since 26 October
2012, Mr. Lau has been serving as the company secretary of
BBMG Corporation.

Before joining BBMG Corporation, Mr. Lau served as the
group financial controller and qualified accountant of Founder
Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 418) and Peking University
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (HKSE Stock Code:
618), both companies being listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is an executive director of Future
World Financial Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange) (HKSE Stock Code: 572). Mr. Lau is an
INED of each of Artini Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code:
789) and Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (HKSE Stock
Code: 1192), shares of both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, respectively. Mr. Lau was
an INED of Alltronics Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code:
833) from March 2017 to December 2018 and Winto Group
(Holdings) Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 8238) from April 2019
to November 2019. Mr. Lau has been appointed as the INED
of Sinopharm Tech Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 8156)
since January 2020, whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and appointed as the INED of China Energine
International (Holdings) Limited (HKSE Stock Code: 1185) since
March 2020, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau has been appointed as the company
secretary of HM International Holdings Limited (HKSE Stock
Code: 8416), whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, with effect from 14 August 2020. From November
2018 to November 2020, Mr. Lau had been the INED of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited whose shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (HKSE Stock Code: 1219)
before the delisting in November 2020.

104 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

BNZELE (IB)7EL))
B 495 BBUFHTEF KN _-F
—RNEZAZTHMALXER -REEXZ

LZEEIE - RLEEEMERFTMEE TN
So
BAEERAEBNE DS RRERFFAR

SEEIAEERGE - FREN—NNUEE
%ﬁfﬂi%ﬁ(fﬁ BEImEES &MU Wi
ZELFERNREREIARABCXETREBR T
B

BAEER_SENENBNRNEMAILREE
EBRNARAE EEMELAINEREE

g5t -BZFE-—"F+AZ+/HE F
FEEEAILREBERRNDABRATZAF
WE o

MALRESBEERMDBRATR  B&E
BHEZERBRAT (EBH TR AR :
418) RIEAER (R BIRAE (BEBHF
R SE 618) 2EBMBEEREGERE
STET > ZM B AT R Fr £k 2o 24
Eaauﬁiﬁ,%kﬁ%%nﬁﬁﬁyﬁ@” (B Bt

RErENRLET) (FEABFTRMASE 572)
zzn’—%$ RIEENREIRREEBREREA

B (BEBHTRMDAS  789) RRWAILE
@ﬁﬁﬁ’&? (EBABFIRMMAS 1192) 2
BIUFERTES LR AT ZRMOEPEER
FiEfR thm - B E—tEFE=ZBE_ZE—/\&F
T A B REAENRDERAE (FEBH
REFIRDASR : 833) X BUERITEE KRB
TE-NENBRE_ZE-hE+—EBEAEMH
£5E8 (ER) BRAD (BBBIMRMHMAIE:
8238) 2 BIUERNITEFT FHEB_T_F
FE-PREZTARENERHERLT (F
BEIFRIRD NS - 8156) 2 BILIFEHITE
B ZABRMNBRFAAIERLETREZS
TEE-RREEZTATEMRXERRAR (£
E) BERAR (HEEBHMIMRMMAIE:1185) B
B ERITES  ZARRBRFrER LT
BIEETEZTATIMNEERERIZRERAT
(BEBHMFARMHARSE : 8416) 2 AT ME >
ZABIRMP BRI ER EHUER T
ZENB+EUBAEM - B_E—NE+—HBZE
TETEF+—F B ETRERRER
BERABZEBIIFNTES  ZRBE_STZ
EE+—HBEMZARBXFAERLET (FE
G FTRR A 1LSR 0 1219) ©



Mr. Lau had signed a letter of appointment with the Company
as an INED for an initial term of three years effective from 22
March 2016. The term of INED is renewable automatically for
successive terms of three years each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by the INED or the Company expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. He is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company pursuant to the New Bye Laws of the
Company.

Mr. Lau was entitled to a director’s fee of HK$220,000 for the
Year. The director’s fee payable to Mr. Lau was approved by the
Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders to
authorise the Board to fix the Directors’
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration

remuneration at the

Committee from time to time.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lau had not held any other position
with the Company or other members of the Group and he
had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than the
relationship arising from being an INED, the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Lau
does not have any relationships with any other Directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders, or controlling
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Lau has no interest or
deemed interest and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and
there are no other matters concerning Mr. Lau that need
to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders nor any
information required to be disclosed pursuant to sub-paragraphs
(h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERS

Mr. Mak Kwok Kei (“Mr. Mak”)

Mr. Mak (alias: Eric), aged 35, is an INED. He joined the Group
on 17 July 2018. He is currently the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Mak has over ten years of experience in securities sales and
trading and capital markets advisory at various international
investment banks, specialising in initial public offerings and
capital fund raising for companies in Hong Kong and China.
He worked as a trainee in Credit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bank (Hong Kong Branch), a financial services
company, where he was mainly engaged in transacting various
high grade corporate and government bonds with central
banks in Asia, from September 2009 to November 2010. He
also worked at Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited, a
financial services company, as associate where he was mainly
engaged in both primary and secondary equity fund raising
activities for listed companies and high-net-worth individuals
in Asia, from November 2010 to August 2015. From October
2015 to June 2018, he has served as a managing director and
head of equity capital markets in Zhongtai International Capital
Limited, a corporate finance advisory company. He is primarily
responsible for providing capital markets advisory services to
clients and operating and managing the equity capital markets
franchise. Since January 2019, he has served as member of
executive committee and head of investment banking division
of Soochow Securities International Capital Limited (formerly
known as China Investment Securities (Hong Kong) Financial
Holdings Limited). He is in charge of the investment banking
division, including IPO sponsoring, debt and equity fund raising
and financial advisory.

Mr. Mak has been a limited partner in WI Harper Fund VIiI
LP, which is mainly engaged in venture capital investments in
healthcare and technology sectors, since May 2016.

Mr. Mak is currently an INED of Lapco Holdings Limited (HKSE

Stock Code: 8472), whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Mak obtained a bachelor degree with first class honour in
applied business management from Imperial College London,
United Kingdom in August 2008 and subsequently obtained
a master degree in philosophy from University of Cambridge,
United Kingdom in October 2009.

Mr. Mak had signed a letter of appointment with the Company
as an INED for an initial term of three years effective from 17
July 2018. The term of INED is renewable automatically for
successive terms of three years each commencing from the next
day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by the INED or the Company expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. He is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company pursuant to the New Bye Laws of the
Company.

Mr. Mak was entitled to a director’s fee of HK$220,000 for the
Year. The director’s fee payable to Mr. Mak was approved by
the Board subject to the authority granted by the Shareholders
to authorise the Board to fix the Directors’ remuneration at the
annual general meeting of the Company with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing
market situation and shall be reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee from time to time.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Mak had not held any other
position with the Company or other members of the Group and
he had not held any directorship in any other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years. Other than the
relationship arising from being an INED, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, Mr. Mak does
not have any relationships with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Mak has no interest or deemed interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), and there are no other matters relating
to Mr. Mak that need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders, nor any information required to be disclosed
pursuant to sub— paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above under the heading “Biographical Details
of Directors”, none of the Directors has or is proposed to have
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND EQUITY-
SETTLED SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
BENEFITS, AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration and equity-settled share-based
compensation benefits of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director or an entity connected with a Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which any member of the Group was a
party subsisting during the Year or as at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business
apart from the Group’s business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye law 164 of the New Bye Laws and subject to
the provisions permitted by the Companies Ordinance, every
Director, or, other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he may
incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his
office. The permitted indemnity provision made by the Company
for the benefit of the Directors and other officers of the
Company is in force.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

1.

Directors’ interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they have taken, or are deemed to have taken,
under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were set
out below:

The Company
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2 5]

Percentage to

Nature of Number of total issued
Name of Director Capacity interest held ordinary shares share capital
BT
E5HA &1 EmtE FrisE @R 8 e RRAEB DL
Mr. Li Yongjun Interests of Long position 624,960,000 28.30%
corporation
controlled
FKERE REEMEEZ A 624,960,000 28.30%
R

Mr. Liu Tingan, a former executive Director, held
36,306,000 shares in long position as beneficial owner,
representing approximately 1.64% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 6 April 2020 (i.e. the date of
his resignation).

AT ERIELRENR S -TFMNE
B7 B (BPEFEHHA) £536,306,000%F
BERGD AEREE N GHEBTRAN
1.64% °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions they have
taken, or are deemed to have taken, under such provisions
of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Interests in Share Options of the
Company

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Company’s
Directors held share options of the Company because the
Company’s share option scheme had been expired on 30
May 2012.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions in Shares:

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
every person, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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FEZEMATH R_E_TF+_A
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Number of Percentage to

Nature of ordinary total issued

Name of shareholders Notes Capacity interest shares held share capital
He®T

RERBTE M Bip HEEE FrfsEE iR & B RAEBSL
Eternal Glory Holdings Limited (1) Beneficial owner Long position 624,960,000 28.30%

("Eternal Glory")
KHEEBARAR (KIEERE)) (1) BmBEBA FA 624,960,000 28.30%
Mr. Li Yongjun (“Mr. Li") (1) Interests of corporation  Long position 624,960,000 28.30%
controlled

FxERE (MFEXE) (1) MREGREEZ#EED A 624,960,000 28.30%
Ms. Liu Xinjun (“Ms. Liu") (1) Interest of spouse Long position 624,960,000 28.30%
ZFmERL (ML) (1) EBz#E=m A 624,960,000 28.30%
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Number of Percentage to

Nature of ordinary total issued

Name of shareholders Notes Capacity interest shares held share capital

e 8T

IR iz &9 BEME FrFgERHEEa RANE Lt

Youfu Investment Co., Ltd. (“Youfu”) (2)  Beneficial owner Long position 340,192,957 15.41%

BREEEARAR (MERE)) 2) BmBEAA Fa 340,192,957 15.41%

Mr. Sun Mingwen (2)  Interests of corporation Long position 340,192,957 15.41%
controlled

BB L (2) MREREEZ#ED Fa 340,192,957 15.41%

Zhisheng Enterprise Investment Co., (3)  Beneficial owner Long position 170,097,333 7.70%

Ltd. (“Zhisheng”)

BHEERERRRE (MG (3) BmBEAA Fa 170,097,333 7.70%

Mr. Zhu Yanbin (3)  Interests of corporation  Long position 170,097,333 7.70%
controlled

KEWMAEE (3) MEEHEERZ#EER wa 170,097,333 7.70%
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Notes:

On 30 March 2020, Eternal Glory (through a broker) acquired a
total of 264,960,000 Shares, representing approximately 12%
of the total issued Shares, from Youfu at an average price of
HK$0.30 per Share. Upon completion of the aforesaid acquisition,
Eternal Glory remained as a substantial Shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules). Ms. Liu is the spouse of Mr. Li. Prior to 26
August 2020, Eternal Glory has owned as to 50% by Mr. Li and
as to 50% by Ms. Liu. On 26 August 2020, Ms. Liu disposed of
50% of the total issued shares of Eternal Glory to Mr. Li at a
consideration of HK$5,000. Upon completion of the aforesaid
disposal, Mr. Li holds the entire issued shares of Eternal Glory
and becomes its sole shareholder. Thus, Mr. Li is deemed to be
interested in the 624,960,000 Shares, representing approximately
28.30% of the total issued Shares, held by Eternal Glory. Ms. Liu,
being Mr. Li's spouse, is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Mr. Li by virtue of the SFO.

On 30 March 2020, Youfu disposed of 264,960,000 Shares,
representing approximately 12% of the total issued Shares, to
Eternal Glory at an average price of HK$0.30 per Share. Upon
completion of the aforesaid disposal, Youfu ceased to be a
controlling Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) but
remained as a substantial Shareholder. Subsequently, Youfu
continued to dispose of 105,000,000 Shares, 100,000,000 Shares
and 92,164,000 Shares, representing approximately 13.46%
in total of the total issued Shares, to independent third parties
at an average price of HK$0.30 per Share on 17 April 2020, 6
May 2020 and 13 May 2020 respectively. Upon completion of
the aforesaid disposals, Youfu still remained as a substantial
Shareholder. Mr. Sun Mingwen is the beneficial owner of
the entire issued share capital of Youfu and is deemed to be
interested in the 340,192,957 Shares, representing approximately
15.41% of the total issued Shares, held by Youfu under the SFO.

Mr. Zhu Yanbin is the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Zhisheng and is deemed to be interested in the
170,097,333 Shares, representing approximately 7.70% of the
total issued Shares, held by Zhisheng under the SFO.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December
2020 which would materially affect the Group’s operating and
financial performance as of the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited, the
Company'’s retiring external auditor, and being eligible, who will
offer themselves for re-appointment, would be proposed for the
consideration, and if thought fit, to be approved by members at
the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

have been audited by BDO Limited and reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

On behalf of the Board

Li Yongjun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RENCO HOLDINGS GROUP
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Renco
Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as HKBridge Financial
Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 123 to 289, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a
consolidated net loss of approximately HK$1,029,974,000
during the year ended 31 December 2020. As stated in Note
3(b), this condition, along with other matters as set forth in
Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of loans to associates, note
receivables and loan receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had loans to associates
of approximately HK$299,596,000, note receivables of
HK$170,301,000 and loan receivables of approximately
HK$1,261,210,000. Provision for impairment of
HK$582,019,000 in aggregate has been recognised on these
balances as at 31 December 2020.

Assessing impairment of these balances is a subjective area
as it requires application of judgement and uses of estimates.
Judgement is applied in assessing the risk of default of
the underlying borrowers, which include assessment on
creditworthiness, repayment history and days past due
information of the underlying borrowers. Estimates are also
required in assessing the recoverable amount of collaterals of
credit-impaired receivables.
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We have identified impairment assessment of these balances as $ER TR ERFT Ml E PG FF B H BB 2
a key audit matter due to considerable amount of judgement Z|EAKFTISEMNSEGATEEN  ESEH
being required and high level of estimation uncertainty involved ZEEGINBETEREL —BEEETE
in conducting impairment assessment as mentioned in the I8e°

foregoing paragraph.

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4(h) B2 iz M BRERM T4 (IFFHE A D 5t
(i), critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 5(iv) BEUSREEE - MIsE5(iv)PR & E K2 sHE 5T R I Ef
and disclosure of management’s impairment assessment of R MIEE40(iFFIEHEEBMMAETHE AT 2
loans to associates, note receivables and loan receivables in note EFH B ZHELEK SR Z B ET G2

40(iii) to the consolidated financial statements. 2o

Our response: EENEEAE

Our procedures in relation to management’'s impairment BEMEEEH LM GRNBRETERTH

assessment on these balances included: BFeEEUTFE:

e Evaluating management’s impairment assessment o (I EEEEBH EMEHENELNRRNE
on the default risk of these balances by challenging Bt EREEEHREESHELE
management’s views of probability of default events of MNEHAIBEMERER o
amounts outstanding.

e  Challenging management's view of risk of default and loss e« HREEEBH LMEHNENRAKRKE
given default of these balances by: %’\JJES?EE’\J&E%%E PHITUTRER !

- performing background search of the underlying — HEMEERNETEERASE;
borrowers;

- evaluating other evidences including financial — FEEEEAGRAMBER A
information, day past due information and credit HHEER KRERTRITIARNEM
rating of the underlying borrowers available; RAERE

-  evaluating the appropriateness of methodology and — AEHEEZFEXRBEIT > FT{G 5t KT
assumptions adopted in estimating the fair value of mATERMMERAAEZRBRENEG
the collaterals with the assistance of our valuation Pl
specialists;

—  questioning management’s knowledge of future — ﬁmfiTﬁ@Tﬁﬁgéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
conditions that may impact expected receipts from AN TEHA R BI R SR 1B M

the underlying borrowers.

e Assessing the disclosures of the quantitative and qualitative o IEEREMNER LAEGREERRHN
considerations in relation to credit risks on these balances, EEEREMERZ IRZERELAETEY
by comparing these disclosures to our understanding of EIENTEMEHL-
the matter.

“EIEFESFR MEEREEARAE 17



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I8 1L A% BT R S

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$283,971,000.

In carrying out the impairment review, management has
concluded that there is no impairment in respect of the
property, plant and equipment. This conclusion was based on
a value in use model that required significant management
judgement with respect to the discount rate and underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth.

We have identified impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment as a key audit matter due to considerable
amount of judgement and estimation being required in
conducting impairment assessment as mentioned in the
foregoing paragraph.

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4(p),
critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 5(ii) and
disclosure of property, plant and equipment in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our response:
Our audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment included:

e  Assessing management’s identification of cash generating
units based on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group's businesses.

o Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology
adopted by management.

o Comparing the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow projections.

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including long term growth rate and discount rate) based
on our knowledge of the business and industry.

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidences, such as

approved budgets and considering the reasonableness of
these budgets.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

If, based on the work

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I8 1L A% BT R S

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I8 1L A% BT R S

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Pak Tak Lun

Practising Certificate Number P06170

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

122 Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

HREFBEENFRT ESHREMESEY
TG EMBRENEARAHER  IFERE
SHERERIFEARZEZRAAFRAREZREFS
B HEBBEFERNBERT  ESUAFHER
A SERHAENNERRRKEBBRAR
BZEFENNEMAEERS PERABILSE
DA E BB R & B (F R -

ERIUGESEHMEHBMBRAR
HEEZ 1A

HiE

HEFERTP06170

BB T —F=A"+NH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e mKREMEENE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TE+_H=1+—HIEEE

2020 2019
ST E —E-AEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iog=a FHET FAET
Revenue A 7 277,575 208,941
Cost of sales & p A (417,472) (388,026)
Gross loss F18 (139,897) (179,085)
Other income HAug A 8 20,525 36,040
Other gains and losses Hihlham K k518 9 (345,149) (62,817)
Impairment loss on trade receivables £ 5 FEUWER T~ BB 18 23 (28,166) (34,968)
Impairment loss on other receivables EL fth & UL T IE Z B (& &5 18 40(iii) (19,805) (10,145)
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWE R Z REEIE 24 (222,327) (118,256)
Impairment loss on note receivables FEURZ i 7 BB 18 25 (37,822) (22,014)
Selling and distribution costs HE Ko 8 A A (19,058) (19,680)
Administrative expenses TR (98,111) (124,270)
Finance costs MEEA 10 (74,855) (79,212)
Share of results of associates HME RN 2B 19 (9,994) 10,996
Share of results of joint ventures hEEhEEE 20 (62,327) 811
Loss before income tax PREFISIRIESR (ZH)
credit/(expense) BIES18 11 (1,036,986) (602,600)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fri8fige, () 15 7,012 (56,086)
Loss for the year TEFEERE (1,029,974) (658,686)
Other comprehensive income Hthz2muka=
Items that may be reclassified HEBAEWPEEEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HE
Exchange differences arising on MBBINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations bE 7 A= 63,222 (27,464)
Share of other comprehensive EHEREZ
income of associates Hihemia 27,388 (16,239)
90,610 (43,703)
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CONSOLIDATED. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmaHE M2 E W E R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_S_BE+_A=+-HLEE

2020 2019
—EZEHE —E-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt FHET FA7T
Item that will not be reclassified BATEFHDEFIEEZ
to profit or loss: 1=
(Loss)/gain on revaluation of ME-BERKREZ
property, plant and equipment B (B518) W& 17 (3,543) 2,955
Income tax effect FTisi s & 30 886 (739)
(2,657) 2,216
Other comprehensive income for the Zs4EE E fth % F W&
year, net of tax MR IE 87,953 (41,487)
Total comprehensive income SEEREWNEEEE
for the year (942,021) (700,173)
Loss for the year attributable to: M TATEGERFEEEIS :
Owners of the Company PiN/NSTEZ =N (1,029,974) (658,619)
Non-controlling interests JFERR S - (67)
(1,029,974) (658,686)
Total comprehensive income UTATEEZEKE
attributable to: HaEE
Owners of the Company KREHER A (942,021) (700,106)
Non-controlling interests RS - (67)
(942,021) (700,173)
Loss per share sKREE 16
Basic =N HK(46.65) cents  HK(29.83) cents
AL A
Diluted e HK(46.65) cents  HK(29.83) cents

Al

A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI R

As at 31 December 2020
et S Rl oo

2020 2019
—EZEH —_E-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiok=3 FET TAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBER&E 17 283,971 280,555
Right-of-use assets FRESE 18 14,309 20,670
Interests in associates N A= YNEIA 19 506,060 473,672
Interests in joint ventures REeEtHEr#En 20 109,949 172,276
Rental and utility deposits HER AZRMEE 65 64
Financial assets at fair value BATESABRZ
through profit or loss THMEE 21 4,266 4,266
Goodwill e 37 - -
Deposits paid [SEDE & 1,684 1,758
Deferred tax assets RIERMIBE E 30 57,920 50,145
Total non-current assets IERBE ERE 978,224 1,003,406
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories EE 22 55,219 56,341
Trade receivables 8B 7 EURER 23 151,576 226,519
Prepayments, deposits and other ANRE TR
receivables HAh W I 23 132,198 312,656
Loan receivables EWE™R 24 1,261,210 1,363,967
Note receivables FE U 45 25 170,301 1,184,960
Financial assets at fair value BATESABRZ
through profit or loss THMEE 21 173,133 329,589
Bank balances and deposits IRTTAE R R IF RN 26 28,464 19,449
Total current assets BB EMAE 1,972,101 3,493,481
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CONSOLIDATED. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BIRAR

As at 31 December 2020
KoBoBE+—H=+H

2020 2019
—ECEHF —EF—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz FHET FAEIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEaE
Trade payables B 5 B IRM 27 137,586 113,319
Other payables and accruals HME B EE A 27 211,429 245,423
Tax payable FETFRIE 278,308 215,133
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 4,313 8,767
Borrowings BE 28 337,797 968,256
Loan from a related party RE— GBS Z2EM 29 2,800 -
Loans from directors KEEZEZEX 29 119,465 91,055
Total current liabilities MENBEEE 1,091,698 1,641,953
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEESE 880,403 1,851,528
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERTBERE
LIABILITIES 1,858,627 2,854,934
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERENEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 7.369 9,660
Borrowings ot 28 656,130 660,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 30 5,937 6,492
Total non-current liabilities ERENEBEEE 669,436 676,152
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,189,191 2,178,782
Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2020
e ke s e S

2020 2019
ST HE —E-AEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kz FAET TET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRI E
Share capital fg 7 37 220,800 220,800
Reserves o] 32 968,391 1,910,412
Equity attributable to owners of the AT A AELER
Company 1,189,191 2,131,212
Non-controlling interests JETEREm 36 = 47,570
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,189,191 2,178,782
On behalf of the Board of Directors
RERESE
Shan Yongxin Lau Fai Lawerence
ERE IES
Director Director
EE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MOEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_TTE+_H=1+—HIEE

Equity
Share-based attributable
compensation Property to owners Non-
Share Share benefits ~ Contributed  revaluation  Translation Statutory  Accumulated ofthe  controlling Total
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Company interests equity
HgH
BERY S FRAREA

ke ROGEE FMENEE RSB 0 EREE 0 MEBE  iRER ZHER  BUER  eRER ERAR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Fin Fin TiEn FiEn FiEn TR FEn FEn FEn FEn

Note 31)  (Note 326) ~ (Note 32(6)  (Note 32(c)  (Note 32(a)  (Note 32(e)) Note 32(f)  (Note 32(g)) (Note 36)
W) Wae) W) WE)  (BER)  WEe) B (W) (H2236)

1 January 2019 RZE-7E-F-A 220,800 2,559,569 14,833 19,000 18,233 35153 7335 (28,772) 2,846,151 - 2,846,151
Loss for the year FEEHR - - - - - - - (658,619) (658,619) (67) (658,686)
Items that may be redlassified subsequently B# JTEF 582 ER 2 BH

to profit or foss:

Exchange differences arising on RESNEREL EREE

translation of foreign operations - - - - - (27,464) - - (27,464) - (27,464)

Share of other comprehensive income ~ EEEATZ EH2ENE

of associates - - - - - (16,239) - - (16,239) - (16,239)
Item that may not be redlassified ERFIEN S EEER 2B
subsequently to profit o loss:
(Gain on revaluation of property, ERNE BERREZ NG
plant and equipment - - - - 2216 - - - 2,216 - 2216
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2ERELE - - - - 2216 (43,703) - (658,619) (700,106) (67) (700,173)
Acquistion of a subsidiary (Vote 37) WE-EREAR (W237) - - - - - - - - - 47,637 47,637
Equity-settled share-based BREEEMRNAERZEH

compensation benefits (Note 33) & (#33) - - (14,833) - - - - - (14,833) - (14833)
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-NE+ZAZ+-HR

1 January 2020 Z525F-F-H 220,800 2,559,569 - 19,000 20,449 (8,550) 1335 (687.391) 2131212 41,510 2,178,782
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - = - (1,009974)  (1,029,974) - (1,029,974)
Items that may be redlassified subsequent  B# TTEF 52 R 2BE !

to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on RESNEREL ERER

translation of foreign operations - - - - - 63,222 - - 63,222 - 63,222

Share of other comprehensive income  EEEATZ EH2ENE

of associates = = = = = 27,388 = = 27,388 = 27,388
ltem that will not be redlassified HETEEN T BT ER 2B
subsequently to profit or loss:
Loss on revaluation of property, ERNE BERRELEE
plant and equipment - - - - (2,657) - - - (2,657) - (2,657)
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2ENELE - - - - (2,657) 90,610 - (1029974 (942,021) - (942,021)
Acquisition of additional interest WE-BRELINEMER

in a subsidiary (Note 37) (Ht37) - - - - - - - - - (47,570) (47,570)

At 31 December 2020 RIZ-FE+-A=+-H 220,800 2,559,569 - 19,000 17,192 82,060 7335 (1,717,365 1,189,191 - 1,189,191
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|' = EE% /Il E‘IEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT_TE+_A=+—HILEEE

2020 2019
- —_E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZHAERE
Loss before income tax credit/(expense) FRSMIE®R, (ZH) Al
Et8 (1,036,986) (602,600)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BEKRREITE
equipment 16,152 16,118
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 9,107 9,833
Interest income A EUWA (73,098) (149,971)
Finance costs MEE A 74,855 79,212
Share of results of associates MBS NT 2 2EE 9,994 (10,996)
Share of results of joint ventures EEEREZFEE 62,327 (811)
Fair value loss on equity investments at BATESAB®RZ
fair value through profit or loss REXREZ A TERBIE 256,526 137,584
Equity-settled share-based compensation BmEBEURMN AR
benefits 2 s A) - (14,833)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BERKEZ
equipment E518 1,047 2,809
Investment income arising from HegEhEL
undertaking on a joint venture AEEEZEERA (4,695) (28,715)
Unrealised fair value gain on non-trading FFEERATFESA
purpose financial assets at fair value BHZEMEEZ
through profit or loss FEIF AT E WS = (37,365)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of FE (URBEE) HUm
inventories (387) 1,261
Impairment loss on trade receivables E 5 EWERTUREEE 28,166 34,968
Impairment loss on loan receivables EWE TR EEE 222,327 118,256
Impairment loss on other receivables H W R IE R EE 18 19,805 10,145
Impairment loss on note receivables FEUN E R EE 18 37,822 22,014
Impairment loss on goodwill e R ERE 330,991 17,088
Impairment loss on investment in an REERAERERIE
associate Rt = 1,566
Bad debts written off it 85 1 AR - 81,846
COVID-19 rent concessions MHERESHREEER (898) -
Gain on modification of lease MEERE (574) (104)
Gain on bargain purchase HEEE NG (4,091) -
Gain on extinguishment of loan payables JHBRIET BRI R (4,930) -
Unrealised exchange differences REBIRERER 10,115 13,423
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
R RAER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
B T N e | R

2020 2019
—E°%F —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAT
Operating loss before working capital CEEEHAIZKE
changes k518 (46,425) (299,272)
Increase in rental and utility deposits MERABREEEIEM (1) (6)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (5m) 2,412 (418)
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD - 32,974
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE W BR FRIE 10 (14,560) (34,566)
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables FEURE =R (g R (148,163) 27,742
(Increase)/decrease in equity instruments at BRAFESABTD KA
fair value through profit or loss, net TA (gm ml o $58 (24,344) 344,599
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BRI ® R H A
other receivables & AT BR R L 142,144 210,748
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B SRS, (R 24,267 (17,820)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HMENERR R ESTE B
Ve (102,907) (324,595)
Cash used in operations SEMTAZIRES® (167,577) (60,614)
Tax paid BHRIE (2,090) (6,643)
Interests received 2 U F B 10,527 38,672
Net cash used in operating activities REEHFMAZIRE R (159,140) (28,585)
Cash flows from investing activities BREEHZHERE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVME - BERKRHEZ
plant and equipment P18 18 - 201
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVME -BERSZE (8.661) (15,634)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid B Rl (g 74 (363)
Increase in note receivables FE IR SR IE 0 - (2,910)
Increase in loans to associates FTHEAB ZEMR
= - (86,908)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries G-I YNEIA N - (159,980)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEFAZ
REFHE (8,587) (265,594)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
f‘?@i@%uu@?ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BEZZ e = e

2020 2019
: : —_— 7 > _j_LEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FA7T
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHZHAESRE
Lease payments HEN (9,525) (11,485)
New borrowings g B 467,691 945,629
Borrowings from a director KE—REEZMEXR 21,860 1,000
Borrowings from a related party kB —ERAE A B Z B 1,800 -
Repayment of borrowings BIEEMR (291,967) (713,274)
Repayment of loans from a director M—%EHEERENR - (2,366)
Interests paid BAFR (14,157) (39,551)
Net cash generated from financing MEEEAREZ
activities & PR 175,702 179,953
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HEkHFEEEEY
cash equivalents m o GRo) B8 7,975 (114,226)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F¥ZREKRRESEEY
year 19,449 134,031
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash REKRREFEYZ
and cash equivalents EXxgHmzaE 1,040 (356)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FHRZIRERFELEY
represented by bank balances and cash HIETHEBRRREAR
(Note 26) (Hra226) 28,464 19,449
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL

Renco Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as
HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

On 23 June 2020, the name of the Company has been
changed from “HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited” to
“Renco Holdings Group Limited”.

As at 31 December 2020, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Company has no immediate and
ultimate holding company or ultimate controlling party.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) was involved in

the following activities:

o manufacturing and sale of a broad range of printed
circuit boards (“PCBs”);

J investment and trading of securities and related
treasury activities; and

J advising on securities and asset management services.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants has issued a number of new or amended
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 3, none of
these amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior period. The Group has not early applied any
new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period except for the
amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions. Impact on the applications of these
amended HKFRSs are summarised below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and introduce an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The election to apply the concentration test is made
for each transaction. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business. If the
concentration test is failed, the acquired set of
activities and assets is further assessed based on the
elements of a business.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI EE
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMERRBFRESELN (TEEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") HIREER) (&
(continued)
(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (a) RAAFTIHRETESBUMBRE
(continued) AR (&
Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related EEMBEREERF 165 Z 1557
Rent Concessions o BmEREMEAZE
HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical EBVBREGELNFTI6HELE
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent S EBEEAMBREERSFE16
concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19 WAIMA—IBERINAIITHERE R E 2
pandemic, by including an additional practical HEREETEHESERARAE
expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to elect BomEAMERERERMELEZ
not to account for rent concessions as modifications. MEERZGHERIERA AR ARMHE
The practical expedient applies only to rent BTEER - ZA{THE R EE
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of BRREAFESREERREEESIR
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following BREUTHERGZEEER .

134

criteria are satisfied:

(a) the change in lease payments results in revised (@ MHEMNRZEHEZHEERE
consideration for the lease that is substantially BRES MEEBRRAERER
the same as, or less than, the consideration for BEEFHmp 2 HERERRE
the lease immediately preceding the change; B LR EREFHF2HE

1B

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only by HEEMNHZEMABREEZEZR
payments originally due on or before 30 June AHHERA T —F A=+
2021; and SEEA AN T/ S~

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms (0 HEZHMERKEHGHILIEES
and conditions of the lease. BEH) o

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may ReLtmEEHEE R RBZ

be accounted for in accordance with this practical ATHEREAKR BDEAEABE

expedient, which means the lessee does not need ATfHeEReaRalEBsI 2

to assess whether the rent concession meets the Ex-ABARBERS B BEL

definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply FBleRz HEMBATCHE TR RETT
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the i RIE

rent concession.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020



2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions (continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease
modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised
consideration using a revised discount rate, with the
effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the
practical expedient, the Group is not required to
determine a revised discount rate and the effect of
the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concession occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical
expedient for all rent concessions that meet the
criteria. In accordance with the transitional provisions,
the Group has applied the amendment retrospectively,
and has not restated prior period figure. As the rent
concessions have arisen during the current financial
period, there is no retrospective adjustment to
opening balance of accumulated losses at 1 January
2020 on initial application of the amendment.

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group's consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group's current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 5
(2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause*

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2!

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.
2 Effective for business combinations for which the date

of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.
2 The amendments shall be applied prospectively

to the sale or contribution of assets occurring in
annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 5 (2020) (“HK(IFRIC)-Int
5 (2020)”), Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments
also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets
or services.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence
of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August
2020. The revision to HK(IFRIC)-Int 5 (2020)
updates the wordings in the interpretation to align
with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change
in conclusion and do not change the existing
requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in
the future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

138

issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact that the application of the amendments
will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’
a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly
to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact that the application of the amendments
will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. RMBEREMBHRSEN (TFEHM
BHREER) &

(b) EEMERERERRILKER R

issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at
the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer
applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay
the levy has occurred by the acquisition date. The
amendments also add an explicit statement that
an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future
will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where
there is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction with an associate or joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements in future
periods should such transaction arise.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. RMBEREMBHRSEN (TFEHM
BHREER) &

(b) EEMERERERRILKER R

issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the
old interest rate benchmark with an alternative
benchmark rate as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The amendments
complement those issued in November 2019 and
relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in
which an entity will not have to derecognise or
adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments
for changes required by the Reform, but will
instead update the effective interest rate to reflect
the change to the alternative benchmark rate; (b)
hedge accounting in which an entity will not have
to discontinue its hedge accounting solely because
it makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future
will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

142

issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition
to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify
the fees included in the 10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements
by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how lease
incentives are illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows
when measuring the fair value of a biological
asset using a present value technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future
will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules” and the "Stock
Exchange”).

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the lockdown measures imposed by governments
in various countries to control the spreading of
COVID-19 pandemic had resulted in reduced overseas
sales of PCBs and delayed repayments from corporate
borrowers in general. These have negatively impacted
the results of the Group during the reporting period
and the liquidity position.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded consolidated net loss of approximately
HK$1,029,974,000 and had net cash flows used
in operating activities of HK$159,140,000. As at
31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$28,464,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (continued)
The directors of the Company consider the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and financial obligations as and when
they fall due, and accordingly, are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis after taking into
consideration of the followings:

iii)

enhancing the collection of loan and note
receivables by monitoring repayments when they
fall due;

a substantial shareholder, through a related
company of which is also owned by this
substantial shareholder, has undertaken to
provide continuing financial support to the
Group to remain continuing operations and to
meet its liabilities and obligations when they fall
due;

the Group will actively negotiate with the
lenders for debts restructuring and the renewal
of the Group's borrowings when they fall due
in order to secure necessary funds to meet
the Group's working capital and financial
requirements in the foreseeable future. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Group will be able
to roll over or refinance the borrowings upon
their maturity;

identifying new investment and business
development opportunities to increase the
Group's profitability; and

the Group is actively exploring the availability
of various sources of financing including the
disposal of assets or obtain secured facilities by
way of pledge of assets etc.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

(c)

4.

assumption (continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current asset and liabilities respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements
are present: power over the investee, exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group's interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of
the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint
control is assessed under the same principles as
control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

—  Joint ventures. where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

—  Joint operations: where the Group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities
of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

—  The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

—  The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

—  Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) Joint arrangements (continued)

(e)

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
in the same manner as investments in associates (i.e.
using the equity method — see note 4(c)).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the
carrying amount of the investment in joint venture.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in a joint venture has been impaired the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquire over the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at
the acquisition date.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised
in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Goodwill (continued)

150

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 4(p)), and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value
in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

The building component of owner-occupied leasehold
properties is stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the end of
the reporting period. Increases in value arising on
revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of property revaluation reserve. Decreases in value
arising on revaluation are first offset against increases
on earlier valuations in respect of the same property
and thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are recognised in profit or loss
up to the amount previously charged and thereafter
to the property revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the property
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released from the property revaluation
reserve to accumulated losses.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:
Buildings Over the lease terms
ranging from

30 to 50 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Moulds, dies, test fixtures 4 years

and pins

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBRRME
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEFHEE B
(continued)
(g) Leasing (g AE
The Group as a lessee FEFEHZEAFAAN

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term
of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

The Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms
Buildings Shorter of lease terms or 20 years
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Leasing (continued)

154

The Group as a lessee

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Leasing (continued)

4. FTEGSHRK (&

(9) & (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination option
being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the
lease liability to reflect the payments to make over
the revised term, which are discounted using a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is
similarly revised when the variable element of future
lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged.
In both cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to
the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over the
remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any
further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Leasing (continued)

156

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results
in one or more additional assets being leased for
an amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the
modification is accounted for as a separate lease,
in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases
the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension
to the lease term, or one or more additional assets
being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using
the discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount. With the exception to which
the practical expedient for COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions applies (see note 2(a)), if the
renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the
lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability
and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease with any difference recognised in profit
or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to
ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term,
with the modified lease payments discounted at the
rate applicable on the modification date and the
right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost.
subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are

FVTPL:
financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at FVTPL,
of the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL include

irrespective
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting
date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

160

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

(continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables, amounts due to
a related party/directors and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured
at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

()]

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Raw materials are valued at cost on a weighted
average basis. Work in progress and finished goods
are valued at standard cost which approximates to the
actual cost determined on a weighted average basis
and comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost
necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition from contracts with
customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Revenue recognition from contracts with
customers (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition from contracts with
customers (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

()

For contracts where the period between the payment
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from the provision of services
Service income is recognised over time when the
relevant services are provided.

Tooling income is recognised over time when the
relevant services are provided.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer. Customers are
generally granted with credit terms of 30 to 120
days. Some customers are entitled to volume-
based rebates whereas some of them are
entitled to a fixed percentage of rebate based
on monthly settlement. The Group applies most-
likely amount method to estimate the variable
consideration. The rebates were offset with
trade receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(k) Revenue recognition from other sources

U]

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on change in
fair value at the end of reporting period.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. The amount of current tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any
uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

V)

(m)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity
in which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at this rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) Foreign currency (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income,
in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items
of foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve. Exchange differences recognised in profit or
loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(n) Employee benefits

(o)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based compensation benefits
The Group operates a share award scheme (the

“Share Award Scheme”), which is an equity-settled
shared-based compensation plan under which share
awards are granted to employees as part of their
remuneration package.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E WM WwR M

4. FTEGSHRK (&

(n) EEREF

(i) *EHIES#EF
MRS IERANEER
HERARFS 2 FEHRSHRE
+ZEARA RE#MEMZE
BRA (BEREANRN) 28
BERH N ESREABERE
ZEERMES

T ERIRFN B UK 15 7 51 B

A E 28 {H FUR R A 51 8 1F
2R REERERB RN
BmER AR

(i)

RER AT

B BB A I A = B N BEBUH 1R
M2 F R B RS A & F ST
7 e 37 A% B B AR M) 22 48 A A< B
LUBRFERE) R

(iii)

WU 0 7 B 1 2 % B 42 7
rEFEEE-—BRMNDERE (TR
MEREE))  BREZEEUR
PARERNFME B E0E
ERERNER (FRE -8 D%
B Rrad o

(o)

SPSRESE MNZREESHEAT 169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A
=g

4,

170

R e b

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

Share-based compensation benefits (continued)
Where share awards are awarded to employees
and others, the fair value of the services received
is measured by reference to the fair value of the
share awards at the date of grant. Such fair value is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share-based
compensation reserve within equity. Non-market
vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting
the number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting
period is based on the number of share awards that
eventually vest.

Where the terms and conditions of share awards are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the share awards, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also recognised
in profit or loss over the remaining vesting period.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and interests
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(q)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable and are recognised as other
revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Company;

(i) has significant influence over the
Company; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Company or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Given COVID-19 pandemic has created
and may continue to create significant uncertainty in
macroeconomic conditions, actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
ltems of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives after taking into account the
estimated residual values.
lives are based on the expected lives of those
property, plant and equipment items. The useful
lives of property, plant and equipment could change
significantly as a result of technical obsolescence.
When the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, due to the change of commercial and
technological environment, are different from their
estimated useful lives, such difference will impact the
depreciation charges.

The estimated useful
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment,
in accordance with the relevant accounting policies.
Determining impairment requires an estimation of the
value in use (the "VIU"). The VIU calculation requires
the use of judgement and estimates on future
operating cash flows and discount rates adopted.
Where the actual cash flows are different from the
original estimate, a material change in the amount of
impairment may arise.

(iii) Fair value measurement
A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s financial statements require measurement at,
and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement
of the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iii) Fair value measurement (continued)

(iv)

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

- Revalued buildings - Property, Plant and
Equipment (Note 17)

- Financial instruments (Note 21)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the items above, please refer
to the applicable notes.

Impairment of loans to associates, note
receivables and loan receivables

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
the ECLs of loans to associates, note receivables
and loan receivables in accordance with the three-
stage model set out in accounting policy notes 4(h)
(i) and 40(iii) on individual or collectively basis, as
appropriate. The Group estimates risk of default of
the debtors and the ECL rates considering factors
such as days past due of the receivables, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history, the
recoverable amount of the securities and the timing
of future cash inflows, then adjusted for existing
market condition including forward looking estimates
at the end of the reporting period.

If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might
be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(v) Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

178

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables of manufacturing segment.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates including forecast economic conditions (i.e.
gross domestic products) are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 40(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING

(@) Reportable segments

6. DEWMS
(a) AHREHE

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM") that are used to strategic
decisions.

The Group has three reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately because each
segment offers different products and services and
requires different strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's
reportable segments:

Manufacturing -  Manufacture and sales of
segment PCBs

Treasury investment —  Investment and trading
segment in securities, fund

investments and related
activities and provision
of financial assistance

Financial service —  Advisory on securities,
segment asset management
and consultancy and
corporation solution
services

No operating segments have been aggregated in
arriving at the three reportable segments of the
Group.

Corporate income and expenses and corporate assets
and liabilities are not allocated to the operating
segments as they are not included in the measure of
the segments’ results and assets and liabilities that
are used by the CODM for assessment of segment
performance.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar order.
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iRe BRI
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DHEERE &
(a) Reportable segments (continued) (a) AIHREDE (&
Manufacturing Treasury investment Financial service Total
RiE HERE SRR @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEI%E ZZ-AF ZEITE ZT-hE ZBITE ZT-NF ZEI%E ZT-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL FAT TEL FAT FEL FAT TER
Revenue from external customers RESMFZEEZUWA 461,027 425091  (183,452)  (216,150) - - 271575 208,941
Reportable segment loss ARENESE (59,790) (25,922)  (926,796) (442,800 (19,805)  (103,320) (1,006,391)  (572,042)
Amounts included in the measure st AN EEHHEZ
of segment profit or loss: it
Interest income FEBA 21 43 73,077 149,928 - - 73,098 149,971
Finance costs REER (14,936)  (14,761)  (59,919)  (64,451) - - (74,855)  (79,212)
Depreciation of property, nE-BERZEZR
plant and equipment E (14,081) (14,007) (2,071) (2,111) - - (16,152) (16,118)
Deprediation of right-of-use assets B EEETE (3,959) (3,851) (5,148) (5.982) - - (9,107) (9,833)
Reversal of write- down/ FEMERR/ (R
(write-down) of inventories 387 (1,261) - - - - 387 (1,261)
Share of results of associates =N+ - - (9,994) 10,996 - - (9,994) 10,996
Share of results of joint ventures fEAE R ¥4 - - (62,327) 811 - - (62,327) 811
Reversal of impairment loss/ BARWRTHES
(impairment loss) on trade BER/ (RESS)
receivables 39 (274) (28,205) (16,715) - (17,979) (28,166) (34,968)
Impairment loss on loan EREZHERR
receivables - - (222,327)  (118,256) - - (222,327)  (118,256)
Impairment loss on note EUEEHESR
receivables - - (37,822) (22,014) - - (37,822) (22,014)
Impairment loss on other Hit R ERS
receivables B = - - - (19,805) (10,145) (19,805) (10,145)
Impairment loss on investment  IREE AT 2 REH
in an associate ELE - - - (1,566) - - = (1,566)
Impairment loss on goodwill BHERERSR - - (330,991)  (17,088) - - (330,991)  (17,088)
Bad debts written off i EeR - - - (6,650) - (75,196) - (81,846)
Net loss on disposal of property, ~HEWE BERRE
plant and equipment BE3E - - (1,047) (2,809) - - (1,047) (2,809)
Reportable segment assets ORENBEE 509,531 475216 2,293,231 3,594,758 144,806 414,830 2,947,568 4,484,804
Amounts included in the SADEEEHEL
measure of segment assets: Eai
Interests in associates REERAF 2 B - - 506,060 473,672 - - 506,060 473,672
Interests in joint ventures REELEZER - - 109949 172,276 - - 109,949 172,276
Additions to non-current assets'  REIEREHEE 8,499 13,939 7254 168,712 - - 15,753 182,651
Reportable segment liabilities ORENBER (510,693)  (450,450)  (872,021) (1,540,628)  (100,112)  (111,894) (1,482,826) (2,102,972)
# Include additions to property, plant and equipment d BREAEDNE BRERKRBRER

EEE

and right-of-use assets
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DHERS (B
(a) AIH|EDE (&
ARENEBEGR BEMARHEK:

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.
(a) Reportable segments (continued)
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities:

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit or loss ik
Reportable segment loss AIREDEBE (1,006,391) (572,042)
Equity-settled share-based UEREEURMN HER
compensation benefits 2 FhiE F) = 14,833
Other unallocated staff cost HfknDBE T (30,595) (45,391)
Consolidated loss before income BREFEIRIE R, (ZH)
tax credit/(expense) EIE =y k=] (1,036,986) (602,600)
2020 2019
—ECEHE —E-AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 2,947,568 4,484,804
Unallocated bank balances ROCIRITE R RER
and deposits 2,757 12,083
Consolidated total assets e BEEBE 2,950,325 4,496,887
2020 2019
—ECEHE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities ASREDEERE 1,482,826 2,102,972
Tax payable FE(I 718 278,308 215,133
Consolidated total liabilities REBBER 1,761,134 2,318,105
—ECEFTFR MEEREEBRRLE 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ir & B B3R R M 5E
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DHEBRE &
(b) Geographical information (b) MEZEK
The following table provides an analysis of the TREMAXEERBIARETRZIK
Group's revenue from external customers and non- AMEBREMT RN ZIERBEE
current assets other than financial instruments (MFEIERENEEL) 2o

(“Specified non-current assets”).

Revenue from external Specified non-current
customers (Note) assets
REMREEZBA
(=9 BEFRBDEE
2020 2019 2020 2019

“BCEF “E-AF ZEIEE “TNFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET FET TERT

Hong Kong (place of domicile) &% (& #h) (180,882) (211,901) 125,902 197,767
The People’s Republic of PEANRSEME (TRE)

China (the "PRC") 196,374 142,337 490,540 466,626
Singapore b 16,680 21,569 - -
Thailand 2= 302 174 = -
Malaysia BXRAD 1,742 2,063 - -
Germany = 57,429 47,085 - -
Poland K 46,644 24,678 = -
Other Europe Countries HABUMNE xR 77,818 93,746 = -
United States of America EHREREH 13,641 24,792 = -
Korea E:dE 3,410 2,477 = -
Japan SN 40,216 57,346 = -
Others Hh 4,201 4,575 - -
Total 45t 458,457 420,842 490,540 466,626

277,575 208,941 616,442 664,393
Note: Hiat -
Revenue is attributed to countries on the basis of the WAL EZERMEMZBEKE D JER
customer’s location. Non-current asset is attributed to HEENREEMEM ZBEZKE| Do

countries on the basis of the location of the assets.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers who have individually
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue of
the Group are disclosed as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

6. DEWMS (&
(0 AMEBEEFZER

REXTEER (BEFERBEAZ

10%8 M L) W AREWN T

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Customer A* BERA 39,974 57,285
Customer B* = /B 42,663 37,294
Customer C'# ZRC N/AREH 39,757
Customer D24 ZERD>4 37,579 N/AA 38 3
Customer E* ST 37,558 30,368
Customer F':3 ZRF3 N/AFR7E A 27,123
Customer G'4 ZEHRGT N/AFRE A 25,519
Customer H* =ZHBH 46,644 24,678
Customer 113 ZAI3 N/AREH 21,986
Customer J'3 e SHIRE N/AFEH 21,986

L The customers contributed less than 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December

2020.

2 This customer contributed less than 10% of the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019.

2 Included in the treasury investment segment.

& Included in the manufacturing segment.

! ZEBERRBE_Z_ZF+Z
B=t—HLEEFEEMRBEMZWA

EAEEBATEI0%

2 ZEERBEE-_Z—hF+A
=+—HLEFEMRBEMRZEALL

AERBRATEI0%
: STAMBREDE

4 STAREDER-

T REER MEZEREERRAE

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kR B ISR M 5E

7. REVENUE 7. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZDHUWT :
2020 2019
ZECERF —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers BAESHIWA—HESE R
— Sales of goods 461,027 425,091
Revenue from other sources: HzOR 2 WA -
Fair value loss on trading purpose MR ZENZH R TE
equity investments at FVTPL, net SFABRBRAREZ
NEEEE F5
— Realised loss —B#IREE - (228,439)
— Unrealised loss —REIREE (256,526) (137,584)
(256,526) (366,023)
Interest income IS N
— Loan and note receivables —EWEFREE 64,269 141,040
— Loan to an associate —BFHMEATNZER 8,805 8,833
Total revenue from other sources kB E MR 2 WA 4B %8 (183,452) (216,150)
Total revenue N Y 277,575 208,941
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7. REVENUE (continued) 7.
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended 31 December 2020

WA &)

BEREHWA
(i) WAEHBGH
BE_Z-ZF+"HA=+—HIE

FE
Treasury Financial
Manufacturing investment service Total
i MBRE ERERTS HeH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segments Pk T#ERT TERT THET THET
Types of goods or services HRBRBEER
Sales of goods HESR 461,027 - = 461,027
Total revenue from contracts with ~ BESHRABEE
customers 461,027 - - 461,027
Timing of revenue recognition W AR
Goods transferred at a REREHERNER
point in time 461,027 - - 461,027
Total revenue from contracts with ~ BEASHRABEE
customers 461,027 - - 461,027
Geographical markets IS
The PRC HE 163,896 - - 163,896
Hong Kong 58 35,048 - - 35,048
Singapore ESIRIIp 16,680 - - 16,680
Thailand EE 302 - - 302
Malaysia BERAD 1,742 - - 1,742
Germany =E 57,429 - - 57,429
Poland it 46,644 - - 46,644
Other Europe countries HAMBUNEIR 77,818 - = 77,818
United States of America ZHBERE 13,641 - - 13,641
Korea oA 3,410 - - 3,410
Japan SR 40,216 - - 40,216
Other countries/regions HtER,/ e 4,201 - = 4,201
Total revenue from contracts with ~ BEAARALLZE
customers 461,027 - - 461,027
“EITHEFR MEEZERSEERRAAE 185
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7.
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MR R EE

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

7. WA (#&)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

EREHWA B

(i) BAEHBGA (&
HE_Z-hF+-B=+—HLt
FE

Treasury Financial
Manufacturing investment service Total
®ig MBEE SRR w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ OOO
Segments 748 FHET FHET FHET FET
Types of goods or services EmE R LER)
Sales of goods HEER 425,091 - - 425,091
Total revenue from contracts with Z B &4 A 4858
customers 425,091 - - 425,091
Timing of revenue recognition U A FE =R BF
Goods transferred at a REFEHEENER
point in time 425,091 - - 425,091
Total revenue from contracts with B R &4 IR A4E%E
customers 425,091 - - 425,091
Geographical markets BT IS
The PRC HE 105,930 - - 105,930
Hong Kong &5 40,656 - - 40,656
Singapore g 21,569 - - 21,569
Thailand =E 174 - - 174
Malaysia EXA: 2,063 - - 2,063
Germany =R 47,085 - - 47,085
Poland Vil 24,678 - - 24,678
Other Europe countries HABUMED 93,746 - - 93,746
United States of America ENEERE 24,792 - - 24,792
Korea EE1E| 2,477 - - 2,477
Japan HA 57,346 - - 57,346
Other countries/regions HER /& 4,575 - - 4,575
Total revenue from contracts with FE &4 A 4858
customers 425,091 - - 425,091
There was no inter-segment sales between segments FPREFERN DBEBEREETS

and therefore the amount on sales to external

customers by segment is as the same as total revenue
from contracts with customers by segment in both

years.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

BEHE HILRDEI D PRI
BERIFHANBEESREZDES
DHEFR SHWABEERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Included in the amount above are subsidies obtained from the
local government in Guangdong province, the PRC to support
industrial enterprises affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 of
HK$3,868,000; and subsidies obtained from the local government
in Guangdong province, the PRC and the Hong Kong Government
of HK$364,000 and HK$2,029,000 respectively to support the
payroll expenses of the Group’s employees of for which the
Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expense
and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels
for a specified period of time. The remaining balance of the
government grants mainly represent reimbursement of export
credit insurance paid under a concession policy in Guangdong
province, the PRC.

A IRERM T
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HthlgA

2020 2019
ST HF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank interest income IRITHI B U A 24 98
Service income AR 75 U A 1,153 1,181

Investment income arising from HEBREZ KA

undertaking on a joint venture EEZ'REWA
(Note 20 (iif)) (H1&£20 (i) 4,695 28,715
Government grants (Note) BURF #E B (B 5E) 8,993 1,508
Recharged tooling income BRI AEREEWRA 3,615 2,643
Others EHA1th 2,045 1,895
20,525 36,040

Note: o=

MG EEEETEERE M S BUNESZ
853,868,000 T UMX EHSHSHRERIE
BEENT X0 REPEERS S BN
B BT ES LD B %364,000/8 T K%
2,029,000 MEMAEEEEZTES
TRt AEBEBRERZEMLANTE
YRR —RIEERBAFASHBAEE AHK
ZEMRIEEKTF - BTN R EI5ERT
FEREEEERRNEENHOGEMRE
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. Hfthlim kiR

2020 2019
—EZEHE E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FATT
Net exchange (losses)/gain 2 (B8 W EEE (22,132) 3,127
Impairment loss on investment in EﬁHﬁﬁM’ATziﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂé
an associate - (1,566)
Unrealised fair value gain on non-trading Ft3Ex 5 BMIZ A F(E
purpose financial assets at FVTPL FFABEmCEMEE
BIRNFEW = - 37,365
Bad debts written off Hif 51 122 BR - (81,846)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME -BERKEZ
plant and equipment B35 (1,047) (2,809)
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 37) Fﬁ%fﬂiﬁﬁﬂé (H15£37) (330,991) (17,088)
Gain on bargain purchases (Note 37) HEBBWE (Wt37) 4,091 -
Gain on extinguishment of loan payables ,JiJ PRAE T B RN =
(Note 44(a)) (Ht3£44(a)) 4,930 -
(345,149) (62,817)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MEEH
2020 2019
—EIEHF S — L
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest on: FME
— Lease liabilities —HEER 1,692 2,927
— Borrowings —f&8 65,726 66,992
— Loan from a related company —RE—EEABAEZER - 3,156
- Loans from a director —REB—REEZEM 7,437 6,137
74,855 79,212
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX CREDIT/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

1. BRFGIRIESR (X ) AIESHE

(EXPENSE)
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): LM GtA) -
2020 2019
—ECEHF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Auditor’'s remuneration ZEEMEN =
— Current year —KEE 2,155 2,383
— Overprovision in respect of —BEFEEBEER
previous year (416) -
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 5872 H 2 7 & B 4~
(included cost of materials and (Bt AFTE MR K AEM
consumables used of HK$319,854,000 B 4~319,854,00074 75
(2019:HK$293,136,000)) (ZE—h%F:
293,136,000%7T)) 417,859 386,765
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of 75 (MosBsm) iMos
inventories (included in cost of sales) (5T ASHE B 4N) (387) 1,261
Employee costs (Note 12) BEMA (Hit12) 149,652 149,252
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERIBZINE
equipment 16,152 16,118
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESEITE 9,107 9,833
Short term lease expenses FRHATHERR X 28 319
COVID-19 rent concessions memEREERER
(Note 18) (Hz£18) (898) -
Gain on modification of lease EITREWR (574) (104)
12. EMPLOYEE COSTS 12. EERZ
2020 2019
—ECEF T—N4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFABT
Employee costs (including directors’ BENAE (BIEESME
remuneration (Note 13)) comprise: (H15£13)) BFE -
— Wages and salaries —TITENFE 124,883 132,654
— Discretionary bonus — BB TEAL = 7,000
— Contributions to retirement benefits —IRIREM FHE H ™R
scheme 21,080 20,011
— Equity-settled share-based — R GEBEURGN %
compensation benefits (Note 33) B FHNER
(H75£33) - (14,833)
— Other staff benefits —HMETEH 3,689 4,420
149,652 149,252
“ECTHEFR MEEREEBRAT 189
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENHEMSEEZMEOT :

were as follows:

Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries and to retirement  share-based

other benefit compensation
Fees benefits scheme benefits Total
REREEM
ek RG] B AER
s HetnigH HE e ZHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET FTHET FTHET THET
2020 ZEIEE
Executive directors: HTES !
Cheok Ho Fung (“Mr. Cheok”) S| (T8k%E) - 5,426" - - 5,426
Shan Yongxin BRE - 2,875 18 - 2,893
Liu Tingan (Resigned on xR (R_Z_FF
6 April 2020) TA 75 HEHE) - 1,341 5 - 1,346
- 9,642 23 = 9,665
Non-executive directors: EHTES:
Li Yongjun FXE 600 - - - 600
Independent non-executive BIEYTES:
directors:
Ng Man Kung Rt 220 - - - 220
Lau Fai Lawrence EES 220 - - - 220
Mak Kwok Kei ZEE 220 - - - 220
660 - - - 660
Total st 1,260 9,642 23 - 10,925
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors
were as follows:

gﬁmﬁ Cllg
ET@IB’%T?%%%ZMEE?ID—F :

Contributions  Equity-settled

Salaries and to retirement  share-based
other  Discretionary benefit  compensation
Fees benefits bonus scheme benefits Total
RaHEEN
ek BINET  ROBER
e HAngA BT HEIR ZEHBER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT THAT TAR TAT

2019 ZZ-hE
Executive directors: niTES:
Liu Tingan (Resigned on 2EZ (R-Z2ZF
6 April 2020) mAREEHT) - 6,081 7,000 18 (14,833) (1,734)
Mr. Cheok 5% - 5,433 - - - 5,433
Shan Yongxin (Appointed on BEE (RZ2-—NF
30 August 2019 NA=+HEZA) 142 589 - 4 - 735
142 12,103 7,000 22 (14,833) 4,434
Non-executive directors: 3FW—}§$ :
Mao Yumin (Resign on EHRR RZ2-NF
21 August 2019) NAZ + E ﬁi‘&) 384 - - - - 384
Li Yongjun (Appointed on FXEMRZZ-NE
30 August 2019) )\H_+E|3§§E) 203 - - - - 203
587 - - - - 587
Independent non-executive ~ BIFHITEE:
directors:
Ng Man Kung St 220 - - - - 220
Lau Fai Lawrence ElES 220 - - - - 220
Mak Kwok Kei ZEE 220 - - - - 220
660 - - - - 660
Total Mzt 1,389 12,103 7,000 22 (14,833) 5,681

Included in the amount is rental and management fee paid

for director’s quarter to Keentop Investment Limited, a
company beneficially owned by Mr. Cheok, amounted to
HK$2,330,000 (2019: HK$2,337,000) for the year ended 31

December 2020.

T REER MEZEREERRAE

ZEREERBE_ZE_2F+_-A8

:—I——EIJLEFEHE?EE

mEBZ

NEEEREERABDZEEEEHEE
R EEE2,330,0008 T (ZE—HE

2,337,000 7T) °
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13.

14.

192

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 13. EEM=E (&
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above EXFTAHNBRITESESME N ETE I RE
were mainly for their services in connection with the MEEBRARARAEBRSHIRME 2R
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group. EXFTAHNERITESMELEEN K
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above HEFARBHENBRAESRHEZ
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company R#E o EXFTRHBIIERITESMEE
or its subsidiaries. The independent non-executive ENREEARARNESRE R
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.
No emolument was paid to the directors as an inducement PREFEAN BiEREEIE /F
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for RMAXAEEIMAXER R ZREIE
loss of office during both years. No directors waived any of RIEAERBE - BRES IMEFEER
their emoluments for both years. EHEAME-
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 14. ABREHMA L
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the rEBRARSHFMHMALF =% (2
Group, three (2019: one) are directors of the Company —hF ! —R) ARERAES  BEZM
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note SN EXHFI3ZFE-HEFM % (2
13 before. The emoluments of the remaining two (2019: E—NF ML) ALZMENT
four) individuals are as follows:
2020 2019
—E°ZH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e R EMEF 5,765 9,337
Contributions to retirement benefit IRIRAEF) 5 EHR
scheme 36 124
5,801 9,461
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL (continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

14. TLEEHMALT (&
WEZMEN FUTHE

2020 2019
—EBCEF —T-AF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A¥ N
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZFHETTE1,000,00058 7T = -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 B TE
1,500,000 7% - -

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001B T E
2,000,000 7T - 2

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001BTE
2,500,000 7T 1 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 8BtE
3,000,000 7T - -

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 TE
3,500,000 7T = -

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 TE
4,000,0007 7T 1 1

No emolument was paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years. None of
the above individuals waived any of their emoluments for

both years.

RMEEER FEBITERAZFALR
T ERME FRMARERRMARE
B HE R E B E LM ALR

1B AN -

T REER MEZEREERRAE
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iR o B B AR M AT

15. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

194

The amount of income tax (credit)/expense in the

15. FifgiRiE% (i)

MR HEmAEMEE W@ R ZFAER

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other (E®) L& rEs .
comprehensive income represents:
2020 2019
—EZEHE —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FATT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BNHB#RIE — B (b F15R
— tax for the year —REERIE 3,106 19,674
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAIRIE — B AR FIR
— tax for the year —REERIE 3,991 13,959
— overprovision in previous years —BEFEBREE (6,334) -
763 33,633
Deferred tax (Note 30) IRIEIRIE (Hf2230) (7,775) 22,453
Income tax (credit)/expense FRi8f (%) /W (7,012) 56,086

For Hong Kong profits tax, under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5% on estimated assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong during both years.

No Macau profits tax has been provided as the Macau
subsidiary of the Company is exempted from Macau
Complementary Tax for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the statutory tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% (2019: 25%).
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15. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (continued)
The income tax (credit)/expense for the year can be
reconciled to loss before income tax (credit)/expense per

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

15. FRIfSHER ~ (XH) (&

AFEFER (ER) /STHEHR

= A
%TI:I

? mhEMEERE RN ZAER (G

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other %) /S HAIEIBRE THHER
comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
=G> <3 3 —hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss before income tax PRATISIRAIES B (1,036,986) (602,600)
Tax credit on loss at the rates applicable ZABRAE A& B RR X
to the jurisdictions concerned FHEZEBERIEIRR (175,292) (99,459)
Tax effect of exemption granted to BT RFANBATZ
Macau subsidiary MRz MBEE 2,792 3,048
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax B ERIR BN E AL E
purpose or subject to capital gain tax MMAZRBEE (4,642) (11,139)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AEHRZH 2 MBEE
for tax purpose 89,303 27,444
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REDRIBEBRE MG E 43,229 92,826
Over-provision in prior years BIEFFEBRERE (6,334) -
Reversal of deferred tax assets e EIP=E
previously recognised MIBEE 3,797 42,403
Tax effect of other deductible temporary E#hkFEsR _J?D%Riﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ;ﬁ\
differences not recognised ZMBEE 40,135 963
Income tax (credit)/expense PRSI (I %R) /2 (7.012) 56,086

T REER MEZEREERRAE
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kR B ISR M 5E

16. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

16. FARE1E
RABEE NELERERRHEHSE
TR T B 5

Loss E518
2020 2019
—g=-® =g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss for the purpose of basic and STEESREARKREERE

diluted loss per share Fr %A 2 K518 (1,029,974) (658,619)

Number of shares in & H
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—-NEF

Weighted average number of ordinary  5THESRELRGEEREABZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss ZERMEFSE

per share

2,208,000,000 2,208,000,000

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ## BT Z @R 2 5 £ !
— Share Award Scheme — 1D 2R 5t & N/AFREH N/AT3E F

Weighted average number of ordinary  stESREEHEERRAZ
shares for the purpose of diluted loss TR

per share

2,208,000,000 2,208,000,000

No adjustment is made to the basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the potential
ordinary shares represented by the Share Awards have an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

17. ME - BB k&

Moulds,
Furniture, dies, test
Leasehold Plant and  fixture and Motor fixtures
Buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles and pins Total
Ba.
i 53-8
HE BE KER AHRE
BF MEEE R Rt HE RiGE et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TR THER THER T#ER T#ER T#ER
At 31 December 2020 MR-ZE_ZE
+-B=+-H
At 1 January 2020 RZZ2ZEF-A—H
Cost or valuation BA T EE 218,911 14,629 683,590 14,523 17,196 4,979 953,828
Accumulated depreciation  RHTERBEHE
and impairment losses - (7,122) (642,026) (10,260) (9,870) (3,995) (673,273)
Carrying amount REE 218,911 7,507 41,564 4,263 7,326 984 280,555
At 1 January 2020, RZ2ZE5-A—-H>
carrying amount FEE 218,911 7,507 41,564 4,263 7,326 984 280,555
Additions AE - 1,801 6,642 87 - 131 8,661
Disposals HeE - (1,047) - - - - (1,047)
Depreciation provided AEERERE
during the year (4,803) (683) (7,504) (820) (2,180) (162) (16,152)
Revaluation loss BhEE (3,543) - = = = = (3,543)
Exchange realignment ERAE 12,387 542 2,360 40 12 56 15,497
At 31 December 2020, RIZEZZ2F+ZH
carrying amount e el = R TN 222,952 8,120 43,062 3,570 5,258 1,009 283,971
At 31 December 2020 R_E-ZE
+-A=+-8
Cost or valuation A E 222,952 15,361 721,494 15,013 17,472 5,409 997,701
Accumulated depreciation  RFHTERAEHE
and impairment losses - (7,241) (678,432) (11,443) (12,214) (4,400) (713,730)
Carrying amount REE 222,952 8,120 43,062 3,570 5,258 1,009 283,971
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mEMBRRMEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

198

17. E - -BER=E (&)

(continued)
Moulds,
Furniture, dies, test
Leasehold Plant and fixture and Motor fixtures
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles and pins Total
B~
it E3EN
e BE KER HHEE
¥ MERE Rige ® HE RiEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TET
At 31 December 2019  WZZ—-N%F+ZH
=t+-H
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2-NFE—F—H
Cost or valuation M EE 228,449 15,365 693,590 15,353 17,196 4,809 974,762
Accumulated depreciation  REtTERAEEHE
and impairment loss - (8,079) (654,711) (9,868) (7,642) (3,987) (684,287)
Carrying amount REE 228,449 7,286 38,879 5,485 9,554 822 290,475
At 1 January 2019, RIE-NF—-F—1
carrying amount IREE 228,449 7,286 38,879 5,485 9,554 822 290,475
Additions AE - 3,656 11,293 186 161 338 15,634
Disposals HE - (2,530) (1) (479) - - (3,010)
Depreciation provided KEERERE
during the year (4,926) (652) (7,198) (900) (2,299 (143) (16,118)
Revaluation gain G 2,955 - - - - - 2,955
Exchange realignment ERAE (7,567) (253) (1,409) (29) (90) (33) (9,381)
At 31 December 2019, RZZ-NE+ZA
carrying amount =t—HB RAEE 218,911 7,507 41,564 4,263 7,326 984 280,555
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA
=+-H
Cost or valuation WA HE 218,911 14,629 683,590 14,523 17,196 4979 953,828
Accumulated depreciation EFHTERAERSE
and impairment losses - (7,122) (642,026) (10,260) (9,870) (3,995) (673,273)
Carrying amount REME 218,911 7,507 41,564 4,263 7,326 984 280,555
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC. At 31
December 2020, the Group’s buildings with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$222,952,000 (2019:
HK$218,911,000) were pledged to secure the bank loans
granted to the Group.

The Group’s buildings were revalued at the end of
reporting period based on depreciated replacement cost
approach and with reference to the valuation reports
issued by Flagship Appraisal and Consulting Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.
The valuation reports used depreciated replacement cost
approach which is arrived at using the aggregate amount
of the new replacement cost of the buildings, from which
appropriate deductions may then be made to allow for the
age, condition, functional obsolescence and environmental
factor.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a revaluation
loss of approximately HK$3,543,000 (2019: gain of
HK$2,955,000) on the Group’'s buildings has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and debited
(2019: credited) to property revaluation reserve.

The following table presents the fair values of the
Group’'s buildings measured at the end of reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as identified in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E WM WwR M

ME - -BERRE (&

FEBZEFHURPH R _Z
EFE+-A=+—HB AEBKREE
#975222,952,0008 T (ZE—HF:
218,911,000 7T) 2 EFEFIEF  E5A
REFERIBITERZIER

REREMR ~EBZBFRITEEEN
RALKESEBICERERGEME
EEENGEBAERARHANMGEER
SETER ZLERSHKATEEEN
% ERBFRNMEEN A EEFEL

RIBE KR T RE BB AR08
EAEER
HE-P-TF+-A=+—HLEFE

ZK%I’E%%" S E (L E18493,543,000%

T (CE—NE 2,955,000 7T) * B
REMEEWRGERBI N ESEHEE
AR (CE—NE 5T A)

TREVINBREHRARREBEERESE
WRNEBHHREERFE 1358 AFE
STERBAZ =ZMAFESRIEHR
EBBFHNAFE-FRE DA FEFE
FWMBELEREBBAENTEHRE

measurement is classified and determined with reference REAEEMSEUT
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique, as follows:
2020 2019
—EIEF “T-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TET
Level 3 BE= 222,952 218,911
ZECEFEFR MEEREERRAT
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

200

(continued)

A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
balance of Level 3 recurring fair value measurement is
provided below:

17. NE - -BERRE (&

BZMEBELRFEFSERFNRER
R FEGERERNT :

2020 2019
a3 5 —ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT FHET
Opening balance HAF A B
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (BB A FE) 218,911 228,449
Depreciation provided for the year NEEHRITE (4,803) (4,926)
Revaluation (loss)/gain B (B8 W= (3.543) 2,955
Exchange realignment PE 7 5E 2 12,387 (7,567)
Closing balance HAR A5 8%
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (BE=REF M A FE) 222,952 218,911
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iR e I PR MY EE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME - -BER=RE (&
(continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair TREINERMAIEBZHPRHEFHNAF
value of the Group’s buildings in the PRC are determined, BEERE URBEAFESNEFMER
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value MABNAEEREEHSRAFTEFE2ET
measurement is categorised, based on the degree to which R EEZEREDHER
the inputs to the fair value measurement is observable.
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_F+”"HA=+—H
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs for
hierarchy technique input fair value Range
FAHEBAESR
RFEER RKEHE EARIBERBAE ATERRE =
Level 3 Depreciated New replacement costs The increase in the new RMB3,000 per square
replacement cost per square metre are depreciated replacement metre
approach determined using costs per square metre
estimated current would result in an
cost of replacement increase in fair value
of the improvement
less allowance for
physical deterioration
and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and
optimisation.
F=M WEEENAZ BUYARMEEAARA BTAKNMINESREE BTARARE
BAINEETEREEEN PR ARG IR B 3,0007T

ANFEREER—Y) RFEEM
BRI VB R EE R 1B 1E
BEREE-
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= AR RN
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME-BEREE &
(continued)

As at 31 December 2019

A ZE-hE+ZA=+—H

Relationship of

Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation unobservable inputs for
hierarchy technique input fair value Range
AEBRRBAEA
RFEER EER ERFABREBAE RFERIR# % ]
Level 3 Depreciated New replacement costs The increase in the new RMB3,000 per square

replacement cost per square metre are

approach determined using
estimated current
cost of replacement
of the improvement
less allowance for
physical deterioration
and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and

optimisation.
F=M WEEEMAZE BYARNEERNERA
BRI EEREEEM

ENBFERBEKR )
MR TR EE R B1E
BEREE-

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

Had the Group's buildings been stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(if any), their carrying amount as at 31 December 2020
would have been approximately HK$205,496,000 (2019:
HK$198,883,000).
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would result in an

increase in fair value

BEYRAKHFINEEE BEHKARE
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NEEEN
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18. LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office buildings and
staff quarters. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the interests in the leasehold land in the PRC.
Leases of office buildings and staff quarters generally have
lease terms ranging from two to three years and lease
payments are fixed over the lease terms. One of the lease
contracts for office buildings includes an extension option
which has been included in lease terms for calculations of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities below.

Certain leases of equipment and office buildings have
lease terms of 12 months or less and the Group did not
capitalise these leases by applying the short-term lease
recognition exemption.

(i) Right-of-use assets
The movements of the carrying amounts of the

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E WM WwR M

HE

TEEFERAEEA
rEBEEMAREREIEESNEE
BN -AEEBFE—EBRMRIBEUK
BREEE I M Em MARERET
BEEHENEER-—RNIME=ZF M
HERARZBEMNRBEE - Hoh—IEiH
AREBHHEGOTEEIERERZRE H
Mt E TXNERAEEERBAEERAM
EEstAHERR-

RERMARENETHENHEEHA
NREEFUT MAEREREHBEE
RET > WEGZEHEERE-

() BRAEEE
rEBEZERAREENTFEZIR

Group's right-of-use assets during the year are set out H{EZEHEIANT !
below:
Leasehold

land Buildings Total

fHE L 12F “st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FERT FET

As at 1 January 2019 A ZE-NEF—HA—H 3,529 19,070 22,599

Additions wnE - 11,516 11,516

Depreciation expense TERY (123 (9,710) (9,833)

Modification of lease HE’EN - (3,438) (3,438)

Exchange realignment ERRE (114) (60) (174)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF

1 January 2020 +ZB=1t—HK

e = 3,292 17,378 20,670

Additions nE - 7,092 7,092

Depreciation expense ERS (120) (8,987) (9,107)

Modification of lease HEEN - (4,538) (4,538)

Exchange realignment fE R A% 186 6 192
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF

+ZA=+—H 3,358 10,951 14,309

“EIEFESFR MEEREEARAE
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18. LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

(i) Right-of-use assets (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s right-of-
use assets in respect of leasehold land with carrying
amount of approximately HK$3,358,000 (2019:
HK$3,292,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
loans granted to the Group.

(ii) Lease liabilities

18. #HE (&

2&%.1?%73’(*&)\ (#)

(i) FHEEEZE (&)
RIEZZEEFE+ZA=+—H'%&
EFEIRMEEL3,358,0008 T (&
—NE 13,292,000 7T) 2 BREAE
THZEREEEE FIREES
NEBFIEETRITEMZE R

(i) HEER

HK$'000
TABT
As at 1 January 2019 A —E—-NEF—HB—H 19,070
New leases WiRE 11,516
Interest expense FMEMZ 2,927
Payments N (11,485)
Modification of lease MHEEXL (3,542)
Exchange realignment ERAE (59)
As at 31 December 2019 and A ZE-NF+ZBAE=+—HkK
1 January 2020 —E-E&—F—0 18,427
New leases WS 7,092
Interest expense MERZ 1,692
Payments EN (9,525)
COVID-19-related rent mERERERETRER
concession (note) (H1&t) (898)
Modification of lease MEEBXK (5,112)
Exchange realignment FERAE 6
As at 31 December 2020 N_EZF+ZHA=+—H 11,682
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EEMBERERWE
18. LEASES (continued) 18. fHE (&&
The Group as lessee (continued) TEBEREBEAN (&
(ii) Lease liabilities (continued) (i) HEEE (&)
2020 2019
—EEH —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Classified under: AR PN
Non-current portion JERENER 7.369 9,660
Current portion TRENER 3 4,313 8,767
11,682 18,427

Future lease payments are due as follows:

RERBEEMRZEBANT ¢

2020
ZEIEEF

Minimum

lease
payments Interest Present value
REHEEM™M B RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHET
Within 1 year 15R 5,070 757 4,313
1 to 5 years 1E55F 7,845 476 7,369
12,915 1,233 11,682
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o N =]

MR R EE

18. LEASES (continued)

206

The Group as lessee (continued)
(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

18. & (&

TEBESEBEAN (B
(i) HEEE (#)

2019
i

Minimum

lease
payments Interest Present value
REBEEMR 2 BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
Within 1 year 1R 10,462 1,695 8,767
1 to 5 years 1E58F 10,560 900 9,660
21,022 2,595 18,427

Note: izt -

As disclosed in note 2(a), the Group has elected to early
apply the practical expedient introduced by the Amendment
to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions, to
all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria. All of the
rent concessions entered into during the year ended 31
December 2020 satisfy the criteria to apply the practical
expedient. The application of the practical expedient
has resulted in the reduction of total lease liabilities of
HK$898,000. The effect of this reduction has been recorded
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.
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mEMBRERNE

18. LEASES (continued) 18. A g (&)

The Group as lessee (continued) TEBEREBEAN (&
(iii) Information in relation to short term leases (iii) BRI ZHHEZ EF

2020 2019
—_EEEF —EF—-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Short term lease expenses RHAEERX 28 319
Aggregate undiscounted RHEEE
commitments for short R ARIR R IE AR EE
term leases - -
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REHE AT ZEEHE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Share of net assets BLEEFE 206,464 189,070
Loans to associates * FHE TS 2E; 303,632 288,638
510,096 477,708
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIRESE
(Note 40(iii)) (K1 z£40(ii)) (4,036) (4,036)
506,060 473,672

& As at 31 December 2020, except for a balance due from #
an associate amounting to HK$101,902,000 (2019:
HK$86,908,000) which bears interest at a rate of 12%
per annum and is repayable on 31 December 2021,
the amounts are unsecured, interest-free with no fixed
repayment terms. The loans are classified as non-current
assets as settlement in next 12 months were not expected.

AR TEF+_HA=+—H BREK
—EBE R B 2 4585101,902,0008 7T
(Z=E— 5 : 86,908,0008 1) & F
FED2EFERBERZZEZ—F+Z4
=+ —HEEN ZERBELEIRF
RERIEETCENH ANREHRER
TERARFI2EE NG E WERDLE
BIERBEE-
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e BRI EE
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. RIRERBIZHEHE (&
Particulars of the Group's associates during the year ended BHE_Z_ZEERZE-—NLF+AH

=+—HLEFE xEERERTNFE
HHWMT :

31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out below:

Place of
incorporation or

Percentage of
ownership interest

establishment and indirectly held by Principal
Name operation the Group activities
& il B 12 8% Y 3L K FEEBESENRARE
2y ] EE S #ZESL TEEH
2020 2019
ECBE CTNE
FEYITRER B HERERAR The PRC 45% 45%  Money lending
("Shenzhen Shengda”) (Note (a))
RN ERBMERARASE FE] M
(TRYNBEEL) (HfEa))
Hero Link Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands - - Equity investment
("Hero Link") (Note (b)) (the "BVI") /
Hong Kong
EECERRAD (THEE)) HEREES ((HE RERE
(Hfz#b)) BB /BB
Jade Summit Holdings Limited BVI/The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Investment holding
("Jade Summit”) (Note (c))
EERARAT (M%) EBEZHE/TE rEEK
(Hfzt(c))

Vastline Limited (Note (c)) BVI/The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Investment holding

BEARRQE W) EBEZHE/TE rEEK

Asia Cosmos Limited (Note (c)) Hong Kong /The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Investment holding

SBERRAT (M) BE/HH REZK

BERDEMEREERAT The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Property development

(Note (c))
BHRDEMERERERAT PE YELE
(Hr52(c))

BNEEEMBIRAR (Note (c) The PRC 27.5% 27.5% Wholesale, import and
export of construction
materials

BEMNRBEMBRRAE W) a3 BEMEME ESD
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

VAA
07 =]

19. REERT 2w (&

MR M EE

Mzt
The summarised financial information of Shenzhen (a) FEBREEMEANTFRINRENTHE
Shengda, a material associate of the Group, is set out BHEEE & TN T ¢
below:
2020 2019
ZEZE —Z—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
As at 31 December W+=ZA=+—8
Current assets BB E 279,703 369,720
Non-current assets FEREBEE - -
Current liabilities mEAE (298,505) (373,910)
Non-current liabilities ERBAER - -
Net liabilities BEFHE (18,802) (4,190)
Group's ownership interest AEBZHEEEER 45% 45%
Group's share of net assets of the AEBEEHEAT 2
associate, excluding goodwill HEZE (FEEBS) = -
Goodwill on the acquisition (less WHEELENEE
cumulative impairment) (R R TR E) - -
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE - -
For the year 31 December HFE+-_BA=+—AHLEE
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Other income Hig A - 44
Loss for the year FEFIE (13,567) (9,334)
Other comprehensive income HithemWm (1,045) (64)
Total comprehensive income EEll gy (14,612) (9,398)
Loan to an associate FT—HEBER B 2B 101,902 86,908
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

210

(a)

(continued)

The unrecognised share of loss of the associate amounted
to HK$6,105,000 for the year (2019: HK$1,914,000). The
cumulative unrecognised share of losses as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$8,019,000 (2019: HK$1,914,000).

The summarised financial information of Hero Link, a
material associate of the Group, is set out below:

19. RBEQAT 2 #m (37
Hist : (&)

(a)

(&)

FRORBEROEHE LA ZHEIRS
6,105,000 75 (Z 2 — A4 : 1,914,000
Bit) MRZTEZEHF+"H=+—H
Z R ARERD(HE1E%A8,019,00078 7T
(ZE—HF : 1,914,000 7T) °

FEBZESHERTEBENYHFER
BEHIWT :

From

1 January
2019 to

5 January
2019
R-Z—hF
—HBA—HB=E
“E-NF
—HAaH
HK$'000
FHTT

Revenue WA

Loss for the period ARS8
Other comprehensive income Hthe |l E

(10,320)

Total comprehensive income SE W AREE

(10,320)

In 2019, the Group’s representative resigned as a director
of Hero Link and the investment in Hero Link has become a
financial asset at FVTPL since then. The above information
represents revenue, loss and total comprehensive income of
Hero Link from 1 January 2019 to the date it ceased to be
the Group's associate.
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A BRI
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. RERT 2D (&
Notes: (continued) Hiat : (#)
(¢)  The summarised financial information of Jade Summit and () ZAEBEEHME N NGSERENRBATG
its subsidiaries, a material associate of the Group, is set out N BEERBESIWT !
below:
2020 2019
—ECTHE —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
As at 31 December m+=ZB=+—H
Current assets REEE 1,034,001 88,413
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,295,330 2,010,939
Current liabilities mEEE (1,432,228) (348,382)
Non-current liabilities ELDiE U=k (1,146,324) (1,063,441)
Net assets BEZE 750,779 687,529
Group's ownership interest AEBZHEEEER 27.5% 27.5%
Group's share of net assets of the AEBEEEHERBEE
associate and carrying amount of the  FEREBEREE
investment 206,464 189,070
For the year ended 31 December BE+-B=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—EEHF —Z—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue N = -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 & (36,342) 48,229
Other comprehensive income HEemkas 99,592 (58,978)
Total comprehensive income SEW R AREE 63,250 (10,749)
Loan to an associate FT-REBEABDZEM 201,730 201,730
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REIRESE (4,036) (4,036)
197,694 197,694
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iR o B B AR M AT

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

20. REERFEZ#ET

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TET
Share of net assets NMEEBEEFE 109,949 172,276
Notes: Hrat -
(@) Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures during the year @ BE_E_ZEHE+_H=+—HILHE

ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

incorporation or
establishment and

Percentage of

B AEESERENFBEHINNT !

ownership interest
indirectly held by Principal

Name the Group activities
=E 18 Bk 37 3 BR 3L rEEBBESENRAEE
% AL FEEH
2020 2019
—EIEFE Z—NFE
Partners Special Opportunities Cayman Islands 66.7% 66.7% Debt investments

Fund I (the “Fund”) (Note (i)
Partners Special Opportunities

Fund | (T&&1) (#/a2())

Grand Highlight Investments

Limited (note (ii))

Grand Highlight Investments

Limited (#722(ii)

Notes:

EERLEE

50%

(i) On 4 September 2019, the Group has obtained joint
control on the Fund through participation in the
board of directors of the Fund. Each of the Group and
another independent shareholder (the “JV Partner”)
owns 50% voting rights in the board of the Fund. The
ownership interest disclosed above represent capital

contribution to the Fund by the Group.

(i)  The company was set up by the Group and the JV

Partner to jointly manage the Fund.
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mEMBRERNE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 20. REEE L (2)

Notes:(continued) Kzt -

(@) (continued) (a)

(iii)  Pursuant to a deed of undertaking, the issuer of the
bond subscribed by the Fund and its related party
have undertaken to guarantee the Group to receive a
rate of return of 18% per annum (the “Undertaking
Percentage”) on the Group's subscription amount on
the Fund. The Undertaking Percentage was amended
to 12% per annum since July 2019. The Group was
entitled to investment income from this undertaking
amounted to HK$4,695,000 (2019: HK$28,715,000
(included in the investment income from the Fund)).

(b)  Summarised financial information of the Fund, a material

(&)

(iii)

(b)

RIFARELE ESXB 2 ESE
TARERBEB AT EREERE
EEMAERHESHNRESE
WENEFE18%MWEHRE (TEKHET
D)) cBZE—AELBUK
AEEDLEITABEFEI12% &
EEARSILEAREREESREE
A 4,695,000 7T (ZZT—NF !
28,715,000 7T Gt AEEMKE
YA)) °

B (FEENERGELE)

joint venture of the Group, is set out below: MBEREEE T ¢
2020 2019
ZEITHE —Z—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THET
As at 31 December W+=ZA=+—8

Current assets (bond receivable) MEEE (BWES) 165,879 259,369
Non-current assets JEREBEE - -
Current liabilities mEAE (955) (955)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE - -
Net assets BEFE 164,924 258,414
Group's ownership interest AEBZHGEEER 66.7% 66.7%

Group's share of net assets of the Fund ZEBEEGESEEFEK
and carrying amount of the investment & EEEEE 109,949 172,276
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mEMBRRMEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 20. RE&EIHD (&

Notes:(continued) Hiat : (#B)
(b)  (continued) by (#&
From
4 September
2019 to
Year ended 31 December
31 December 2020 2019
wE R-Z—hfF
—EREF hEMBZE
+=—BA=+—8H —E-NEF
ItEE +-B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue WA 32,494 11,305
(Loss)/profit for the year/period FEHE (B18) &EA (93,490) 1,217
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 mE = - -
Total comprehensive income SEWmARRE (93,940) 1,217
(c)  Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's (0 BHESRALABAZAEESGZED
joint venture which is considered by the directors as (ZUBERBEZWT
immaterial is presented below:
2020 2019
—ZEZEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Share of the joint venture's loss EhaEtERFEERIE
for the year - -
Share of the joint venture's total R EEREAFE
comprehensive income for the year EHEIN LR = -
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBEEREZRAEE

joint venture - _
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RE B IRRMEE
21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. BATEHAABRZEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
—ECEHF “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TABT
Non-current assets: FERBEE .
Club debentures, at fair value BREEER BEATESE 4,266 4,266
Current assets: MBIEE .
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ EHRAKRE R AFE
(Note) st8 (H7at) 173,133 329,589
Note: Htat -
The above equity investments were classified as held for trading PR AKEDEARIER S > MR L D
and were, upon initial recognition, classified by the Group as BPHAEBRSERBEATES ABZNEH
financial assets at FVTPL. BE-
Assuming the portfolio of the Group's listed equity investments BRAEEN EMRAREASHERAE 1
has remained unchanged, the market value of the Group's listed HERGEHMBBRREDLAER LTRAER
equity investments at the date of approval of these consolidated BN TIZEEAI2155,131,0008 7T °
financial statements was approximately HK$155,131,000.
22. INVENTORIES 22. 8
2020 2019
—_EEEF —E—-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET TET
Raw materials and consumables JF s Ke #E A4 38,840 38,915
Work in progress TR 19,757 19,057
Finished goods A 14,058 15,288
72,655 73,260
Less: Allowance for obsolete inventories 78 : FRETF & # 15 (17,436) (16,919)
55,219 56,341
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iRe BRI
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS, 23. BESRWERR - FAARIE - 2E
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES R H fth FE W 7R I8
2020 2019
“EZEHF —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Trade receivables (note (a)) B 5 EUWERTR (H13E(a)) 216,408 263,153
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (BEEa))
(note (a)) (64,832) (36,634)
151,576 226,519
Prepayments, deposits and other FEMRE e &
receivables (note (b)) Hanguw s (a2 b) )
— Prepayments — &I RIE 13,155 12,215
— Deposits paid —BfEE 5,191 6,995
— Other receivables —HhEWRIB 113,852 293,446
132,198 312,656
283,774 539,175
Notes: V=2
(a)  Trade receivables (a) EZEWERR
The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in a XEBUEMERERIEGELUING
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant EHEN B S EWERERESII T ¢
group entities are set out below:
2020 2019
ZEZEF —E—NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Denominated in United States dollars 37 (M%E7t)) 5HE
("US$") 85,311 97,199
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Notes: (continued)
(a)  Trade receivables (continued)

Customers of manufacturing segment are generally granted
with credit terms of 30 to 120 days while no credit period
will normally be granted to customers in treasury investment
and financial service segments. The ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) at the end of reporting period is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

. BSRIIRF - FAMRIE T

R E A R TR IE (&)

HtaE : (#)
(a) EZEWIERM &

REDENER —REX30E1208Z
EEH MYBREREZMRTDEN
ER—RUEEER RBEEHER R
BEREHH27 2B HRWRMR (0
REREH) ZREDMAT !

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0 - 30 days 0&E30H 55,292 39,983
31 - 60 days 31260H 39,958 42,123
61 — 90 days 61290H 23,259 27,269
Over 90 days 90U E 33,067 117,144
151,576 226,519

The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for BN E 5 EBERR GO REEEB)

doubtful debts) which are past due is as follows: ZERE DT :

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E—-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 - 30 days past due BHIOE30H 13,142 14,191
31 - 90 days past due HHA31ZE90H 2,572 1,197
Over 90 days past due MHF0H U k& 23,022 104,658
38,736 120,046
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

218

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

23. B RUIARM - FAMNRIE 7%

R E A EURRIE (&)

Hiat : (#)

Trade receivables (continued) (a) EZEWEEN (&
The Group recognised impairment loss on trade receivables AEEBREBEM E4(h) ()P E st BUER
based on accounting policy stated in Note 4(h)(ii). R E S EWARTURERIR
The movement in impairment loss on trade receivables from AEERERANMEL B ZBUER
contracts with customers during the year is as follows: BEBBEHNT !
2020 2019
—E-EF —Z—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At beginning of the year REH 36,634 1,685
Impairment loss recognised B ZRERBE 28,166 34,968
Exchange realignment bE 2 S 32 (19)
At end of the year REXR 64,832 36,634
Details of credit assessment of trade receivables of the AEBESRBERZEETGFHER
Group are set out in Note 40(iii). 7 B 5£40(ii) ©
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (b) FEMFIA & hEMEWKRIE

Deposits and other receivables are all denominated in
functional currencies of the relevant group entities at the
end of both reporting periods.

Other receivables mainly include receivables from Cayman
Islands funds set up by the Group over which the Group has
no control.

The Group recognised impairment loss on deposits and
other receivables based on accounting policy stated in Note
4(h)(ii). Details of credit assessment of deposits and other
receivables of the Group are set out in Note 40(iii).
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RE MR ERM T
24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24. FEIRE
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Secured loans (Note (a)) BIREER W3t @E)) 1,779,357 1,659,787
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts B RIREEE (518,147) (295,820)
1,261,210 1,363,967

Notes:

(a)

The balance represents secured loans to independent third
party corporate borrowers which bear fixed interest rates
ranging from 3% to 36% (2019: 9% to 36%) per annum
with initial loan period ranging from 12 months to 24
months. These loans were secured by the following:

fund investments of a borrower;

55% equity interest in a borrower;

interests in certain properties of a borrower;

equity investments owned by the shareholder of a
borrower;

listed shares owned by the related companies of a
borrower;

listed shares of group companies of the borrower;

issued share capital of group companies of the
borrowers;

interest in rights to use of a number of sea areas
in the PRC owned by the group companies of the
borrowers; and

personal guarantees executed by the shareholders or
key management personnel of the borrowers.

(a) ZERIEHRTIBILIE=HLATBARA
Z2HEERER ZE8RNREEMN K
B ERERNFIEEICE(CE—NE:
9EZE36E) »IF ERBRNF12@A
F2MAR - ZEERUUTH & BRI :
- —ZEFRANEERE,
—  —RERABSS%REE ;

- —RERARETYENET

- —RERANRERFAEAZRE
®E;

- —RERANBBAREAN L
mRD

— [ERAEERBENLEHRD

— [ERAEBRRTINBEETRE;

- ERAEEQRBMRERETEHZE
BB AR

- BRAREITIEEBAEET
BIE AR
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kR B ISR M 5E

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

24. EIWER (&

Notes: Hrat -

(b) Included in the loan receivables is a short-term interest-free (b) UM EE25FT > B ERBERES
loan amounted to HK$20,000,000 which was lent to the é’fﬁATﬁHjZ% H3% B E3020,000,000
bond issuer as mentioned in Note 25. The securities of this B o ZEMZIBRAN 252 BUE
loan and the bond receivable in Note 25 are the same. #*ﬁﬂ @

(c) The Group’s loan receivables that are denominated in a (0 ZAEBUEHMEERESRIEEGBUINEG
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant BEHENRWEREIIMT !
group entities are set out below:

2020 2019
—ETHF —NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") MARHE TAR)) sHE 198,125 197,605
25. NOTES RECEIVABLES 25. R ERE
2020 2019
ZEITE s —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Secured Ak 230,137 1,206,974
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts B RIREE (59,836) (22,014)
170,301 1,184,960

As at 31 December 2019, the Group subscribed from four AT E—hEF+_B=+—8> K%lﬁ
third party issuers 5% - 10% fixed coupon redeemable MAaBE=FETARE%E10%EE
unlisted bonds. These bonds were secured by the issuer’s BEXOELIELHmELE %E ,\%Eiaééﬁ
interests in certain bonds issued by a company listed on AR—REBMTH Ehm AT 2ETFTE
the Stock Exchange and personal guarantee executed by SN EETETANESS I NE
the director of certain issuers. ANERIEAIKIF
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25.

26.

NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

During the year, three out of the four bonds with carrying
amount in aggregate of HK$986,837,000 were settled
through several restructuring and debt assignment
agreements. Details are set out in notes 44(a) and
44(c). The bond that remained held by the Group at 31
December 2020 is a 5% fixed coupon redeemable unlisted
bond secured by the issuer’s interests in certain bonds
issued by a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal and interest of the bond(s) as at 31
December 2019 and 2020 were repayable within the next
12 months.

25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

B ER (&

RAFE HOHRESFFEREESH
986,837,000tz =M ESFEERE
TEARBEBEEGREE FHHN
MisEd44(a)Rd4(c) R ZEZEF+-H
—t+—BH AERNFEEZESAS%E
EREBrAELIELENES HETAR—
B R LM AR BT 2ETESNE
mEAIEIF

BER_BE—-—NER_ZT_Z+_°AH
=+—HHNEEKRFEARARKI2MEAR
WEE-

BANK BALANCES AND DEPOSITS 26. SRITHEBFRTEMR
2020 2019
—E-EE T A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Bank balances and cash RITERERIES 28,464 19,449

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, bank balances carry
interest at prevailing deposit rates.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated

KT _FER_F—AE+ZA
=+ -8 BT RRRTERAER
I%\ @

ﬁ%%uﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ“l FEEBLUNE

in currencies other than the functional currencies of the M ENIRITEFRRIBEHINAT ¢
relevant group entities are set out below:
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Denominated in RMB UANREHE 246 51
Denominated in US$ METEHE 24,571 3,903
Denominated in Great British Pound DUERiEEHE = 82
Denominated in Singapore (“SGD") BUR Oz T (TR N ool)
HE 43 43
—ECEFTFR MEEREEBRRLE 221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRMEE

27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27. BESEERF - HMETRIE K

ACCRUALS FEst &
2020 2019
—ECEH —ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Trade payables B2 AR 137,586 113,319
Other payables and accruals HihEARIE KR Est & A
— Other payables —HAMhE [ RIE 39,761 45,591
— Interests payables —EEHE 39,513 84,475
- Accruals —EstER 132,155 115,357
211,429 245,423
349,015 358,742
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice RBEHFR BRIBEZZEHHHEN 2 EFE
date at the end of reporting period is as follows: NIRRT ¢
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
0 — 30 days 0&E30H 37,019 31,162
31 - 60 days 31260H 18,754 24,960
61 — 90 days 61Z290H 19,392 26,314
Over 90 days Q0H M E 62,421 30,883
137,586 113,319
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27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUALS (continued)

The Group’s trade payables that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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87 B AR M RRIE K
Est&m (&)

= LR EES o Bl 3L VEIN
"EEHEME B IRBIIM T

2020 2019

—ECEH —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Denominated in US$ HUETEHE 22,489 17,085
Denominated in Japanese Yen MHBHEE 55 -

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 60 to 120 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The Group's other payables and accruals are denominated
in functional currencies of the relevant group entities at
the end of both reporting periods.

B 5 B BRMN 5t B R —fRIC60E 1208
NEE AEERBEVFEKREEBR
FERPIA BRIV EEHRAIEE -

M AER SRR A E 2 E R
EREH AL HERERY S
MetE

28. BORROWINGS 28. f&®

2020 2019
ST HF —E-AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Secured bank loans repayable within AR—FRNEENBIRE
one year (Note (a)) RITE (Bt a)) 131,856 139,367
Other loans, unsecured (Note (b)) HiE™ |8 #a£m)) 183,882 640,000
Other loans, secured (Note (c)) HEmmE= > 5K (Watc)) 678,189 848,889
993,927 1,628,256
Current portion BNHEAER o3 337,797 968,256
Non-current portion JEBPERER > 656,130 660,000
993,927 1,628,256
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28. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

224

(a)

(0

The bank loans are secured by certain buildings and right-
of-use assets in respect of leasehold land held by the
Group, corporate guarantee of the Company and personal
guarantee of Mr. Cheok, a director of the Company.
As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of approximately
HK$131,856,000 (2019: HK$139,367,000) carried fixed
interest rate ranged from 0.85% to 4.35% (2019: 2.58% to
4.35%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, unsecured other loans obtained
from Jade Summit, an associate, and an independent
third party amounted to approximately HK$177,941,000
(2019: Nil) and HK$5,941,000 (2019: HK$640,000,000)
respectively. The loan from the associate is non-interest
bearing, unsecured and repayable within the next 4 years;
whereas the loan from the independent third party bears
interest at a rate of 9.6% per annum (2019: 3% per
annum) and is repayable within the next twelve months.

Secured other loans borrowed from an independent third
party lender bears interest at a rate of 3% to 8% per
annum (2019: 5% to 8% per annum) and HK$200,000,000
and HK$478,189,000 of which are repayable within the
next twelve months and within the next 2 to 3 years
respectively. The balance is secured by:

Corporate guarantee of the Company;

- Equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Company;

- The Group's interest in an associate;
- Trade and loan receivables with carrying amount of

HK$241,211,000 (2019: HK$243,115,000); and

- Financial assets at FVTPL with carrying amount of
HK$55,941,000.
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KiaE

(a)

(@]

ZERTERUETEFT R AEEMEF
EHEIHMZEREEE -AQAFRZD
(ERREARBDETSREZEAE
RIEBF - R _E_FFE+_H=+—
H>$%4%4131,856,0008 T (=
— R4 1 139,367,000 7T) FUSRIT B
¥AF085EFEL435E (ZE—NF
2.58FEF4.35E) 2B EFMEE
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B (—HEBERE) R—S%BILE
—HFRENERFEMER D Y
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RE B IRRMEE
28. BORROWINGS (continued) 28. & (&)
Notes: (continued) HisE . (&)
() (continued) (0 (#)
The borrowings that are denominated in a currency other MEBMEBRSREINESBUINEEEHE
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities HEZEH T
are set out below:
2020 2019
—E-TF —E2—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Denominated in US$ MUZETEE 51,150 52,700
Denominated in RMB MAREEE 177,941 -
29. LOANS FROM A RELATED PARTY/ 29. REFMBAL "EFER
DIRECTORS
2020 2019
“ETEHF “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TABT
Unsecured loans from a related party: RERBALH
EIRIMENR
- Non-interest bearing and repayable on — A&t ERBREREE
demand (Note (a)) (Ht&t(a) ) 2,800 -
Unsecured loans from directors: REESHNEBEFER !
— Non-interest bearing (Note (a)) — st B HaEa) - 1,000
— interest bearing at 7% per annum and —IREFR7ET B KRB
repayable on demand (Note (b)) BREE Ha2b)) 119,465 90,055
119,465 91,055
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29. LOANS FROM A RELATED PARTY/
DIRECTORS (continued)

Notes:

226

(a)

(b)

The loan was advanced by Mr. Liu Tingan (“Mr. Liu”), who
has resigned as an executive director of the Company on 6
April 2020 but remains as a key management personnel of
the Company and director of many subsidiaries.

The loans were advanced by Mr. Cheok, an executive
director of the Company.

The loans from Mr. Cheok that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

29. REMBAL EFER (B

(@) BRIhHZIEZRRE (TR5%%E)) B4
AEEERZZETZFNABBRESR
REBITES  EEEEARAFTEEIE
AERZENBREIZES-

==

b)) ZFERHERBATEFEXLER

° 48

= N

>

REZELENERPUEAEEERY
FEERLUNE B ENEMEIIT ¢

2020 2019

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET

Denominated in RMB MARSE 2,023 1,911
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RE B IRRMEE
30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS) 30. IRIETRIEEE (B E)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) REAFERBEFERINEZIRER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and EEeE/ (EE) REZZHNT !
prior years:
Unrealised
fair value
change on
Impairment financial
Revaluation  of financial instruments
of property assets at FVTPL Total
BATEEA
BENER
THEMNRER
MEER THMEEAE ATEEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT FAT
At 1 January 2019 A ZE-NEFE—F—H 5,972 (66,593) (6,005) (66,626)
Debited/(credited) to profit or BZ&RFEE B,/
loss during the year GFARFERR)
(Note 15) (Hrat15) - 36,213 (13,760) 22,453
Debited to reserve during BAEEHEETR
the year 739 - - 739
Exchange realignment B R R (219) - - (219)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NEF
1 January 2020 TZE=+—-HX
. 6,492 (30,380) (19,765) (43,653)
Debited/(credited) to profit or B AREEBH N,
loss during the year (Note 15) (Gt AKREEER)
(Hiz£15) - 4,729 (12,504) (7,775)
Credited to reserve during HALEEREE
the year (886) - - (886)
Exchange realignment Rk 331 - - 331
At 31 December 2020 RZE_THF
+-B=+—H 5,937 (25,651) (32,269) (51,983)

ZECEFEFR MEEREERRAT 227
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iR o B B AR M AT

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

228

(continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

0. RIEEMBER(BE) (&

MREEHBRRNERERMS  ETE
EMBAEERBEEIRTE - U T AR H
WS ERZIEERIBGERBY DA

2020 2019

“EIEF —E-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Deferred tax assets RIERMIBE E 57,920 50,145
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (5,937) (6,492)
51,983 43,653

At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising from Hong Kong and the PRC of
approximately HK$348,789,000 (2019: HK$262,501,000)
and HK$117,598,000 (2019: Nil) respectively available for
offsetting against future taxable profit indefinitely and five
years from the year in which the loss arose respectively.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in the group companies
that have been loss-making for several years and it is not
considered probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At the end of reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$517,698,000 (2019:
HK$301,610,000) in respect of unrealised fair value loss
of financial instruments at FVTPL, impairment of certain
receivables, the allowance for obsolete inventories and
impairment of property, plant and equipment for which no
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

(continued)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. There is no
profit of the PRC subsidiaries available for distribution

subject to the withholding tax.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not
have other material unrecognised deferred tax.

31. SHARE CAPITAL

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

BIEMIRGRE (BE) (&

BRBEEMRENE B2 NEF—F—
H ¥ o B i B8 A B PR R BUs A B R B9
2 EBURTRIER - P EIM B A B I E R
TR IR BRI D ke A

RZEBE_EER-_ZF-NE+ZA

FERRIE o
31. ig7

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

=t+—H AERTEHMBAREDE

EREE
01872
EER#EE
("000) HK$'000
(FK FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2019, RZIZ2—hE—F—H-~
31 December 2019 and 2020 TE-NERIZIEE
+-A=+—H 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRER
At 1 January 2019, RZZ2—h&—B—H-
31 December 2019 and 2020 “TE-NERZEEF
+-HA=+—H 2,208,000 220,800
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e B R
32. RESERVES 32. f#fAE
The Group rEE
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group are AEEBNREBEEHFBEIANFERAE
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. ko
The Company v/ /N
Share-based
compensation
Share benefits Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
Mg AER
BiREE  ZEFHE RitEsie st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TAT FAT
At 1 January 2019 A _E-NEFE—F—H 2,559,569 14,833 (472,343) 2,102,059
Equity-settled share-based BEEEURMN A
compensation benefits EH 7 HNER
(Note 33) (H75#33) - (14,833) - (14,833)
Loss for the year FEBE - - (177,729) (177,729)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE—hEF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HkK
“ETEF—-A—H 2,559,569 - (650,072) 1,909,497
Loss for the year FERE - - (1,035370)  (1,035,370)
At 31 December 2020 R_ETE
+-A=+—H 2,559,569 - (1,685,442) 874,127
As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of ’5:7_35—# B=1+—8>&R8H
distributable reserves of the Company was 874,127,000 DI EAREEA874,127,0008 T (=
(2019: HK$1,909,497,000). %—hi 1 1,909,497,0004%7T) ©
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32. RESERVES (continued)
The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity:

(@) Share premium
It included the premium arising from the subscription
of new ordinary shares in the past.

(b) Share-based compensation benefit reserve
It represents cumulative expenses recognised on the
granting of Award Shares under the Share Award
Scheme described in note 33.

(c) Contributed surplus
It represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
as a result of the group reorganisation in prior years,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefore.

(d) Property revaluation reserve
It represents gains/losses arising on the revaluation of
property. The balance on this reserve is wholly non-
distributable.

(e) Translation reserve
It represents gains/losses arising on retranslating the
net assets of foreign operations into presentation
currency.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REM B RRNE

32. #E (&
UTHhEE A RENSBHEENEE
RE®W

(a) M1AHME
H 6 15 1B % RSB E 3 B E AR T A
By WA o

(b) UMD AERZFHMER A
H 15 MY 52 33 P it B9 1R 15 Bz 17 22 B
5T 8 T BB AR 17 By BE ST B R 51 5
o

() EHEER
HisABEEEEEEEAMBEZ
fEABRAEEBHAATRI
HIRBIER RS TZRNEE
ZERE

(d) MESGHE
HIFEMYEELNRE BB
ZREHEREHAA DR

(e) HMHEHE
HIERBIIEHEEFEEMRE
REREWMELNKRE BB
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32.

33.

232

75 R MY 5

RESERVES (continued)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity: (continued)

(f) Statutory reserve

It was appropriated each year on the basis of 10%
of the profit after taxation of certain subsidiaries
established in the PRC as determined by their
boards of directors in accordance with the respective
Articles of Association of these subsidiaries.
This reserve should only be used for making up
losses, capitalisation into capital and expansion of
production and operation.

Accumulated losses
It represents cumulated net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

(9)

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 May 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme, pursuant to which the Board may propose or
determine the grant of the Company’s shares to any
directors, employees or third party service providers of
the Group as their incentives and rewards so as (i) to
provide them with an opportunity to acquire a proprietary
interest in the Company; (ii) to encourage and retain such
individuals to work with the Company; and (iii) to provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals, subject to such conditions as the Board may
deem appropriate at its discretion. Further details of the
Share Award Scheme were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 17 May 2016.
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33. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

On the same date, the Board resolved to award an
aggregate of 60,000,000 shares of the Company (the
“Award Shares”) to Mr.
Scheme, which will be vested in five equal batches on 31
March 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021. The vesting
of the Award Shares is subject to satisfaction of vesting
criteria and conditions, including the Group’s achievement
of expected return percentage in each year in respect of
the Group's assets management and investment business
as approved by the Board. Further details of the grant
of the Award Shares were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 17 May 2016 and circular dated 5
July 2016.

Liu under the Share Award

As the Group did not achieve the expected return
percentage in respect of the assets management and
investment business for the year ended 31 December
2019, the fourth batch of the Award Shares were forfeited
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Except the foregoing, no share awards were lapsed,
forfeited, exercised or transferred during the year ended
31 December 2019.

Out of the 12,000,000 share awards outstanding as at 31
December 2019, no share awards were vested and were
exercisable subsequent to 31 December 2019. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
a reversal of equity-settled shared based compensation
benefits expense of approximately HK$14,833,000.

Pursuant to the board resolution dated 27 March 2020,
the Company terminated the Share Award Scheme and
cancelled the Award Shares of 12,000,000 outstanding as
at 31 December 2019 during the year.

33.

“EIEFESFR MEEREEARAE
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33. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 33. RIPEEREtE (2
Details of the Award Shares granted under the Share RIBERDRESEIRE CRBRHFES
Award Scheme are as follows: 52 ZIR I
2020 TEEF
Number of Award Shares
B E
Date of Exercisable Fair value at Outstanding at Outstanding at
grant date grant date 1/1/2020 Exercised Forfeited 31/12/2020
—EBCEg
RZZZEE +ZA
REHBEEH —A—H =+-H
=k i AfTERS ZATHE el R AT Bi7fE 2Rk el R AT
HK$
BT
Mr. Liu %4 20/7/2016 31/3/2021 237 12,000,000 - (12,000,000) -
—2-RE —BC-F
tBZ+H =A=t+-H
Weighted average fair value per Award Share (HK$) 2.37 - 237 -
SRRBRM 2 NETHATE ()
Weighted average contractual lives (years) -
MEFHENER (F)
2019 —FAE
Number of Award Shares
RERHHUE
Date of Exercisable Fair value at Outstanding at Outstanding at
grant date grant date 1/1/2019 Exercised Forfeited  31/12/2019
) B m T 47R
B /_ PEREBEH - L . 5‘|‘:E|
teginl=li EEy:d=E Z@ﬁg ﬁ%ﬁﬁ Bi7fe =5l HRITE
BT
Mr. Liu Ark 201712016 3_12@0%0 2.37 12,000,000 - (12,000,000) -
—=< 7 /\ —_T ==
tBZ+H =ZA=+—H
20/7/2016 31/3/2021 2.37 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000
NE ZETI-F
JCH ‘I'EI =B=1+—H
24,000,000 - (12,000,000) 12,000,000
Werghted average fair value per Award Share (HK$) 2.37 - 2.37 2.37
RERBR D ZNETHATE (B
Weighted average contractual lives (years) 1.25

MEFHEHER (5)

234
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34. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 34. EERRABMBRARE

FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—-AEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #)% - B K& 2,488 5,030
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6,895 9,490
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZRE 871,038 231,744
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 4,951 3,414
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UBt B A T =RIE 1,705,848 3,246,509
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEBmZ
TMEE 2,188 2,188
Total non-current assets JERBEELE 2,593,408 3,498,375
CURRENT ASSETS WMEBEE
Other current assets HMRHEE 140,642 141,021
Loan receivables EWE®R 455,832 412,259
Financial assets at FVTPL BAT BT AER
TREE 17,489 -
Bank balances and cash RITERERIES 1,581 2,152
Total current assets MENEEMAE 615,544 555,432
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik I h=R
Other payables and accruals HhETBR R FE st & A 53,507 121,275
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,343 4,953
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN E O] 1,825,651 1,094,170
Loan from a director —HEEEM = 1,000
Loan from a related party — %R ALTER 2,800 -
Loans payable FETEM 1,000 697,000
Total current liabilities ViR < 1,885,301 1,918,398
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mBaERE (1,269,757) (1,362,966)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kR B ISR M 5E

34. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

34. ERABMBRRAR (&

2020 2019
—E-EE —E—-hE
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BB ER A&
LIABILITIES 1,323,651 2,135,409
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREI&E
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,783 5,112
Loans payable FEITE®R 223,941 -
228,724 5,112
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,094,927 2,130,297
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PR A R i
Share capital [N 37 220,800 220,800
Reserves =15 32 874,127 1,909,497
TOTAL EQUITY ErEs 1,094,927 2,130,297
On behalf of the Board of Directors REEFT
Shan Yongxin Lau Fai Lawrence
BERE EAES
Director Director
BFE BFE
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35. SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 are set out below:

Place of

incorporation or Issued share capital/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. B AT

mEMBRERNE

A TECERF+A=1t—0 > TENB
ABZFIBHSNMT -

establishment/ paid-up registered Attributable equity interest  Principal
Name operations capital held by the Company activities
EMARILHRIL, BRTRE/
Eay M BRREMES KRFFRFREMLRE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# il
Topsearch Industries (BVI) Limited  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
US$13,085,640
Topsearch Industries (BVI) Limited HERLEE/EH E380%13,085,640% 7T KREER
Topsearch International (Holdings) Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$17,000,000
Deferred non-voting*
HK$20,000,000
ESER R) BRAA e L 3&A17,000,000 7T REZK
EmEZREER D
20,000,000% 7t
Topsearch Printed Circuits (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$1,706,319,277
ESRBEER (FF BRAT FE LiEMR1,706,319,277 REZK
BT
Topsearch Printed Circuits Macao  Macau Ordinary shares Macau - 100%  Sale of printed circuit boards
Commercial Offshore Company Pataca100,000
Limited
EEERIRAMEREEERE P EERR100,000RFF & HE EIRI4R BR AR
BRAH
EEREHER (D) BRAE® The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Manufacture of printed circuit

US$109,000,000
sEME 2<109,000,000
ESSV

ESRBEER (WD) ERAT HE

—EIEEER

MEHERERFRAR

boards

BUEENRI R R iR
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B AT (&

Place of
incorporation or

Issued share capital/

establishment/ paid-up registered Attributable equity interest  Principal
Name operations capital held by the Company activities
MMM, BETRE/
Eay i BREEMES KAT RIS ELAE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# EifE
Topsearch Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
Investment (Holdings) Limited HK$46,784,002
Topsearch Technologies Y ZiE0%46,784,002E T REER
Investment (Holdings) Limited
FEBBLEEEEARS The PRC Registered capital - 100%  Provision of information system
RAgEe HK$ 1,000,000 management services and
investment advisory services
HBEBBLEEREARY alEi & 41,000,000/ 7 REEAZRERREREEE
RAgEe IR
Brilliant Plus Investments Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 100% - Investment holding
Brilliant Plus Investments Limited RBRZHE /&S BERIET BREER
Hero Zone Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Hero Zone Investments Limited ~ HBRZEE /EE BERIET BREER
Hong Kong Bridge Investments  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Equity and debt investments
Limited
Hong Kong Bridge Investments ~ EBELEE /&8  LERIZET REREHEE
Limited
Renco Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of advising on securities
HK$34,000,000 and asset management services
BRRERRAT &E 834,000,000 7T HEFREERRRHEEERE
%
Perfect Stage Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100% Investment holding

Perfect Stage Investments Limited

REELHE /BB

EERIZT
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. fiEB AT (&

Place of
incorporation or Issued share capital/
establishment/ paid-up registered Attributable equity interest  Principal
Name operations capital held by the Company activities
BT AR AT BETRE/
%18 i B REMER FAT ISR TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# il
Just Right Ventures Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Consultancy and corporate
solution services
Just Right Ventures Limited HERLEE/BE EERIET BARCERARRRY
Brave Unit Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Consultancy and corporate
solution services
Brave Unit Limited HEREYHE/EE EERIET SBHAREERRT RS
Sonic Dragon International BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Consultancy and corporate
Limited solution services
Sonic Dragon International EERELEE/BE BERIET BARCERASRRE
Limited
Classic Blaze Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Consultancy and corporate
solution services
Classic Blaze Limited EBRUHEE/BE ZERIET AR ERALERS
Blissland Ventures Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Consultancy and corporate
solution services
Blissland Ventures Limited EBRUHEE/BE ZERIET AR ERALERS
Thriving Season Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Equity investment

Thriving Season Limited

RERAHE /B8

EBRIZT

RERE

T REER MEZEREERRAE
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. B AT (&

Place of
incorporation or Issued share capital/
establishment/ paid-up registered Attributable equity interest  Principal
Name operations capital held by the Company activities
MMM, BETRE/
Eay i BREEMES KAT RIS ELAE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# EifE
Renco Capital Partners Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share - 100% Dormant
HK$5,800,000
BBBEXEUABRAT &E &iBH%5,800,00078 7T BEEY
Shenzhen Renco Private The PRC Ordinary share - 100%  Assets and funds management
Equity Investment Fund RMB20,000,000 and investment and financial
Management Limited® advisory
RIRBRASRERE HE BRRARE BERESBEURBRERTE
HEeBBERREC 20,000,0007T Bl
Digital King Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Fund investment
Digital King Investment Limited ~ EEBRZEE /&# ZERIET HERE
Idea Excel Investment Ltd BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Fund investment
Idea Excel Investment Ltd EBEUHE/FE  BERIER EeRE
Great Merchant Investments Ltd ~ BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100% Fund investment
Great Merchant Investments Ltd =~ EEBRuZ#E /&# EERIET HekH
Power Tiger Investments Ltd BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary share US$1 - 100%  Fund Investment
Power Tiger Investments Ltd EERELEE/BE BERIET HekH
Hong Kong Bridge Landmark The Cayman Island/ HK$220,000,000 - 100%  Equity and debt investments
Investment Fund, L.P* Hong Kong
Hong Kong Bridge Landmark HEHE/BE 220,000,0007 75 REKEHEE
Investment Fund, L.P#
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt The Cayman Island/ HK$1 - 100% Dormant
One Road Infrastructure Hong Kong
Investments Fund IIl L.P*
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt HERE /EE 1B EEES S

One Road Infrastructure
Investments Fund Il L.P*
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation or

Issued share capital/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. B AR (&

mEMBRERNE

establishment/ paid-up registered Attributable equity interest  Principal
Name operations capital held by the Company activities
BT AR AT BETRE/
%18 i B REMER FAT ISR TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# il
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One  The Cayman Islands/ HK$375,000,000 - 100%  Debt investments
Road Fixed Income Fund L.P.* Hong Kong
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt One B2 & /&% 375,000,000 75 BHERE
Road Fixed Income Fund L.P#
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt The Cayman Islands/ HK$375,000,000 - 100%  Debt investments
One Road Natural Hong Kong
Resource Fund L.P*
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt REHE /5% 375,000,000 7 BHRE
One Road Natural
Resource Fund L.P*
HKBridge Absolute The Cayman Islands/ HK$410,000,002 - 100%  Equity investment
Return Fund L.P* Hong Kong
HKBridge Absolute REHE /5% 410,000,002 7 RERE
Return Fund L.P#
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt The Cayman Islands/ HK$1 - 100% Dormant
One Road Growth Fund L.P* Hong Kong
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt HEHE /&5 187 LEES)S
One Road Growth Fund L.P*
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt The Cayman Islands/ HK$220,000,000 - 100%  Debt investment
One Road M&A Fund L.P.* Hong Kong
Hong Kong Bridge One Belt HENE /B8 220,000,000 75 BHEERE
One Road M&A Fund L.P.*
Hong Kong Bridge High-Tech The Cayman Islands/ HK$240,000,000 - 100%  Equity and Debt investment
Investments Fund L.P.* Hong Kong
Hong Kong Bridge High-Tech HEHE/&E 240,000,000 7T REREBLE

Investments Fund L.P*

T REER MEZEREERRAE
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35.

36.

242

75 R MY 5

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends,
no rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no
rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital
upon winding-up unless a sum of HK$500,000,000,000,000
has been distributed to each of the holders of the ordinary

shares.

@ Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

i The funds were established by the Group as Cayman Islands

exempted partnership.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities as
at 31 December 2020 or at any time during the year.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally comprised the Group’s assets or results. To give
details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

HKBridge Absolute Return Fund L.P. (“Absolute Return
Fund”) in which the Group owned 75% equity interest
prior to the debt assignment arrangement as detailed in
Note 44(c), has material non-controlling interests (“NCI")
during prior years.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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During the year, the Group acquired the remaining 25%
equity interest in Absolute Return Fund through several
restructuring and debt assignment agreements (Note 44

().

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Absolute Return Fund, before intra-group eliminations, is

presented below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)  36. JE¥ERGHEZE (&
ER ANEEBBETEMAREREER
SN BB EIRES R T25%8 % (M
5¥44(c)) °

BERAEHOREASHIFERED (EERN
HiHA) WM BERBEZ25)I0F ¢

2020 2019
—_EEF —EF—-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

For the period ended 31 December #HZEZE+_-HB=+—H 1M
Revenue N - -
Loss for the period HA 18 = (269)
Total comprehensive income 2mE W m 4B EE - (269)
Loss allocated to NCI DETIEERER 2 B8 - (67)
Cash flows from operating activities K FE 7 IRE M= - -
Cash flows from investing activities KREGTHZRERE - -
Cash flows from financing activities MEBEHZRERE - -
Net cash flows IREMEFEE - -

As at 31 December BW+=ZB=+—H

Current assets REEE N/AFE A 190,480
Non-current assets EREEE N/ARE A -
Current liabilities mEas N/AR7E A (200)
Non-current liabilities ERHEaB N/ATR#E -
Net assets BEEFE N/AFRE A 190,280
Accumulated NCI Rt FFERER N/AREH 47,570
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37. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS 37. EFFUEE
Year ended 31 December 2020 BETZ-EF+"HA=1+—HLEFE
During the year, following the debt assignment RAFE » RETHE44(0) 44(c)PTEL
arrangements, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in 2EBEESEHB AEEKBEETH
several Cayman Islands funds in which several subsidiaries EHREETNI00%RE EREAQATE
of the Company are general partners as set out in Notes THEABDAEBEBA-EET— EF
44(b) and 44(c). Fund I, Fund I, Fund Ill & IV and Fund V B ROANEREEARKFEMMRR
are defined in note 44. TE ©
The Group acquired these funds to expand its existing AEBKRBZEESUEREARESRK
portfolio in fund investments. The fair value of identifiable BEHBEHG ZFEEN B2 _TF—
assets and liabilities of these funds as at 1 January 2020, A—HB (EEWNWEBEH) A& &E
the date of acquisition of the funds, were as follow: REBENAFENT
Fund | Fund Il Fund Ill &IV Fund V Total
2Ee— B E&=RkMO Eg&n Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAT FAT
Loan receivables R E - - 241,299 93,366 334,665
Deposit and other receivables %% R ELfthfE Iz IE 18,532 21,588 - 2,402 42,522
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFAER
JEHEE 4,972 - - 70,754 75,726
Trade and other payables BARMERR
HiENRE (8,215) - (103,923) (1,737) (113,875)
Tax payable e I1E (26,819) (17,497) (17,595) - (61,911)
Net identifiable a#A (&R /
(liabilities)/assets BESH (11,530) 4,091 119,781 164,785 277,127
Add: 25% additional equity I : RBHEHRE S
interest in Absolute Return 2 25%%E MR
Fund (Note 44(c) (Hi5244(c)) - - 47,570 - 47,570
Net identifiable (liabilities)) ~ ~EBEEGEZ
assets attributable to o# (BR /
the Group EEIHE (11,530) 4,091 167,351 164,785 324,697
The fair value of REBEZ
considerations transfer: NYE:
Note receivables FKER - - 411,688 234,592 646,280
Trade receivables EVTIEEHN - - 5,317 - 5,317
- - 417,005 234,592 651,597
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37. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)

37. ¥ IREE (&
BE_E-_EH+_A=+—HILEE
(#)

Fund | Fund Il Fund Ill &IV Fund V Total
H2HE— EEZ Ef=hM BEEE st
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FHET FHET FAT THET

Goodwill/(gain on BE/ (REEE

bargain purchase) &) 11,530
Impairment loss recognised R UREERFHERR 2

upon acquisition HEBE (11,530)

(4,091) 249,654 69,807 326,900

(249,654) (69,807) (330,991)

Gain on bargain purchase  ZEEEWE —

(4,091) - - (4,091)

The fair value of loan receivables and deposits and other
receivables acquired amounted to HK$334,665,000 and
HK$42,522,000 respectively. The gross amounts of these
receivables are HK$334,665,000 and HK$42,522,000
respectively and were expected to be fully collectible.
Since the acquisition date, the funds have contributed,
HK$54,712,000 and loss of HK$37,174,000 to Group's
revenue and profit or loss respectively.

The goodwill arising from the acquisitions were allocated
to the respective funds, each of which represents a
cash-generating unit, for impairment testing. At the
acquisition date, the recoverable amounts of the funds
were determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the carrying value of their net identifiable
assets/liabilities with major assets being investments in
listed shares and loan receivables. As a result, an aggregate
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$330,991,000 was
recognised in 2020.

FEWM B R UKEZE & HMERKRIE
BAFEEDRIA334,665,0008 7T K&
42,522,0008 7T c Z E BN FRIE 2 4B %8B
3 B #334,665,0007 7T 42,522,000
o FEHAR 2K E - B U HE H BB %R
ZEEZEDNATERNKARER
B 54,712,000 7t K E51837,174,0007%8
STo

BUBERELENBECOEESEE
T (EHEBA—EREELENL UETT
REAE -NWBEER A2 (FE2EE
AR LETRPZRERERER
WRIEEHAATDEETSZHAUHHE
E/BRFENKREEMEE -HIL
ER-E_TERIABERNEHEER
330,991,000& 7T ©
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BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2019

On 14 May 2017, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the general partner of an investment
fund (the “Investment Fund 1”), entered into a limited
partnership agreement (the “Limited Partnership
Agreement |”) with an independent third party (the
“First-tier Limited Partner 1”) and another wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (the “Second-tier Limited
Partner |”) in respect of the subscription of interest to the
Investment Fund .

On the same day, a wholly owned subsidiary of Company,
as the general partner of an investment fund (the
“Investment Fund II"”), entered into a limited partnership
agreement (the “Limited Partnership Agreement II”) with
an independent third party (the “First-tier Limited Partner
[1”) and another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Second-tier Limited Partner II”) in respect of the
subscription of interest to Investment Fund II.

As at 31 December 2018, Group's investments in
Investment Fund | and Investment Fund Il amounted to
HK$1,190 million in total.

On 16 May 2019, the First-tier Limited Partner | and the
First-tier Limited Partner Il withdrew from the Investment
Fund | and Investment Fund Il respectively and the funds
has become subsidiaries of the Company. The investments
in the unlisted funds were ceased to be an investment
entity and have been derecognised from financial assets
at FVTPL. HKFRS 3 has been applied to account for the
deemed acquisition.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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E!Z:n:_—\, hE+ZA=1+— EIJJ:EF'
R_E—tFRATHEBE ARFAE
MEBAR (FR—EREES (W&iéfﬁ%
—)ZEBEBN BBIE=7 (-4
BERGEBA—) RERBFZ—2EWE
AR (ZTHREREBA—D FTILARE
Bz (AREEBHE—)) REARR
BrREES—HEme

REH XAB2ENBAR (FA—&
REES ((REEST ) 2EBEBA)
BBEIE=F(—REREBAZ)) KX
REAIB—2ENBRE (ZHEREGR
AZDINEREHH=E ((BREBHE
T RBREARERERES I EEo

AN — =

\ZE-N\E+ZB=+—H FEER
REET —KREES " IREGHS
1,190,000,000% 7T ©
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A BRI
37. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED) 37. ¥FWEE (&
Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued) BE_F—-hhF+HA=1+—HLEE
CVE)
On 6 December 2019, the Group acquired 75% of the A ZE—NF+ZANE AEBEBWE
equity interests of Absolute Return Fund, a company BHORE: (—RHEFEEBEAREARE
whose principal activity is equity investment. The ZRA) Z7I5%KRE-BRAKBEEST
acquisition was made with the aims to expand the Group’s BAXEB ZRERAEZSEE
existing equity securities portfolio.
Investment Investment Absolute
Fund I Fund Il Return Fund Total
18 ¥ [5] 3R
2019 —E-hEF REEES— REESC g 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FHET
Loan receivables FEM 223,098 223,667 - 446,765
Note receivables RN EE 387,289 386,793 - 774,082
Deposit and other receivables 1% 5 K E fth FE UL 18 45,289 47,930 4,812 98,031
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABRT E’J
EHEE - - 186,029 186,029
Bank balances and deposits RITHR R RN 10 10 - 20
Trade and other payables E%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁm}\&
HAh e FRIE - - (292) (292)
Tax payable FEARIE (25,629) (25,445) - (51,074)
Net identifiable assets OHNEESRE 630,057 632,955 190,549 1,453,561
Less: NCI B IEERER - - (47,637) (47,637)
Net identifiable assets REB LA H A
attributable to the Group EEFE 630,057 632,955 142,912 1,405,924
The fair value of consideration RBE® 7 AF(E !
transfer:
Cash consideration HefE - - 160,000 160,000
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABRZ
EHEE 630,057 632,955 - 1,263,012
630,057 632,955 160,000 1,423,012
Goodwill S - - 17,088 17,088
Impairment loss recognised ~ WEBRFRR Z REHE
upon acquisition - - (17,088) (17,088)
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37. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

248

Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

The fair value of loan and note receivables and other
receivables amounted to HK$1,318,878,000. The gross
amount of these receivables is HK$1,332,210,000 of which
loan receivables of HK$4,928,000 and note receivables
of HK$8,404,000. None of these receivables have been
impaired and were expected to be uncollectible.

Since the respective acquisition dates, the Investment
Fund |, the Investment Fund Il and Absolute Return Fund
have contributed, HK$65,069,000 and HK$53,255,000
to Group's revenue and profit or loss respectively. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2019, the Group's
revenue and loss would have been HK$70,779,000 and
HK$893,371,000 respectively. This pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future performance.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition was allocated
to Absolute Return Fund, the cash-generating unit,
for impairment testing. At the acquisition date, the
recoverable amount of the Absolute Return Fund was
determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to the carrying value of net identifiable assets of the
Absolute Return Fund with major asset being investments
in listed shares. As a result, an impairment loss on goodwill
of HK$17,088,000 was recognised in 2019.
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37. ZHWE (&

HE_Z—hE+-BA=+—HLEE
#&)

JE IR B 30 e B U 22 9k LA R ELAth FE W =R 1B
Z/AY{E#1,318,878,000B 5 L EE
W k1B > #8567 1,332,210,00058 750 &
e E 4,928,000 T & EWEE
8,404,000 T i EZ EE N FVIEE R
BERTERAR A WD o

BEEBEBWERHRUKR REEE— K
BEES _KREBHORESEDANAR
EE WA KIBRER65,069,00078 7T
253,255,000 co W BEFIEER =
Z-—NF—B—HZEE AEXERZIK
AKREBEEBEDHA70,779,0008 7Tt &
893,371,000t o b B EBE R TL HER
BHARR ALAMBESEEER 22—
F—BA—HEHFR ZEEERTERZ
WAREBEEZIER TN ARIERARIEK
KRIAZFEA

BWBELEZHEENEEEBHLOKRE
® REELEN » LUERERE - IR
B BHEORELZOTWEEEETHH
AABEER2EREEORES (FEE
EANRLETRMZESE) 2o #B&EEF
BZREABEMET AL mEZ BES
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i E WM WwR M

38. BEK AL 5H

In addition to the related party balances and (a)
transactions set out in other notes to the consolidated

BRA

REMBEREREMWEMREZ

Eﬁﬂﬁ*/\j:m@%&i%% EE A

financial statements, during the year, the Group FRBMATRNAFESETUTRS !
entered into the following transactions with related
parties:
Related party Nature of transaction 2020 2019
RAER AL REEE —EZEF T—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH7T
Keentop Investment Limited Lease and management
("Keentop”) (Note (i) fee payments 2,330 2,337
BERBARRAR (FEE)) HEREEEMNR
(HfaE3))
Instant Fortune Limited Interest expenses to a
related company - 3,156
Instant Fortune Limited BB AR ZNESZH
Shenzhen Shengda (Note 19(a)) Interest income from a
|loan to an associate 8,805 8,833
RN BEEZE (H/5219(a)) FHMERTZERZ
F B A
Note: byt :
(i)  The amounts paid to Keentop, which is beneficially () TERMEFEAEBSZYMES
owned by Mr. Cheok, a director of the Company, NFAERBIEEERERARR
and his spouse, related to a property leased as their BRaEB 2 EEZRB-RERZ

residence. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement entered
into on 26 May 2017, the monthly rental and
management fees were HK$165,000 and HK$18,000
respectively for three years from 1 June 2017 to
31 May 2020 (the “old tenancy agreement”). The
tenancy agreement was renewed on 29 May 2020 for
three years from 1 June 2020 to 31 May 2023 under
the same terms and conditions.

This related party transaction in relation to the
old tenancy agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

SE—+tHFERB_-_+/NHJILZzM
A (TEMRY))  Z5—tF<A
—HE_ZE_EFFA=+—H
—EEEZRHEAKEBRES A
165,000 75 5% 18,0005 75 c FH4Y

ER-_ZE_EFERA_-_t+HHE

*ﬁﬂﬂ AREHEB=F H_Z
ZHERNA—HEEZZZ=
ﬁ)%:Jr—Elo

ILEEMERONEBALRS
B LR RABRTERERS -
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BBt AT S (&

(@) (continued) (a) (&
Note:(continued) W&t (8
(i) (continued) W @&
Details of lease liability related to this lease is set out HZHMEEMzHEEBHREH
as follows: Flar
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Classified under: DR
Current portion mEE D 1,570 1,387
Non-current portion JERBNE 2,586 4,156
4,156 5,543
Future lease payments are due as follows: FEMEMRZEBBUWT :
2020
—TEHE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEEEGR FIS RE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET THET THET
Within 1 year 15ER 1,980 410 1,570
1 to 5 years 1254 2,805 219 2,586
4,785 629 4,156
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38. BBt AT Z (&
(@) (continued) (@) #&
Note:(continued) Hiat (&
(i)  (continued) (i) (#)
2019
—E-AE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
BEREMNZ 7B RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Within 1 year 1ER 1,980 593 1,387
1 to 5 years 1E5% 4,785 629 4,156
6,765 1,222 5,543
(b) Members of key management personnel during the b) REAFEZFEETEASEENTE
year comprised only those executive directors whose B oHMEE NGRS MBRERMEF 130
remuneration is set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. BRI Dz EMEEREME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEHNE
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial () SREERSHEaEZER
liabilities
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BANFESTAERZ
THMEE 177,399 333,855
Financial assets at B ASTE Y
amortised costs (including cash THMEE (BERSR
and cash equivalents) BE&EEEY) 2,030,189 3,284,406
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ZE# At EZ SRIAE 1,465,207 2,078,053
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(continued)

(b) Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o The fair values of financial assets which are
traded on active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

° The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of the financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are

not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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A BRI
39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. BEREDZEMEERERME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BElE (&)
(continued)
(b) Fair values (continued) (b) AFE (&
2020
—EZZE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BR B4R 34K it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFABT Z
TREE
- Club debentures - ZEEREE - 4,266 - 4,266
— Listed equity —thkERE
investments 173,133 - - 173,133
173,133 4,266 - 177,399
2019
Sy
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EREY kY F3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFABRZ
TREE
— Club debentures - BEBERE - 4,266 - 4,266
— Listed equity —EhRERE
investments 329,589 - - 329,589
329,589 4,266 - 333,855
The fair values of equity investments at FVTPL are MATESABEIBEABE SN
determined with reference to quoted market prices in TELB2ENIBHEREE

an active market. E o
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

254

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEE (&)

(continued)
(b) Fair values (continued)

Information about level 2 fair value

measurements

(b) AF{E (&

39. BERNE S ZEMBEEREME

BRI F2MR A FlEE BT

The fair value of club debentures are measured based THEAHEEMNAFERENRTIRRS

on recent transaction prices.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during

both years.

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair
value based on significant unobservable inputs (level

3) are as follows:

EfRstE-

Bl 2 {5 (5 1 A 1) 2

BEREXRNAIHERAME (B34
BAFEIRZEMITAHNKRNT:

Financial assets at FVTPL

BRATESFAREZEMEE

Unlisted debt fund 2020 2019

investments ELrHEEEERE —E-EE —E—-hEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

At 1 January w—B—H - 1,397,187

Unrealised fair value gain KRB NFERT = 37,290
Derecognitions BUH SR

(Notes 20 and 37) (Ht5£20%37) - (1,434,477)

At 31 December R+-—B=+—H - -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. ARG ESIEEERKE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in SEBZITESH T AN AR FRE-
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial HZEcMITAERMzEAREEM SR
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest i (B R F X R B R =B CER
rate risk and macroeconomic risk), credit risk and liquidity %) EERBEMBEE R ~EE
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set MR EZEREMRE 2 BEHEIN
out below. The management manages and monitors these T-EEEEEEMERZERRE MR
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented REBMBNMIKEBEER K cEE
on a timely and effective manner. The Group’s overall BRREEEFHIFIE

strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

(i) Currency risk (i) EXRERE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign KABETHRBABIMUINEETE
currency sales and purchases, which expose the B oAREEBAARZIIERPR A&
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group currently B IR B Fm N EE PR o AT 0 B
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. BERUERINERR TN EE
However, management closely monitors foreign EREZRHEPERINERMK

exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the monetary assets
and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, i.e. currency other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities, which are
mainly trade receivables, loan receivables, intra-group

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(i) a%mk @
BUSNEE (B2 EEBRRINAEE T LS
ZEW SHEZEREERERERE
(EE2REZRUBIRNR - BIRER
EERNBARZEEF  BREMER
M RITERRER URER 1

256

companies balances, trade payables, bank balances WEHARZIREENT !
and deposits and borrowings at the end of the
reporting period, are as follows:
2020 2019
—E-sE CF-AE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Assets BE
us$ ETT 109,882 101,102
RMB AR 200,559 233,540
Singapore dollars EWII 43 43
Liabilities I=RE
RMB AR 179,965 1,911
us$ E7T 73,639 69,785
Japanese Yen H 55 -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase in the functional currencies of the
group entities, against relevant foreign currencies,
mainly US$ and RMB. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group's sensitivity to
the change in US$ against HK$ is low as HK$ are
pegged to US$. In addition, the monetary assets
denominated in Singapore dollars, Japanese Yen
and HK$ are not significant and the directors of the
Company consider that the Company’s exposure to
the currency of Singapore dollars, Japanese Yen and
HK$ are minimal. As a result, the following sensitivity
table does not include the impact of such changes.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for 5%
change in foreign currency rates.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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MHEEREEBRREER (&

()

“EIEFESFR MEEREEARAE

S EkE (&)

HBRED T
TERFVNFEEREBRBERNER
B (EERETKRARS) ZAERED
K2 ERIEMS % 2K E - A AT
EERB R ARBITHEETHEE > W
FEEHETRBTEH ZHRNE
o tbsh > UMK T BER BT
JIEZEREELRER ARF
EER/ERTEE ZHM MK T
HERBTEBRARER -EIL> T
MBERAESNNETL A RIEERES 2
FESUHALATEREEAER
TIERBZBRELR > HEE
BHEXGEREZEFH ZFHE UL
BREDTERFEEREBZINE
SHEEREB RN ERIZERS%E
HABEHKRSE -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

258

AND POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (continued) (i)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss

for the year when the functional currencies have
strengthened against the relevant foreign currencies.

For a 5% weakening of the functional currencies

against the relevant foreign currencies, there would

be an equal but opposite impact on the result for the

year.

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

S EE (&

HBREZT (&
TRZEHBATRINEEE B
SNEEBRF 2 AFEREBEB L -
ERNEEHE T ARMINEEFES%
HAEAFEXEERBURFEERT
%,

2020 2019
ZECEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
uss$ 7T

Decrease in loss for the year KEEEERLD 2,499 2,395

RMB AR
Decrease in loss for the year REERERLD 850 9,762

Interest rate risk (i) FERME

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan to an associate, note
receivables, loan receivables, borrowings and loans
from a director.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances and deposits with
floating interest rates. The directors of the Company
monitor the related cash flow interest rate risk
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
cash flow interest rate risk exposure should the need
arise. No derivative contracts have been entered into
during both years. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, no sensitivity analysis for bank balances
and deposits is prepared as the effect of fluctuation
of interest rate is not significant.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. B REMGEEEHERKE (&
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (iii) EERAK

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group mainly trades
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that credit terms are granted
subject to in-depth credit verification procedures. In
addition, trade receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and trade receivables of
manufacturing segment are substantially covered
by credit insurance. In this regard, management
considers that the Group’s credit risk is minimal and
there is no requirement for collateral.

In respect of loans to associates, note receivables and
loan receivables, the Group assesses the background
and financial condition of the debtors, and requests
securities from the debtors and/or guarantee from the
debtors’ related parties in order to minimise credit
risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit ratings.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk as
11% (2019: 8%) of the total trade receivables of
manufacturing segment were due from the Group's
two largest customers in manufacturing segment.
While for treasury investment and financial service
segments, the Group has concentration of credit risk
as 55%, 17% and 4% (2019: 53%, 10% and 4%)
of total loan and note receivables (including loans to
associates) were due from the Group’s five largest
borrowers, two associates, and related parties of the
JV Partner respectively.

“EIEFESFR MEEREEARAE

FEBERREREOHEABER
ERBZBERETERBEE K&
EEXrEUR A REERTFZFE=S
ETRG AEBZHRBEER
RBAERAZBEEEFRAD A
o lb5h > B R BINBRRAE R B &
ER MUENIBZEZEREEMD
EERABNEREERBIRE- T
Ems EEERRTEEBZEE
REEARRBARARR®-

THMEABDZER BREBRE
WERDE AEBFEHEEBAZ
AERMBRT UKREBREHA
REER SRR, HEHFAZHEA
TRHER UREREEERRK-

HARZHEFREBTEEUBREE
ERSMEERE A AEERSEES
Bk BiReMBRRERMAINZE
HERBTMEEREEES-

FEBRFHRNETBEEFRIE
TZzRBEL MEYEERARE
hZiERe

AEENTBEEETRAR BEES
ERAEBUEDENMATELR
BELHREDE2ESRREBE
M% (ZE—NE:8%) B 7t
MBERERETMBREIEMS » &
EEEEEEYTRR FRAXE
BRAERA - MEBREQATD RS
ERN B ER 2B G
FEWERREREE (BETHER
2B Z255%17%K4% (=
— N 153%10%K%4%) °
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

260

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(iii) ESERAKR &)

(a) Impairment of trade receivables of (a) HEHDBEZEZEWKKRZHE
manufacturing segment
The Group measures loss allowances for AEBBENEHEREERS
trade receivables of manufacturing segment B EHEGERENEES
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which FEWNEE BB E  ZEEE
is calculated using a provision matrix which REEBREUBEEEANERD
is based on days past due for groupings of fEARR AR B B B EERE
customer segments that have similar loss &
patterns.
The following tables provide information about TRINBEERAERN RS H
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for K2 EBSRWEREERRX
the trade receivables at the end of the reporting TEHAEEEEER !
period:
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2020 —E-EF loss rate amount allowance
TEHARS 1B IREAEE SRR E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET
Current BIHA 0.3 108,501 356
0 - 30 days past due AHR0ZE30H 0.3 13,188 46
31 - 90 days past due #HEA31ZE90H 0.6 2,588 16
Over 90 days past due BEA90R MU £ 100.0 1,515 1,515
125,792 1,933
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. BHEBEEBRREEK (&

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(a) Impairment of trade receivables of

(iii) ESERAKR #&)

(a) HESEZEGEWRMHBIE

manufacturing segment (continued) (=

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
2019 —E—-hE loss rate amount allowance
TAHARS IR IREARME SRR E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FET FET
Current BN A 0.5 93,273 500
0 - 30 days past due BHA0ZE30H 0.6 14,272 81
31 - 90 days past due HHA31E90H 0.7 1,206 8
Over 90 days past due BHEA0H UL 59.2 2,281 1,351
111,032 1,940

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past two years. These rates

are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
insurance coverage on doubtful debts and
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of

the receivables.

—EIEEER

BB EXLERBEAMERN
BERGEECRBH &FLX
EFERE URRIREBEH
BHEALERRINEE R
AR AU 1R B B 3R B R e A e A &
B EWRIEE S ERREE
MR R °
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

262

(a)

(b)

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(iii) ESERAKR &)

Impairment of trade receivables of (a) HEDLEZEGEWARBE
manufacturing segment (continued) €-
The following table reconciles the impairment TRAXFEERANMESL
loss of trade receivables of manufacturing NS IEE 5 EWERFURE
segment arising from contracts with customers 518 2 HER -
for the year:
2020 2019
—E°%H —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January nw—HA—H 1,940 1,685
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ (B[R {ERE) /C R
impairment loss recognised ZREEE (39) 274
Exchange realignment bE 7 SE R 32 (19)
At 31 December n+ZBE=+—H 1,933 1,940
Change in gross carrying amounts of the trade FRNE S EWRREREAREE
receivables during the year did not result in BT EERNEEEERRE
significant change in the loss allowance. #o
Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HEREREHMRFESEZI

at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables, other receivables, loans
to associates, loans receivables and note
receivables of treasury investment and financial
service segments using the general approach
under HKFRS 9. Impairment of these financial
assets was provided based on the “three-stage”
model by referring to the changes in credit
quality since initial recognition.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)
Financial assets that are not credit-impaired on
initial recognition are classified in “Stage 1" and
have their credit risk continuously monitored by
the Group. The ECL is measured on a 12-month
basis.

- If a significant increase in credit risk (as
defined in accounting policy note 4(h)(ii)
since initial recognition is identified, the
financial asset is moved to “Stage 2" but it
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The
ECL is measured on lifetime basis.

- If the financial asset is credit-impaired (as
defined in accounting policy note 4(h)(ii),
the financial asset is then moved to “Stage
3"”. The ECL is measured on lifetime basis.

— At Stages 1 and 2, interest income is
calculated on the gross carrying amount
(without deducting the loss allowance).
If a financial asset subsequently becomes
credit-impaired (Stage 3), the Group is
required to calculate the interest income
by applying the effective interest method
in subsequent reporting periods to the
amortised cost of the financial asset
(the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) rather than the gross carrying
amount.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. BHEBEEBRREEK (&

(iii) EERAMR (&)

(b) HMERERSHMRESEBZ I
A TFHEAABZIEZE
HEEE (1)

R RERFTEEEREZ
CRHEEDESTF BRI
AEBBEEZHEERK-
RS EEE12E R E &5t

=
EO

— Y RERER A L IE
ERBABIEN (EER
G 5T EURMTEE4(h)i)) 2 8l
THMEEBRBREIS _ME
B BRNEREERIE
R EEERREHEE

stEe

- HERMEEZEERE
(E& R G5 BURM
a(h)(in) > Rl E EER
EIE=fER -FAHEE
BREEEAEESE-

- RE-_RFZEER B
WA ZREABE CH 0
BIRER) StE-HER
BEERUEBRAEERE
(B=BR) ~EEBA
RERREHBMEIRE
EZ#BEMA CGREBE
RS R B RE > T IFER
HA4B(E) AR B RAMRE
SHEFEWA -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. B EMEEEHERKE (&

AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EEEKE &)
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERLTHRESEZIE
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFAR DS EZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)

The gross carrying amounts of the financial
assets of treasury investment and financial
service segments, and thus the maximum
exposure to loss, are as follows:

PHERENREMRBDEZS
MEERTAE AEER K
R R

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12185 Fa 51
58518 PHFEREEHE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—EE FREE BB st
2020 —EEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TAT TET
Trade receivables B Z R
- Doubtful* —RER* = - 90,616 90,616
Other receivables HAEMNRE BEK
included in prepayments, ~ EfEUERT
deposits and other HA e R IE
receivables
- Normal* —Eg* 25,400 - - 25,400
- Doubtful* —RER* - 100,000 240,392 340,392
Loan receivables — secured” [EURE T — A
- Normal* —EE* 322,903 - - 322,903
- Doubtful* —RER* - 566,151 890,303 1,456,454
Note receivables — secured* FEUTZ # — & 15 19
- Doubtful* —RER* - 230,137 - 230,137
Loans to associates FHENBZER
- Normal* —FE* 303,632 - - 303,632

651,935 896,288 1,221,311 2,769,534
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. AR SIEEERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERE (&)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b)) BIBEREREZHMIRFEDIEZ I
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFABR DTN EZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A T8 A
EEEE SHREREERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—PEER = REER B 4t
2019 “E-NE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET FTHAT TAT

Trade receivables B S MR

- Doubtful* —RER* - 55,715 96,406 152,121
Other receivables FABMNRE-BEk

included in prepayments, EftEWIRZ Z

deposits and other Hitnpe W R IE

receivables

- Normal* —FE* 297,774 - - 297,774

- Doubtful* _$EE - - 228,472 228,472
Loan receivables — secured* FEUE T)\ P=Riiwiil

- Normal* —1F% 653,371 - - 653,371

- Doubtful* —RER* - 567,585 438,831 1,006,416
Note receivables — secured* [EURZ#— A #H#

- Normal* —EE* 986,837 - - 986,837

- Doubtful* —RER* - 220,137 - 220,137
Loans to associates ‘?Hﬁﬁ*ﬁ’z} ZER

- Normal* —1F% 288,638 - - 288,638

2,226,620 843,437 763,709 3,833,766
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
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AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(iii) ESERAKR &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HERERZTHRESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFAR DS EZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)

During the year, due to the effect of COVID-19, FR HRTEBREsRNEE K
the Group extended the maturity date of certain EREBETRRERKRERRER
loan receivables and note receivables to 31 HEFHERE - —F+=
December 2021. The gross carrying amounts B=+—H &REREWHRIERZ
of the modified receivables as at 31 December ETE+_A=+—HZKA
2020 are as follows: WENT
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 B TaHA
EEB#E 2 PTEIEEHBE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEER BIRE F=RE L
2020 —BECERE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FHET FTHET THET THET
Loan receivables EER 240,178 566,151 - 806,329
Note receivables W ZE - 230,137 - 230,137
240,178 796,288 - 1,036,466

No modification loss is recognised during the
year as the directors are of the opinion that
the financial impact of the modification is not
significant.

The credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “normal when there is no
information indicating that receivables had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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40. BHEBEEBRREEK (&

(iii) FERAR (&

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERZTHRFEEZIN
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFABR DTN EZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)

During the year, ECLs of these receivables were REE ZERBRNRIEBZTERHR
assessed on individual basis. The expected loss EEBEEZENEZEN G
rates applied to each class of financial asset REME B EmEE 2B
above are summarised below: BEEMWT
2020 2019
“E°% ZZ-NE
Default Expected Default Expected
Note rate loss rate rate loss rate
i3 BHE BHEEER BHE  BHEBEX
Trade receivables B AR
Stage 2 FUREL - - 30% 30%
Stage 3 IR (i) 100% 18% - 100% 100% 9% - 100%
Other receivables HitERIE
Stage 1 F1ISEL 2% 2% 2% 2%
Stage 2 BEEL 23% 23% - -
Stage 3 F3ME 91% - 100% 91% -100% 95% - 100% 95% - 100%
Loan receivables EWER
Stage 1 F1EE 2% 2% 2% 2%
Stage 2 FURE 17%-26% 17%-26% 10%-30% 9% -23%
Stage 3 Rl (i) 100%  50% - 62% 100%  34% - 46%
Note receivables ERER
Stage 1 B1PEER - - 2% 2%
Stage 2 FUREL 26% 26% 10% 10%
Loans to associates FHEATNER
Stage 1 F1&E 2% 2% 2% 2%

—EIEEER
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

268

(b)

Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)
“Default rate” represents probability of default
of the respective financial assets without taking
into accounts the value of the underlying
collaterals. "Expect loss rate” is a ECL rate of
the respective financial assets after taking into
accounts the value of the underlying collaterals
and/or expected recovery rates and time value of
money.

There is no requirement for collateral for trade
receivables, other receivables and loans to
associates except trade receivable from a debtor
is covered by collaterals mentioned in note (i)
below.

Details of collaterals of loans receivables and
note receivables are set out in Notes 24 and 25
respectively. The Group has taken into accounts
the value of the following collaterals for certain
trade receivable and loan receivables when
assessing their ECLs:

listed shares of owned by a borrower;

- listed shares of owned by a related
companies of a borrower;

—  equity interest in a borrower; and

- interest in rights to use a number of sea

areas in the PRC owned by the group
companies of the borrowers.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REM B RRNE

40. BHHEREEBRREEK (&)

(iii) EERR (&)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

There is no significant change in the quality of
these collaterals as a result of deterioration or
changes in the collateral policies of the Group

during the year.

Note:

(i) Information on collaterals for assessment of

ECLs of credit-impaired receivables:

(b) HBEREREZMIREFEZ I
A FEAARmAEZE
HEERE (B
RER ZFHMENERL
BEATERERRBEREEN

Htaz -

(i) FAETLEERERKRIEA
NEBEEGENERRRE

i
2020 2019
Gross carrying amounts IRERE —_BEHF —Z2—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THET
Borrower A BRA 471,018 448,418
Borrower B (classified under & TAAB R=Z—
Stage 2 in 2019) DIEAFEIMER) 274,840 N/AT 78 F3
Borrower C (classified under BERAC (RZE—
Stage 2 in 2019) DIBAF2MEER) 154,032 N/AT 38

- As at 31 December 2020,

trade and

loan receivables due from debtors under
control of the same group (“Borrower
A") with aggregate gross carrying
amount set out in above table were
in default. The amount of ECLs of
HK$229,808,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$205,303,000) was estimated
with reference to the fair value of the
rights to use of sea areas in the PRC
held as security as at 31 December 2020
of HK$1,807 million (2019: HK$1,707
million) adjusted for estimated amount
of charges imposed by other registered
preferential creditors, irrecoverable interest
income and time value of money.

- RIZEZZEE+ZAH
=+—HB REBE
MEEEE P E RN B
BEBEEHZEHEA
(TEFRAA ) &R
B 5 IE WK T R FE W
BEREEH -NZTC
ZEF+-"HB=+—H
HNEREEEE
229,808,000 75 (Z =
— £ 205,303,000
B) WBRER T
ZEF+-"HB=+—H
FEIRF B E S5
ERAEAFE,807H
BB (CTE—AF:
1,707 EH&7T) A5t
2t s miE L
BEARR G
L NE N E IS N
REEEREEEESR

o
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MR R EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

Note: (continued)
(i) (continued)

- As at 31 December 2020, loan receivable
due from a debtor (“Borrower B”) with
carrying amount set out in above table
was in default. The amount of ECL of
HK$60,424,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$39,596,000) was estimated
with reference to the estimated business
value of the 55% equity interest in the
debtor held by the Group of HK$925
million adjusted for irrecoverable interest
income and time value of money.

- As at 31 December 2020, loan receivable
due from a debtor (“Borrower C”)
with carrying amount set out in above
table was assessed as default. When
determining the ECLs of HK$91,831,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$32,042,000), the Group has taken
into account the market value of listed
shares amounting to HK$5,918,000
pledged by Borrower C to the Group.
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39,596,000 7T) /5 2
EZREERBENED
N 55 % B% R A9 & 51 %
HEMB2-EEE T
= N El T
WAREEEBEER
ERREE

- RIZ-_ZTE+_A
:—i—— H>ERmEEH
RERNB—ZEBA
(TEHACY &£y
FEWEREWTEH A
BEN -HEENRZZT
“EFE+ZRB=4+—
BWEHEERISE
91,831,000 T (&
—LEE 32,042,000
) R AEEB K&
ERACHEASEREEH
WEMKRGHIBER
5,918,00038 7T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REM B RRNE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. RS IEEERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (i) EERK (&)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERLTHRESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFABR DTN EZE
financial service segments (continued) B ERE (&)

The following table reconciles the impairment TRAKXFEWIIFRKEREFRE
loss of trade receivables, other receivables, NZHBREREMRE D8
loan receivables, note receivables and loan to T & 5 W AR 7k~ H e Wk
associates of treasury investment and financial I8~ FEHQELE’X FERWERERT
service segments that were not arising from BEABzEMZBEREY
contracts with customers for the year. ARe
Trade receivables B Z AR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 B 1
88 2HEREESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B BREE E=ME st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TERT FTERT FER

At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hF—FB—H - - - -
Impairment loss B RERE
recognised - 16,715 17,979 34,694

At 31 December 2019  RZZE—H4E

+ZB=+—H - 16,715 17,979 34,694
Impairment loss RERE (R R
(reversed)/recognised - (16,715) 44,920 28,205
At 31 December 2020 RIZ-ZF
+-B=+—H - - 62,899 62,899
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. B EMEEEHERKE (&
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EEEKE &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERLTHRESEZIE
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFAR DS EZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&

Other receivables B ERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 B &8
FEEE SHEREESRE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEE B PEER BoMER #ast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT

At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NFE—HF—H 10,492 - 179,105 189,597
Reclassified from loans B FH=AGER

to associates BHNE - - 32,393 32,393
Impairment loss B RERE

recognised 2,000 - 8,145 10,145

At 31 December 2019  RIZE—HE

+Z-B=+—H 12,492 - 219,643 232,135
Impairment loss RERE (R /R
(reversed)/recognised (10,002) 23,000 6,807 19,805
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-Z&E
+-BA=+—H 2,490 23,000 226,450 251,940
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

40. BHEBEEBRREEK (&

(iii) FERAR (&

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

(b) HBEREREMRFESEZ N
R FEAARmAEZE
HBEERE (&

Loan receivables TEWE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B A
EEB#E 2PEHEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEER B PEER FREER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TAET TERT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—F—H 3,144 - 174,420 177,564
Impairment loss R RERE
recognised 4,010 81,363 32,883 118,256
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—AE
+-BA=+—H 7,154 81,363 207,303 295,820
Impairment loss RERHE (#R) R
(reversed)/recognised (5,612) 53,180 174,759 222,327
At 31 December 2020 RIZE-ZTHE
+Z-B=+—H 1,542 134,543 382,062 518,147
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

274

AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

40. BFHEEREEBRREER (&)

(iii) ESERAKR &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

Note receivables

12-month
ECLs
12{8 B &
EEEE
Stage 1
B
HK$'000
FTHET

(b) HBEREREMRFEFEZ N
A FEAARmAEZE
HEEBE (&

Lifetime ECLs

2HFEBEEERA
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
24 FEMEE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FERT FER

At 1 January 2019

RZZ2—-hE—A—H

Impairment loss B RERE
recognised - 22,014 - 22,014

At 31 December 2019  RIZE—HE
+-A=+—H - 22,014 - 22,014

Impairment loss HERRERE
recognised - 37,822 - 37,822

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-Z&E
+-A=+—H - 59,836 - 59,836
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRERNE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. RS IEEERKE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(iii) ESERAKR #&)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and

(b) HBEREREMRFESEZ N

R FEAARmAEZE

financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&
Loans to associates FHENGEH
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 B & HH
88 SHEREESEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—PEER B PEER BREER Hzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FTHET THT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—F—H 4,036 - 32,393 36,429
Reclassified to other SN EAAMERRIE
receivables - - (32,393) (32,393)
At 31 December 2019 RIZZE—AER
and 2020 _ECTHE
+-B=+—H 4,036 - - 4,036
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

The following significant changes in the gross
carrying amounts contributed to the increase in

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(iii) EERAMR (&)

(b) HMERERESHMRESEZ I
A TFHEAABBIEZE
AEERE ()
THIEmBEsEREFHER
7 £F [ FE B FE R AR IE 5 18 1

the loss allowances of the respective receivables 1
during the year:
Trade receivables B SR

Changes in loss allowances

iR EEE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAQEEE 12{8 B & 2HATER
carrying amounts ZEEE ZEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—PEER BREER FREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TAT FTET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NFE—HF—H - - - -
Origination of new EL IR RIENR
receivables net of B4R RE
those settled - 8,615 - 8,615
Increase in receivables EREF=[EEZ
moved to stage 3 PR RIBIE N - - 17,979 17,979
Other change: Hith&E)
increase in ECL rate BREEBEEIEM - 8,100 - 8,100
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+-B=+—H - 16,715 17,979 34,694
Increase in receivables BB EHE=[EE
moved to stage 3 FEURIEIE N - (16,715) 16,715 -
Other change: Hith&g)
increase in ECL rate BHREERERIEM - - 28,205 28,205
At 31 December 2020 RIZTZEF
+-B=+—H - - 62,899 62,899
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REM B RRNE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. MEREMEIEBEREE (&
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EERR (&
(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERLTHRESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFABR DTN EZE

financial service segments (continued)

Other receivables

HBEERE (&
b=yl e e

Changes in loss allowances

FIEREEE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAEEEE 1218 5 fa A 2 HEHA
carrying amounts FEEE FEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—REE FREER B Mzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FAET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NE—F—H 10,492 - 179,105 189,597
Reclassified from loans BT HEATER
to associates BN - - 32,393 32,393
Origination of new EEMEWRHIEINR
receivables net of B EWEIE
those settled 2,000 - - 2,000
Recovery of debts W BlEH - - (12,454) (12,454)
Other change: increase  ELfh& &
in ECL rate TRHA{E B IE N - - 20,599 20,599
At 31 December 2019  RZE—HF
+Z-B=+—H 12,492 - 219,643 232,135
Increase in receivables EREF _[EEY
moved to stage 2 FEWRRIEIE N (2,000) 2,000 - -
Recovery of debts L qEIES (8,002) - - (8,002)
Other change: HiEs) .
increase in ECL rate BHEEBEXREN - 21,000 6,807 27,807
At 31 December 2020 RIZ-ZHF
+-B=+—H 2,490 23,000 226,450 251,940
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured
at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)

Loan receivables

MBERERBRKRER (&
(iii) EEEM (&)

(b) MBREREHMRFAEZH
A TEAA RS HEZ 2
AEERE (%)

FEWRE

Changes in loss allowances

FIEREEE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAEEE 12{8 B FE 1 2HTRH
carrying amounts EEEE FEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RE B REER B et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hF—F—H 3,144 - 174,420 177,564
Origination of new EATEWRIBIN R
receivables net of B4 M E
those settled 1,256 9,726 - 10,982
Increase in receivables EREF _[EEY
moved to stage 2 FRURIBSE N (1,400) 1,400 - -
Recovery of debts W el & (1,003) - - (1,003)
Other change: HiEs) .
increase in ECL rate HEEEBEEREM 5,157 70,237 32,883 108,277
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NE&E
+ZA=+—H 7,154 81,363 207,303 295,820
Origination of new EEMERFIEINR
receivables net of B4 FRIE
those settled - 88,509 - 88,509
Increase in receivables BB EHE _IEE
moved to stage 2 FEWFIEIE M (6,412) 6,412 - -
Increase in receivables EBHREZ=[ER
moved to stage 3 PR RIBIE N - (71,637) 71,637 -
Other change: Hith&E)
increase in ECL rate AR E BB EEM 800 29,896 103,122 133,818
At 31 December 2020 RZEZE_Z&F
+ZA=+—H 1,542 134,543 382,062 518,147
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REM B RRNE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. B REMGEEEHERKE (&
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iii) Credit risk (continued) (iii) EEEKE (&)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured (b) HHERERLTHRESEZI
at FVTPL of treasury investment and R FEFABR DTN EZE
financial service segments (continued) HEERE (&)

Note receivables FEWE 5

Changes in loss allowances

BHEEEESY
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAEEE 128 B 1 2N
carrying amounts FEEE FEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ERd 12 BIREE B #st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT FTERT FER

At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hF—HB—H - - - -
Increase in receivables EBREZ_IERZ
moved to stage 2 PR RIEE N - 22,014 - 22,014

At 31 December 2019 WRZZB—hE+_H

=t+—A - 22,014 - 22,014
Other change: Hith&g)
increase in ECL rate FEHE BB EEEN - 37,822 - 37,822
At 31 December 2020 WRIE-EHE
+ZRA=+—H - 59,836 - 59,836
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)
(iii) Credit risk (continued)

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(iii) ESERAKR &)

(b) Impairment of financial assets not measured

at FVTPL of treasury investment and
financial service segments (continued)
Loans to associates

(b) HBEREREMRFEFEZ N
A FEAARmAEZE
HEERE (&

Changes in loss allowances

FIEREEE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
Changes in gross IREAEEE 12{8 B FE 1 2HTRH
carrying amounts EEEE FEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RE B REER B et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NE—FB—H 4,036 - 32,393 36,429
Reclassified to other EnEA
receivables Hoh W s - - (32,393) (32,393)
At 31 December 2019 RZIE—HExK
and 2020 =3
+-A=+—H 4,036 - - 4,036
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE 40. B REMGEEEHERKE (&
AND POLICIES (continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (iv) mBIELEAK

The Group adopts a prudent liquidity risk
management policy to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group also relies on the continuous
financial support from the banks, third party lenders
and related parties and the management closely
monitors its liquidity risk. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company considered that the Group's liquidity
risk is properly addressed and therefore prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities (except for
lease liabilities disclosed in note 18), which are based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of reporting period.

FEERMERZABDESRARE
BHR UERERRRKEHRM
HESTHBR URHETEERZHE
2B U REER EHIR TG
B LETETRMEAGERMT
WZERES tMEMNEERK
ERARHEESER -KAERETH
BIET - B=ZTEMARBEBAL
ZHRBYBZE MEEBREEYE
ZHRHETRAR At ZARFE
ERn AEBZRABESARE
ERERD BAREEBESEEER
IR EWHREK -

TERAVNRREHRETER ZIFT
TeRad (R 18KEZHAES
BRINZEBR TENIHE ZFB-
Z < JH IR 1R 2 5 B P] B AR Z R AR
ZRFHEM REMEEZRMIE
RERBELH -ZXEBEMERE
THREMAE-HANRBFE > RIXR
MMIREEDERNRSHARZFERE
$ o
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mEMBRRMEE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

282

AND POLICIES (continued)

40. BFHEEBEEBRREER (&

(iv) Liquidity risk (continued) (iv) REBIEEER @)
Total
Weighted Within contractual
average 1yearoron undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 to 5 years cash flow amount
—ERE BHRER
IIREFI9F) BREX —EnfF RENERE REE
% HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
% FET FHET FTET FHET
2020 ZZIEE
Non-derivatives: FTEIR:
Trade payables EAENRN - 137,586 - 137,586 137,586
Other payables HERI RN - 211,429 - 211,429 211,429
Loan from a related party —&FBALTER - 2,800 - 2,800 2,800
Loans from a director —REEER 7 127,828 - 127,828 119,465
Borrowings RN 0-9.6 339,195 854,906 1,194,101 993,927
818,838 854,906 1,673,744 1,465,207
Total
Weighted Within contractual
average 1 year or on undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 to 5 years cash flow amount
—ERH BRRER
IR IgF) = BEX —EhF RERELHE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER TET FTET TERT
2019 ZE-NE
Non-derivatives: FTETR:
Trade payables EVVINE S - 113,319 - 113,319 113,319
Other payables HMEM RN - 245,423 - 245,423 245,423
Loans from directors BEER 0-7 106,359 - 106,359 91,055
Borrowings B 26-8 1,033,712 762,004 1,795,716 1,628,256
1,498,813 762,004 2,260,817 2,078,053
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE

AND POLICIES (continued)

(v) Macroeconomic risk
The Group is operating in a highly competitive
business and economic environment, in particular,
the manufacturing segment. Manufacturing
segment is greatly affected by its customers which
are highly volatile combined with the rising labour
and production costs. The Group’s manufacturing
segment has to compete with its competitors on
various factors such as product variety, product
performance, customer service, quality, pricing,
new product innovation, timely delivery and brand
recognition.

On the other hand, volatility in Hong Kong securities
market may affect the Group’s performance on listed
securities investments resulting in fluctuations in
unrealised fair value gains or losses. An interest rate
hike is highly likely and this will affect not only the
Group’s cost of borrowings but also costs of purchase
of materials.

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

40.

41.
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Bt 753k R BT o
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) A. EFXREEERE (&
The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which rEEBRRAELASEBLEX e’ Rk
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The UEXRBEENEBRFHE BERAEAR oK
Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio of not EECZHEREFEARAEBRILERIEA
more than 80%. Net debt includes trade payables, other 80% - BEFEEEEZENRAN  HEAh
payables and accruals, borrowings, loans from directors FENERARESAER B -EFER
and loan from a related company, less bank balances and M —ERBABER  BIRITHEER RE
deposits. Capital represents total equity. The gearing ratios Mo BARIEHABE NREFHARZERX
as at the end of reporting period were as follows: BELEERUT
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade payables B EMIRT 137,586 113,319
Other payables and accruals HMMENERR R ESTE R 211,429 245,423
Borrowings B 993,927 1,628,256
Loans from directors EEEW 119,465 91,055
Loan from a related party — % B ALTER 2,800 -
Less: Bank balances and deposits B IRITHER RTER (28,464) (19,449)
Net debt I=EEPERE 1,436,743 2,058,604
Total capital BAARER 1,189,191 2,178,782
Total capital and net debt BARBENREEFEE 2,625,934 4,237,386
Gearing ratio BARBMR/LEE 55% 49%
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42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new
employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group based on a specified
percentage of the employee’s basic salary, depending on
the length of service with the Group. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the amount of forfeited contributions. No forfeited
contributions were utilised in this manner for both years.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employees subject to a limit
of HK$1,500 since 1 June 2014.

The PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the local governments in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 43, MEEHEE ZEEHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan from a
Lease related Loans from Interest
liabilities ~ Borrowings party directors payable
—SHEAL
HEER R B% EEAE FERFE

(Note 18) (Note 28) (Note 29) (Note 29) (Note 27)
(Hi5£18) (Hi3t28) (Hf529) (Hi729) (Hf5t27)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAET AR FTER AR
At 1 January 2020 A ZE_EF—-F—H 18,427 1,628,256 - 91,055 84,475
Changes from cash flows: Renegs .
New borrowings G ER - 467,691 1,800 21,860 -
Repayment of borrowings BEREN - (291,967) - - -
Repayment of loan interests BEEXFE - - - - (14,157)
Lease payments HERR (9,525) = = = =
Total changes from financing RERSRELHEH
cash flows: (9,525) 175,724 1,800 21,860 (14,157)
Other change: Hith&g :
Offsetting arrangement REZH - (890,616) - - (44,857)
Reclassification EEipps! - - 1,000 (1,000) -
New leases e 7,092 - - - -
COVID-19-related rent concession ¥ B mEHEEHEE R (898) = = = =
Modification of lease AEEBX (5,112) = = = =
Interest expenses FEMZ 1,692 53,808 - 7,437 11,918
2,774 (836,808) 1,000 6,437 (32,939)
Exchange adjustments: ERRE: 6 26,755 - 113 2,134
At 31 December 2020 AZRIDE
+ZB=+—H 11,682 993,927 2,800 119,465 39,513
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A
=]

MR M EE

43. MEFHEEZERHKR (@)

Loan from a
Lease related Loans from Interest
liabilities Borrowings company directors payable
— R
HEBR &M REEN EE=E EEFE
(Note 18) (Note 28) (Note 29) (Note 27)
(Hizt18) (H1z28) (H13£29) (Hrz227)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—-NF—F—H 19,070 1,205,451 200,000 86,351 54,956
Changes from cash flows: Renmees:
New borrowings g ER - 945,629 - 1,000 -
Repayment of borrowings BERBT - (713,274) - (2,366) -
Repayment of loan interests BREMIE - - - - (39,551)
Lease payments HER® (11,485) - - - -
Total changes from financing MERTNEBLHEE
cash flows: (11,485) 232,355 - (1,366) (39,551)
Other change: Hith&g :
Reclassification BNNE - 200,000 (200,000) - -
New leases ki1 11,516 - - - -
Modification of lease HEENR (3,542) - - - -
Interest expenses FERMZ 2,927 - - 6,137 70,148
10,901 200,000 (200,000) 6,137 70,148
Exchange adjustments: ERAE (59) (9,550) - (67) (1,078)
At 31 December 2019 RZIE-I%F
+-A=+—H 18,427 1,628,256 - 91,055 84,475
“EITHEFR MEEZERSEERRAAE 287



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A
=g

R e b

44, SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the general
partners and limited partners of several Cayman Islands
funds set up by the Group (some of which are controlled
by the Group) entered into several restructuring and debt
assignment agreements which give rise to the following
non-cash transactions:

288

(a)

Loan receivables, note receivables and other
receivables with carrying amount of HK$461,989,000,
HK$165,874,000 and HK$67,314,000 respectively
were assigned to lenders of the Group to settle loan
payables and accrued interests thereon to the extent
of HK$700,107,000, which resulted in a gain of
HK$4,930,000.

A limited partner in two Cayman Islands funds (“Fund
| and Fund II”) has withdrawn from Fund | and Fund
Il. Certain subsidiaries of the Company, which have
contributed HK$1 in each of Fund | and Fund II, have
become the sole investors in Fund | and Fund Il since
then. HKFRS 3 has been applied to account for the
deemed acquisition. Further details are set out in
Note 37.

Note receivables of two Cayman Islands funds owned
by the Group and trade receivables with carrying
amount of HK$820,963,000 and HK$66,000,000
respectively were transferred to limited partners (the
“LPs"”) of certain Cayman Islands funds in which the
Group had no control (“Funds Ill & IV and Fund V")
in exchange for i) 100% equity interests in Funds Il
& IV and Fund V held by the LPs and additional 25%
equity interest in Absolute Return Fund in which
the Group owned 75% equity interest prior to this
arrangement; and ii) settlement of the Group’s loan
payable of HK$235,366,000. Further details are set
out in Note 37.
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rEBRIZETHEEEES BETE
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EUTIRERS !

(a)

BREED R %461,989,000/8 70
165,874,000/ 75 /67,314,000
T2 ERWEMR B ER R EMAE
WHRIEBEEETAEBR ZER A
LUE{F 700,107,000 7T A B9
ENERKREESHNE  EEWE
4,930,0003 7T °

mEREHEEE (B —kES
TNDZ—RERGBAERHES
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BEEMAEE —KRESEZZMHE—
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ERBLUMBFUBEEAR E
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IREESDFI#820,963,0008 7T &
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FEWRMEEETAEE T EZEF
zETHEREES ((EE2=K
MEEEH) 2BREBA (TBR
EBAN) UM EREBARTE
ZEESZKROKREEHEFHNI00%
RERANEBRIILZHRIER75%
R BEBRESPIEEIN25%
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45.

46.

47.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR M BmRW T
DIVIDEND 45. g2
The directors do not recommend any dividend for the EEETEZMEAFERNERRE (Z
current year (2019: Nil). T—hFHE) o
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46. B
2020 2019
—EIEH “E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TABT
Commitments for acquisition of WEEYI 2 BB &
property, plant and equipment Rz AR 915 -
APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL  47. it EEEaMERE

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and EExgRN S —F=AZ+hH#MLE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March MR BERIG SRR
2021.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBHEHE

31 December 2020
SETEETE R e

A summary of the published results and of the assets and ZAEBERBEZAFEMBRFEHBZESHEL
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as ZBZHHERERZOCTBEEUREERAR
extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set I Z&FHF| U T o

out below.
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
k- Sk 3~ —E-NE “T-N\E —E—tE “E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET FET FTET TET
Revenue A 271,575 208,941 388,892 1,347,408 803,194
(Loss)/profit before income tax FERIER,/ () A
credit/(expense) wA,/ (B8 (1,036,986) (602,600) (509,579) 557,316 222,208
Income tax credit/(expense) FisRESR/ () 7,012 (56,086) 81,911 (101,203) (47,036)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (518) /57 (1,029,974) (658,686) (427,668) 456,113 175,172
(Loss)/profit attributable to: BUF AL
(548) /a7l
Owners of the Company E/NSIEZZEUN (1,029,974) (658,619) (427,668) 456,113 177,228
Non-controlling interests RS - (67) - - (2,056)
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Total assets BEEE 2,950,325 4,496,887 5,150,896 5,463,624 2,791,497
Total liabilities SEEHE (1,761,134) (2,318,105) (2,304,745) (2,142,666) (1,624,119)
Total net assets EEFELH 1,189,191 2,178,782 2,846,151 3,320,958 1,167,378
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Renco Holdings Group Limited with its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group” or “We") has substantially grown its businesses
spanning from Printed Circuit Board (“PCB"”) manufacturing
to financial services. Aiming to become Asia‘s leading asset
manager and maintain our competitive edge in the PCB industry,
we are committed to integrating sustainability principles
into our strategic planning and daily operation through
transparent measures, given delivering enduring value to our
major stakeholders — shareholders, employees, customers,
and the wider society. Therefore, we attach great importance
to employee care, business integrity, customer satisfaction,
environmental conservation and community engagement with
explicit missions and objectives.

Respecting Business
Our Employees Integrity
SEEE [HESERE:

Protecting the
Environment

REEIRIR

Having a deep ambition to construct long-term trusted ties
with our stakeholders in the community, the Group is pleased
to publish the environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
report (the “Report”) summarising its ESG performance and
initiatives.

IRIF - HEREBHRS

B A5
RAHERERARABSRANBAR (B4
£/ HHRM) 2EXFBREE > BEHRG
AR (TENRIARERMR)) REEZRRTS - AR
7 LB BRBYFE A% P 555 A8 3 R R B BR O BB
RERABEER REMARMNALZEE
RERREBIGBIRTERTGEEE /X
ERFNE-RR-EE - BERPRERLEREM
BABE A ZMPSEEREREIHE B
XER - BEAREE - RERERTESH
W IE AR Em KRBT

Satisfying
Our Customers

TERME

Engaging the

Community

HtE2H

|

FAEEMATERAHERE - HERE R

(TESG ) B MBHZESGRE (HRE)) &
REFEERHTEANZFNERIRAGRE
38 %

T REER MEZEREERRAE 291



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE~ %i& SRk =

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The Report examines the Group’s ESG management approaches,
environmental and social performance and material topics
during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(the “reporting period”), with the scope of all business
segments including PCB manufacturing business, treasury
investments, financial services and asset management in Hong
Kong and the PRC'. The key performance indicators (“KPI")
as disclosed in the Report is based on our business in Hong
Kong and the manufacturing plant in Qujiang, which is the only
manufacturing plant in the PCB manufacturing business.

REPORTING STANDARD

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Report follows
all the principles as stipulated in Appendix 27:

WS E
rREBRLEBNR_ZT_ZTF—-—H—HB=E
“ECTFF+"A=+—HHH ((HREHA[E)
ZESGEEAZ - RERMEENUKREIES
B BEREMEEF I aEREERT
EEEERIRBEIRRNERES MBRE U
BB REEEE - REMKEZAREIISR
(TKP1)) W ER RPN EBREF RIC#T
RO BLIE IR (R R 7 BT ) 4652 B8 A B 36 SR TS RO It —
RER) °

WS AR
ESGREEREEBHARBAERAT R
EHRAIME7E T2 BE H B REARS
SR RECHBEMB 2B MA%E
B :
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Materiality

EEM

The Group has determined the
content of the Report based on
the results of the stakeholder
engagement and materiality
assessment and has covered the
key ESG issues of concern to
stakeholders.

AEEERBEFNESRAER
ERUFEMEERSHIAS
I ERERDE BRI EEESG
FHe

During the reporting period, the Group did not engage in any L
consultancy and corporate solution services due to the current
capital market fluctuations and the adverse impacts of the

COVID-19 outbreak.

Quantitative

21t

The environmental and social
KPIs have been disclosed in
the ESG report. To provide the
stakeholder with a comprehensive
understanding of the Group’s
ESG performance, the criteria,
methodology and references used
to calculate the KPIs are set out in
the ESG report.

BERLEKPIERESGRER
BE-ATSRHNBEHEAERN
ESGRIBARD T ESGRE
A2 7 B st EKPIRNERI /5
ERBERR
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Consistency

—EtE

The Group uses consistent
reporting and calculation
methods as far as judiciously
practicable and details
significant changes in
data or methods in the
corresponding chapters to
achieve comparability of ESG
performance.

AEBAEBRAUTHANRETE
B—BRRERERE LR
HEEMFRBE RS ENE
REF > LUERESGRIEMAILE
Mo

PR EHE AR BRI B AT E RS R ER
FREBENERFE WAERTERHEM
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CONTACT & FEEDBACK

The Group believes a strong trusted relationship with our
community is critical for our business sustainability. We
treasure your opinions on this ESG report and our sustainability
performance. If you have any comments or suggestions, please
feel free to contact us via info@renco.com.hk.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that well-established ESG principles and
practices will increase investment values and provide long-term
returns to stakeholders, therefore the Board attaches great
importance to that.

Board Statement

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s ESG-related
matters, including the performance, strategies, and compliance
to relevant laws and regulations. The Board monitors the
accomplishment of ESG-related actions and reviews the content
and quality of the ESG report of the Group annually.

To precisely manage key ESG issues, the Group employed an
independent consulting firm to conduct materiality assessment
on ESG issues. Stakeholder surveys have been carried out
to collect opinions from internal and external stakeholders,
including directors, which allowed the Board to identify
and prioritise the material issues of the Group. The Board is
well informed about the results and will keep reviewing the
stakeholder engagement channels and exercise.

To make sure the management of ESG issues is on the
right track, the Board oversees the coordination between
departments according to their respective targets, and will look
for opportunities to set more explicit ESG goals and targets for
the Group.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HBREBARS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE~ 2 AEARS

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group understands the best way to manage its business is
having a strong collaboration with its stakeholders thus values
their interests and views, and above all, their participation.

To identify stakeholders’ insights and concerns in relevance to
business operation, the Group has been maintaining regular
communication with the major stakeholders through various
channels, which are illustrated in the table below:

fRR2 8
FEBPREBEEG 2 REREREER
MEEFRECFERE AL MEERFH
BZHNmAER URKREZ2H-

AR FNENERETEEC REREL
FEB-—HEBTRATZEEREETE
RpERFEHES .

Types of Expectation and
stakeholder group requirements Communication channels
FipEARERN FEHA R E 3K BREERE
Shareholders e Returns e Announcements
RER [O] %R NS
e Compliant operation e Shareholders conferences
BREE RERERE
e Raise company value
R ABIEE

e Transparency in information and
effective communication

ENMEREREN BB
Customers e Qutstanding products and services e (Customer communication meeting
e BEEmERT XRBEBEE
e Health and safety e (Customer service centre and hotlines
RERZS BRIRFE RO REAGES
e Performance of contracts e Customer feedback surveys
B1T&% ERRERAE
e Operate with integrity e Social media platforms
IS HRERTE
Employees e Protection of rights e Training and workshop
(== RE o A & Bl RS
e Occupational health e Employee mailbox
H2E R R BE T
e Remunerations and benefits e Employee communication meetings
A E A BEBBEE=Z
e (Career development e House journal and intranet
HEERE P 2B 477 B P Bt 4
e Humanity cares
AR
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RE-HBREBARS

Types of Expectation and
stakeholder group requirements Communication channels
R &EARER FAHIRER BERE
Partners e OQOperate with integrity Reviews and appraisal meetings
B MISEE BE KT LR
e Equal rivalry Business communication
TEHRF Eiky 3!
e Performance of contracts Exchange and discussions
B1T&%8 b st
e Mutual benefit and win-win result Engagement and cooperation
BEEBMREIELR ARREBIE

Government and regulators

BT BB S

Complies with national policies,
laws and regulations

BRCEBERBRRERER
Support local economic growth

Regular information reporting
EHERE

Regular meetings with regulators

R 5 B & EREEEHEER
e Drive local employment Dedicated reports
WmEH S R HEER
e Pay taxes in full and on time Examinations and inspections
¥ b5 FE RN AR BEESL
e Ensure production safety
RZEEE
Environment e Compliant emission Reporting
RiR BB PE ¥R
e Energy saving and emission reduction Investigations and inspections
B BE B EELTIR e
e Ecosystem protection
RELRE
Industry e Establishment of industry standards Participate in industry forums
7% BIUTERE 2MITER
e Drive industry development Visits and inspections
EEITERER Fams
Community and the public ¢ Improve community environment Company website
HERKRAR HEMBIRER NI N
e Participation in charity Announcements
L VNTES S NS
e Transparency in information Interview with media
BfiER IRRSER A

Social media platforms
HRERFE

“EIEFESFR MEEREEARAE
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RIE- B REARS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to identify the ESG issues that are material to the
Group in formulating appropriate ESG strategies on ESG
management and determining the direction of the Report,
the Group has commissioned an independent consultant to
conduct a materiality assessment in form of online survey.
Both our internal and external stakeholders were invited to fill
in the questionnaire and score the identified 32 ESG issues in
accordance with their relevance and importance to the business
operation and the stakeholders themselves respectively. The
main stages of the materiality assessment are as follows:

EEMT MG

AR AREBEERESGERE » UFESGE IR
EEENESCRBEREEREHA AEEE
EABIUBEREARE AT ETEET MG
REBBBRIIBRHRHEEEBE > LD RIR
BHHEXEBESEASNEEGNEBAMKRE
ENHEHN32EESGHEELETT D EE
MHAENEELRUT !

e |dentify and map a list of ESG topics

Stage 1 P R 4R BUESGER RS R
TR— e |dentify key stakeholder group
Al EERHEER
Stage 2 e Conduct stakeholder engagement exercise
SEEZ ETRHESHEH

2% Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

e Prioritize the most material ESG topics by materiality assessment
ZREEMT R EEBESGEREZAEBRF

e Review the result of materiality assessment for ESG report disclosure
and ESG performance improvement in future

BESGHR E B RN B MESGARIKBY 2 IR IRt BER M EAER



Based on the materiality of each of the ESG issues expressed by
the stakeholders, the ESG issues are prioritised and shown in the

materiality matrix below.

HEHMENEENY

Significance to the Stakeholders

Environr;lental
IR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REBEF 0 EHRESG

Materiality Matrix
EEMIER

9
o o)
2® o
g O ©

Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation

HAEEEBREENEEMN

Employment and
Labour Practices

Operating Practices
SEEEG

L

RIE - HEREARS

EEFFMNER M Tt
EENEMERERF ZESGEE

Community

1 Environmental Compliance
RIEEH

2 Air Pollutant Management
ERSREE

3 Wastewater Management
EKEE

4 Greenhouse Gas Emission
BE RSN

5 Waste Management
EE¥) B

6  Energy Consumption
BEIRR K

7  Use of Water Resources
KERER

8 Use of Raw Materials and
Packaging Materials
R e B S it B 6 AR

9 Responding to Climate Change

Rz LR FEH

Prevention and Handling of

Environmental Incidents

TAR R R BIBIE S

Note:

EEKRETER

Employment Compliance
EHRER

Employees’ Remuneration
and Benefits

1E S 7 B 18 7

Employees’ Working Hours
and Rest Period

1ES TIERF2 R 1R H
Diversity and Equal Opportunity
SR TFERE
Occupational Health and
Safety

BHERRALZD

Training and Education
HIEHRE

Prevention of Child Labour and
Forced Labour

B 1E 2 T R 58555 T

The material issues are in bold and italic.

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Operational Compliance 30
AREE
Managing Environmental Risks 31
of Supply Chain
EEMERNIRIE R R
Managing Social Risks of
Supply Chain
EIEHEE I B AR
Procurement Practices
FRIBI1EG
Quality Management

EEE
Customer Health and Safety
ERREEZE
Responsible Sales and
Marketing
EEFHEREN
Customer Service Management
ERRBEE
Intellectual Property Protection
HH E R RE
Research and Development
b E%
Customer Privacy Protection
=R ALBERE
Anti-corruption

REE

32

Charity

Promotion of Community
Development
REHEZEE

Poverty Alleviation
=1

Hiat: EEFEEUHBRABIET-

T REER MEZEREERRAE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- B REARS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to review and develop
corresponding ESG policies and targets, as well as optimising
the ESG reporting disclosure in order to pursue continuous
improvement in our ESG performance in future.

RESPECTING OUR EMPLOYEES

The Group believes attracting and retaining talents is the key
to our business sustainable development; thus, employment
conditions and standards have always been our prime concerns
aligned with the materiality matrix above. We endeavour to
construct a quality workplace which values communication,
innovation, execution, and diversity. Besides, we respect and
treat our people with dignity in accordance with relevant local
laws and international industrial standards, including Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, the Labour Law and the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, and the Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition (“EICC") Code of Conduct.

BRERK AEEREBEERS RHEHEEZ
ESGE R B RUKRBICESGIR H M EE » U
RIRFFEABESGERL

BEST
REBERERIMERBATAAFBEERE X
BoER; At BEGHEREIN—BEAELE
BRI EEEE— N FERIEE
B NBRIEBELESR ERERERE
BIFT - #ITH RZmibe tboh > AR IRAER
MBEFRERTERE (BEEBRER
B - FEEE ARG HEREARETITELAR
B B3 (Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition)
(TEICC)) TR %ER) BERFET -

Employment Objectives

A=k

Provide a diversified and discrimination-free workplace
e Ensure employee occupational health and safety

e Enhance employee training and personal development

Comply fully with relevant laws and regulations

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES

The Group has developed a broad range of responsible
employment practices beyond the regulatory minimum within
our organization by the implementation of employment-
related policies and procedures, including Staff Handbook,
Human Resources Management System and Labour and Ethics
Management Procedure. These policies specify our standards
concerning employee compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, vacations, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
The Human Resources Department is responsible for supervising
the enforcement of the above policies, and organizing training
to interpret policies for each new hires.
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We believe competitive remuneration packages are crucial to
motivate and retain our talents. The Group conducts reviews
and benchmarking on the staff remuneration against the
peers regularly to ensure its competitiveness in the market.
Monthly monetary bonus and discretionary bonus are granted
to eligible employees, depending on their performance. Apart
from the attractive base wages, all employees are entitled to
comprehensive insurance coverage (eg. Five social insurance
schemes and one housing fund in PRC, and medical and
life insurance in Hong Kong), overtime compensation and
allowances etc. We also offer adequate family leave benefits,
including marriage, maternity and birthday leaves, and stipulate
appropriate working hours to ensure employees could achieve
work-life balance.

At Renco, fair and anti-discrimination are our workplace
values. We insist on solely scrutinizing candidates’ competency,
experience, and personal performance with strict prohibition
against discrimination in any form in relation to recruitment,
remuneration, promotion and transfer, dismissal or retirement
process. There is zero tolerance on any kind of discriminatory
behaviour, harassment or victimization at Renco, on the basis
of age, gender, religion, race, decent or place of birth, physical
disability, sexual orientation. Employees will only be dismissed
for reasons such as lack of competence or infringement of
company policies. Renco is also committed to providing equal
opportunities for all employees in all aspects of their work, from
recruitment, training to performance evaluation. A whistle-
blowing system is in place with a dedicated team to investigate
any unfair treatment and take prompt actions.

In terms of labour rights, we advocate the freedom of work
and human rights. To prevent child labour, new employees
are required to provide copies of identification documents for
age verification. All staff must be employed on a voluntary
basis by entering into employee contract, and they are able to
terminate their employment with requested notice or pay in
lieu of notice to prevent forced labour. Once child or forced
labour practices are discovered, the Group would investigate the
cases thoroughly and dismiss related employees immediately.
In addition, the Group supports freedom of association and
collective bargaining.
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Besides, the Group seeks to promote a cohesive and harmonious
labour and management relationship with the belief that
mutual trust is the pre-requisite of employees’ loyalty. We
communicate with our staff regularly through staff meeting,
collecting opinions from the suggestion box and conducting
employee satisfaction survey bi-annually to identify their needs
and concerns. Their views and recommendations are highly
valued for advancing our working conditions. Furthermore, our
staff can also enjoy a wide range of recreational facilities such as
library and basketball court in the factory to take a break from
their work.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material breach of applicable laws and regulations concerning
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, other benefits and welfare and the use of child
labour and forced labour.

Healthy and Safe Workplace

Perceiving a safe and healthy workplace is the cornerstone
of our business operation, we possess a scrupulous standard
beyond a full compliance with the Production Safety Law of the
PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases and the Work Safety Law of the PRC. The
Group’s plant has obtained the ISO 45001:2008 certification,
which systemically identifies, manages and mitigates safety
risks in the production cycle. In order to minimize occupational
injury and illness at root, we are also engaged in raising
staff awareness on safe operation through regular trainings,
especially for the new hires to ensure regulatory compliance.
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2020 Goals and Achievements

—E-EFRRRMM

e Zero significant casualties
e Zero fire and leakage incident

e 100% safety training coverage
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To nurture a safe and healthy workplace, the Group has
formulated safety operating procedures, in-house rules and
emergency preparedness plans, detailing the safety precautions
for various production processes and requested employees to
strictly abide by them. Safety training is arranged according to
the nature of the posts, such as electric work, welding, chemical
handling and working in confined area, so that employees’
competency is certified prior to starting work. In addition,
hazardous chemical drills are held regularly to ensure employees
are familiarized with evacuation routes, skills of evacuation in
emergency situations, general knowledge on safe assembly
and proper application of relevant equipment to handle
chemical leakage. Apart from imprinting safety awareness
into staff’'s mind, we protect them physically by providing all
necessary personal protection equipment for corresponding
workers. During the Reporting Period, we also organised
occupation health training to raise employees’ awareness of the
potential factors affecting health by learning relevant laws and
regulations.

In the past three years, there were no identified work-related
fatalities. During the reporting period, there were 2 work
injuries, thus resulting in 28 lost days.

In correspondence to the outbreak of Coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) worldwide, the Group has implemented a series
of preventive measures and control policy. Special working
arrangement, including shortening working hours and shift
work, was launched so that employees were allowed to work
from home depending on the latest pandemic situation to avoid
mass gatherings. All staff were required to wear masks, as well
as measure body temperature before entering the premise. The
Group also organised relevant education and training to help
employees understand the pandemic better and take effective
precautionary measures. Besides, the management has strived
its best to cooperate and support local government’s pandemic
prevention and control work, and prepared adequate pandemic
prevention supplies for employees.
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Development and Training

Professional competency and development of our employees
serve a pivotal role in our substantial business growth. The
Group pays great attention to cultivating a learning-centric
corporate culture and offering diversified training sessions.
We have established the Training Management Procedure to
improve employees’ knowledge and skills through induction,
internal and external trainings. To better meet employees’ needs
and expectation, annual training plan is set up by identifying
training needs based on employees’ education level, experience,
and skill requirements.

Internal

PR

Induction

AR

e Overview of corporate e Technical skills

background R MrEE 7
TrESEHR e Operational skills
e Company rules, regulations 1BRERT

and code of practices

RERAHEREHRTA
e Job related knowledge, and

basic knowledge about our

QMS and EMS

T {EFERE D 34 LA B2QMS K EMS

B0 58

BERERE

Keeping abreast of technological advancement, and operational
and job diversification, we offered a variety of internal and
external coaching programs, including systematic knowledge,
management skills, and work procedures for our workers
during the reporting period. To ensure safe operation, courses
on “Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction
of Chemicals” and the use of certain hazardous substances
in electrical and electronic equipment were carried out. For
the asset management and financial-related services, the
Group always encourages its staff to learn continuously and
acquire related professional qualifications through reimbursing
professional membership expenses to eligible staff.
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BUSINESS INTEGRITY

Anti-corruption

As an ethical corporate, the Group upholds the highest level
of business integrity and shows zero tolerance of corruption,
bribery, extortion and fraud by the establishment of rigorous
code of conduct. The Group strictly abides by all relevant laws
and regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap.201) of HKSAR, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC and the
Tendering and Bidding Law of the PRC.

Our employees are strictly prohibited from offering or accepting
any forms of advantages such as gifts, entertainment, rewards
and commission, in exchange for jobs, sales, work location or
assignment. We have Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery policy
and the code of conduct stipulated in the staff handbook, and
require all employees to read the relevant contents and sign the
declaration. Besides, employees are expected to declare every
actual or potential conflict of interest by written declaration.
Infringement of the Group’s policy is subject to dismissal or
other disciplinary actions. Internal audits are conducted regularly
to ensure the compliance with policies. The Group has set up
a whistle-blowing system, in which the identities of whistle-
blowers and reporting information are kept strictly confidential.
The independent investigation mechanism helps solve all
suspected cases on bribery, extortion, fraud, money-laundering
and competitive behaviour. We will report the cases to relevant
authorities (e.g. ICAC) for further handling when necessary.

During the reporting period, the Group confirmed that there
were no breaches of relevant laws and regulations, and no
concluded legal cases regarding corruption practices were
brought against the Group or our employees.
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SATISFYING OUR CUSTOMERS

Supply Chain Management

Due to the nature of PCB manufacturing, various metals and
raw materials such as laminates, solder masks and copper
foil are involved in the manufacturing process. It is of utmost
importance to select suppliers that provide reliable and quality
services and supply. We have developed and implemented
a supplier quality management system (“QMS"), including
the Procurement Policy and Procedure. Internal measures
are implemented to govern the selection and evaluations of
suppliers and to monitor their continuous performance on
product quality and service as well as social and environmental
performance. All the potential new suppliers are required to
pass our stringent evaluation before entering into cooperation.
In the event of engaging new suppliers, we check the
compliance status of relevant laws and regulation and evaluate
the development and quality system of the suppliers. To
identify social risks, a vetting process is conducted in respect
of the business licenses, accreditations and qualifications
of suppliers, including various ISO accreditations, to ensure
suppliers” competency, experience and their compliance with
our quality requirements. For our raw materials and automotive
product suppliers, we demand their attainment of relevant
quality standards in their management systems, such as the
ISO 9001, and IATF 16949. Assistance and necessary training
are offered to new suppliers in building their QMS towards the
mentioned standards. While for laminate suppliers, Production
Part Approval Process (“PPAP"”) Report is requested for the
laminates to reduce unexpected failure due to defects in design
and manufacturing.
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To identify environmental risks, relevant qualifications and
accreditations, such as test reports under the Restriction of
Hazardous Substances (“ROHS") and safety testing reports, are
taken into account. To ensure suppliers’ environmental quality,
on-site product assessments are conducted by our designated
committee, which is comprised of the representatives from the
Group’s procurement and quality assurance department and
engineers in PCBs business segment. Moreover, we hand out
Environmental Management Audit Questionnaire to suppliers
annually to assess the environmental management system. Only
after suppliers fulfil our requirements and pass the evaluation
procedures can they be included in our “Qualified Vendor List”.
In addition, they are required to sign a declaration and pledge to
against the use of materials subjected to environmental control
before signing cooperating agreements.

For existing suppliers, regular performance reviews are
conducted, assessing their product quality, service performance,
material safety, process monitoring and environmental
performance. Their place of origin is also taken into account
to prevent unethical purchase. Suppliers who fail to meet the
standards should implement corrective actions promptly, and we
will discontinue the business cooperation if they cannot pass our
evaluation consecutively. Besides, all our suppliers should follow
the requirements under the Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition ("EICC") code of conduct in their operation to ensure
the compliance of the products and services with the principle
of sustainable development and avoid compromising the quality
and safety of the Group's products.
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Services/Product Excellence

Manufacture of PCB with supreme quality is our utmost
dedication. We place strong emphasis on securing product
superiority in every single stage, from engaging suppliers and
clients, business operation, after-sales services, to driving
customer satisfaction. We strictly abide by the relevant
national laws and regulations regarding product quality,
safety management and customer privacy, including the
Product Quality Law of the PRC and the Law of the PRC on
the Protection of the Rights and Interests of Consumers. We
have established a QMS which is certified with international
standards of ISO 9001, IATF 16949 and ISO 138475. These
standards prescribe our requirements on enhancement of
customers’ experience, defect prevention, product innovation
and continual improvement of our QMS.

In terms of product quality and safety, the Group has formulated
and implemented a series of quality assurance management
standards and procedures, including Product Monitoring and
Measurement Control Procedure, Non-conforming Product
Control Procedure, Corrective and Preventive Measures Control
Procedure, Product Safety Control Procedure. Apart from regular
inspection of the effectiveness of the QMS, we also conduct
compliance check of every product prior to final packaging and
delivery to ensure the fulfilment beyond both the standards
of the products specifications and customers’ requirements.
Besides, we have obtained the Underwriter Laboratories
certification for raw materials such as laminates and solder
masks, and all our products are certified by the China Quality
Certifications (“CQC") Centre so that our product quality is
guaranteed and are safe to use. Top talents and advanced
equipment are employed for our product reliability. More details
can be found in the following website:

http://www.topsearch.com.hk/en/Reliability.htm
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While putting effort into product innovation, the Group places
great importance on the protection of intellectual property
rights and strictly monitors the use of patents and technologies
to prevent infringement of intellectual property rights. The
requirement and restrictions on the registration, maintenance,
and protection of intellectual property are listed in the
agreement with employees and suppliers and the Group will
pursue legal actions and seek compensation for damages to
intellectual property from those who violate the agreement.

With the dedication to become Asia’s leading professional asset
manager which bridges China and overseas markets, we always
stay thirsty and innovative to provide professional services that
exceeds market standards. The Group endeavours to keep
inventing and revamping our capital management plans and
financial products to fulfil our clients’ ever-changing demands
timely, including enhancing our service standard and expanding
its coverage. Our professional team, which is comprised of
a group of experts in fund management, private equity and
discretionary asset management, offers tailored solutions
and advisory for proper and sustainable investment and asset
management. We have Personal Account Trading Rules in place
to govern activities related to investment trading.

Besides, the Group keeps abreast of the latest information of
the regulatory authorities and related financial institutions for
our investment and asset management strategies so that our
services are complied with relevant local laws and regulations
and potentially generate optimum financial return.

During the reporting period, there was no material breach of
relevant laws and regulations pertaining to health and safety,
advertising, and labelling matters relating to products and
services provided.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HBREBARS

REARNHERNRE  NERSEERMH
ERRE TERBETEEN RERMAER > X
B RIBRI B - BEB R MBI LAV
FE A HE M AR REN S ERNRE
R BRE > MAE B RERHRE RBUEART
B W REENHERIBR

BB ENREZEXEELE EE
PEEBIINTIH 2R M—EBKEIFH U
RUHBATSREZEERS - AEETEHS
NERKREERE BB REMER UK
RimE R P RFEREZFR SREARSR
ERBAEBER -AEBEZEXEBHR -]
EcEE - AEEEKREREEEREMN H
RHE S E S Z BERTT 5 R 25 LUF H IE
RAFBZREREEEE -RMEEN A
ANRPRRZZRA > UREEKRERFZARZ
mEe

Woh A EEA RS EREE SR ER RS
ERERENSREE BHEL EALE
CRENAEMN SRR ERREREE
LB MO

REREHRE > AEBREHZ ER KRG E
BEENARBRERZE BERREFEEZ
HRRERBOER

SPSRESE MNZREESHEAT 307



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE~ 2 AEARS

Product Innovation

The Group also puts strong focus on product innovation so as
to offer the state-of-the-art products and services. The Group
continues to invest in its research and development to pursue
technical excellence and deliver next generation solutions for
meeting our customers’ future demands and enhance cost-
efficiency. During the reporting period, the Group has jointly
collaborated and conduct research projects with two of the
top universities in the region — The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Tsinghua University, for improving its technical
competencies and bringing forth innovative ideas. More details
can be found in the following website:

http://www.topsearch.com.hk/en/Research_Development.htm

Customer Satisfaction

The Group believes customer satisfaction paves the way
to its business growth thus values their opinions most. We
have Customer Service Procedure in place to maintain an
efficient communication with our customers.
feedback is annually collected and analysed by means of
customer satisfaction survey on product return rate, customers’
complaints, and delivery lead-time. The Group will identify
the area of improvement and formulate corresponding action
plans in accordance to the survey result. Our continuous
improvement on product and service quality is therefore highly
driven by our customers’ feedback. The effectiveness of the
implemented measures are also regularly accessed by the quality
assurance department. In addition, we have published thorough
procedures on handling customer complaints. Prompt actions
will be taken to investigate the cases and respond to clients.
We will carry out remedial action plans where necessary and
the root cause will be analysed to prevent similar cases from
reoccurrence to build up customer’s confidence and keep up
reputation. During the reporting period, there were no products
sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons,
and no customer complaint was received.

Customers’
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Confidentiality and Privacy

The Group safeguards confidentiality throughout the operations
in all our business operation. We have formulated the Corporate
Management Manual and Information and Data Confidentiality
Regulation to guide our departments and staff at all levels to
deal with confidential and sensitive information (e.g. employee
personal data, corporate information, inside information,
trade secrets, customer’s product designs and technologies,
intellectual properties etc.). The Group is committed to building
mutual trust with our customers at all times. Understanding how
indispensable privacy means to our clients, we always identify
it as an issue of critical concern. All our staff are required to
follow general provision of confidential information protection
stipulated in the Staff Handbook. Employees are prohibited from
copying, transferring and disclosing the restricted information
without prior consent from the management or customers. In
addition, all employees and suppliers are demanded to sign
the nondisclosure agreement before entering into contracts.
Violation of the company policy is subject to dismissal or other
disciplinary actions.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
material non-compliance of applicable laws and regulations
relating to privacy matters, including Securities and Futures
Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

Protecting the Environment

The Group values and advocates sustainable development,
and recognizes our obligation in establishing an effective
environmental management system for environmental
protection, especially in the manufacturing segment. We seek
every opportunity to improve the efficiency of our operation by
reducing the consumption of energy and raw materials and have
formulated a comprehensive set of environmental policies and
supporting procedures covering greenhouse gas emissions and
resource usage.

The Group complies with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the PRC, Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Emergency
Response Law of the PRC, Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311) of Hong Kong and Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.
354) of Hong Kong. During the reporting period, the Group
was not aware of any material violations regarding relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HBREBARS

REKRLE
FEBRERAAECEXEBNEBAZEBRER
ZERRE -ZMEHEEEXEEFM K
MER R BB FRERG > SEPIRFTA &5
ZEITRERBRBRAELN NEENEASE
FEEEN RABHER - RENE -BRNE
m Rt R B M AR M EEE) RS o &
EE-BERNEZEREIEFE - RMBBANLE
HERPMEAHHR H—ERERSERRH
AEE -AEBEMAETIHARETETI FMA
SIRREREENZ —REX - BENKREE
BEENERZ2EEAET BLEER -BBK
REZREIEL L FREREERHEFR
SIUGHAIARERE RZ ERATBRA
W RN AR EMCEED ©

RERSHE 2&EETELRERLEREEZ
BRIEBIFOER (BEESFRAE R LU E
ANER B 7)) ZERNERTERER

IRIGIRE

FEEERKEERFEERE WHEILHMN
BUGREBRIREZAMRREERKPZE T
RPVEB R SRR R EHEFE > UE R
SEMNERZEE TERE-—EE2ERFEBR
REEREF ERHEERERBHIRKE RS
FH o

FEEBTIARBNIREERER  SFE
FAERRPERBREE PEARSRP G
R~ RBIKS R EE 7 ~ P E & RS BE W) 5 AR IR
HBRhRE S PEIREFHEREE BB EME
BSNEERSREGRA REBEFF354%
BYERERD - HREHE ~EBERLEREH
RRERHERER B

SPSRESE MNZREESHEAT 309



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE~ 2 AEARS

For the manufacturing business, the Group has established
an environmental management system (“EMS”) which is
certified by 1SO14001:2015 to identify, manage and mitigate
the environmental risks of the manufacturing process. We
have also set up the Environmental Committee to supervise
and prompt the continuous improvement of the system. The
committee monitors the progress of environmental objectives,
reviews environmental risks, and evaluates the EMS regularly. It
is also responsible for identifying national and local government
emission standards and formulating the Group’s environmental
protection strategy accordingly. During the reporting period, the
Group continued to make effort in fulfilling our environmental
conservation objectives.

Environmental

MBESEEEMs  AEEEH CE
1ISO14001:201558:8 Z IRIZEEEHIE (TEMS J) »
D@ BB ABENEEEELEZIRIER
o RMITEMIL TBESZES 2 UEERE
FERAFE N E - ZTETEBERIEEENE
B BT IRIE AT E R EEMS - Hra s
Fie T8 B 3R R L 75 B A B9 BE AR 28 » 6 38 L 1
REBEWIRFPRB RSB FEBEES
HERBREE-

Conservation Objectives

REBR

e Optimise resources efficiency and reduce wastage
e Reuse and recycle all valuable materials

e Procure green raw materials

e Comply fully with relevant emissions laws and regulations

Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The major air pollutant emission of the Group is from the
manufacturing of PCB, which generates air pollutants such as
volatile organic compounds, ammonia and acidic/alkaline mist.
To manage air pollutant emissions from the manufacturing
of PCB, gas purification towers, such as wet scrubbers and
acidic/alkaline degassing chambers are installed to absorb the
organic particulates and neutralise the mist. To standardise the
operation and inspection of the purification towers, the Group
has established the Air Emission Control Operational Procedure,
detailing the frequency for monitoring and instruction for
maintenance. During the reporting period, a third-party
institution has assessed the concentration of air pollutants for
the manufacturing of PCB and no violation of the Emission
Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001) has been detected.
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Also, a small amount of air pollutants are generated from
vehicle usage for the Group’s daily operation. To reduce the
air pollutants from vehicles, the Group regularly maintains and
inspects the vehicles.

The Group generates greenhouse gas directly from the
combustion of fuels in vehicles and during cooking in the
canteen, and indirectly from electricity consumption, water
consumption and paper waste discarded at landfills. To reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, the Group has adopted a number
of measures to reduce resources consumption and wastage as
mentioned in Resource Management.

Wastewater Discharge

The major wastewater discharge of the Group is from the
manufacturing process of PCBs, which consists of a high
concentration of metal ions, acids/alkaline and organic
substances. The wastewater is treated by our in-house
wastewater treatment facilities with processes such as pH
adjustment, coagulation and acid hydrolysis before reuse or
discharge. The Group has established the Wastewater Treatment
Operational Procedure to regulate the operation and inspection
of the wastewater treatment facilities. During the reporting
period, the Group has assigned a third-party institution to
conduct routine tests on effluent to ensure the fulfilment of
national regulatory standards, including the Discharge Standard
of Water Pollutants for Electroplating (DB44/1597-2015).
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Waste Management

The Group generates both hazardous waste and non-hazardous
waste from its operation. The manufacturing business generates
several types of hazardous wastes such as copper-containing
sludge and acidic/alkaline waste, while other business segments
generate a very small amount of hazardous waste, such as toner
cartridges, from its daily operation. Non-hazardous waste of
the Group includes waste paper, metal, plastic and daily office
garbage.

Recognising the potential repercussion these waste could
have on the environment as well as our worker safety without
proper handling, the Group has established the Guidelines for
Waste Handling to effectively process the hazardous and non-
hazardous waste generated from the manufacturing business
as classified by the Directory of National Hazardous Wastes of
the PRC. Hazardous waste is classified by its properties, stored
in proper containers with appropriate labels and is transferred
to and handled by qualified waste collection companies. For the
manufacturing business, non-hazardous waste is collected by
recyclable or non-recyclable categories and is then recycled or
collected by local waste treatment companies. Toner cartridges
used in offices are recycled while the general waste is usually
handled by the property management.

During the reporting period, the Group has completed the
construction of a sludge dehumidification facility for the
manufacturing business, which was designed to reduce the
water concentration of the sludge from 80% to 30%. As a
result, the amount of waste could be greatly reduced.
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Noise Management

The Group understands the noise we generate during the
manufacturing process may pose disturbance to nearby
residents, we have implemented sufficient noise control
measures for noise and vibration arising from the operation of
the plant. All the facilities and equipment that produce loud
noise level are surrounded by sound-absorbing materials and
are installed with enclosures or erected barriers so as to abide
by the applicable national laws and provincial regulations
such as the Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprise Noise
at Boundary (GB 12348-2008). The Group has hired third-
party professional companies to conduct regular inspections to
maintain the effectiveness of the measures.

Resources Management

Being one of the leading manufacturer of PCB, the Group
keeps exploring opportunities to save resources during business
operation. Energy, water, paper and packaging materials are the
main types of resources consumed by the Group, among which
electricity constitutes the biggest part of energy consumption,
in addition to a small amount of fuels used for vehicles. The
Group follows the 3R principles (i.e. reduce, reuse and recycle)
and monitors the use of electricity, water, paper and packaging
materials, thus effectively control the use of resources.
Procurement is made based on the stock and future demand
analysis to avoid over-ordering and unnecessary resource
consumption. The Group reuses resources, including treated
wastewater, and recycles non-hazardous waste to maximise
resource efficiency. During the reporting period, there was no
issue with sourcing water fit for the purpose of the operation of
the Group.
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To raise awareness of its employees on environmental protection ZTIRSEIMNBRFEREMILEEI3RIFRL &
and promotes the 3R principles, the Group posts signs in SEEEERMERMAERIESE R~ LWIREET
conspicuous and relevant locations to remind its employees to EINE R - HMATEETIFMAT HEEKRE
save resources. We have also listed in the Employee Handbook #X3EHE > Wt WS XEFKEH EL B R AEIES >
measures for energy and paper saving and established a Green B2 :

Office Guideline for the manufacturing business as follows:

Electricity Paper
Bh K i
e Procure equipment that is e Carry out regular inspection e Promote a platform for
energy saving or with greater and faucet leakage tests internal information circulation
energy efficiency TEHIEKBERETIRR K2R HITHAPERSERZE
RN AEEEE R T Al Fa
& e Keep the faucets off when e Encourage the use of recycled
e Set all the electrical appliances they are not in use paper and double sided
to energy saving mode and KEEBE A ERARSNERE printing
switch off when they are not el HEFRABERKEmITHN
in use ¢ Place recycle box to collect
FiE BasR EAMEERIN&E waste paper
AR EANE THE (O] W FE DAL B BE AR

Maintain the office
temperature at 23-25°C
WA REMERFEK23E2E
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group stays proactive in managing emerging environmental
risks and advancing our performance in pursuit of long-
term and sustainable operation. We fulfil our sustainable
commitment by prudent selection of manufacturing materials
for our manufacturing business. We follow the EU Restriction of
Hazardous Substances to restrict the use of hazardous materials,
such as lead, mercury, and cadmium for our production cycle.
Also, through adopting various surface finishing techniques,
such as Organic Solderability Preservative, Electroless Nickel
Immersion Gold and Immersion Silver, our products are lead-
free and halogen-free, which produces minimum impacts to the
environment.

During the reporting period, the Group has completed the
construction of a facility to collect and reuse the copper
and nickel metal from wastewater generated from the
manufacturing of PCB. To ensure the facility does not produce
negative impacts to the environment, an environmental impact
assessment was conducted prior to construction and mitigation
measures such as spray absorption purification process has been
adopted.

The Group also lays emphasis on handling environmental
emergencies by setting the Environmental Emergency Response
Plan for the manufacturing business. The Group has identified
man-made and natural sources of workplace environmental
hazard and developed the emergency response plans
respectively, covering the excessive discharge of wastewater
from wastewater treatment facilities, accidental emissions of
exhaust gases, spillage and leachate of sludge, fire disaster and
the leakage of hazardous chemicals, liquids and heavy metals.
To ensure our workers are familiar with the precautionary
emergency response and reporting channels
stipulated in the plan, we have provided training and organised

measures,

emergency drills during the reporting period.
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Climate Change

Climate change has attracted widespread international
attention and the risks associated may have negative impacts
on the Group’s businesses. We have thereby identified
different climate-related physical risks such as the increase in
extreme weather events and changes in precipitation patterns
which could pose threats to the Group’s environmental and
even financial performance. Climate change may also pose
transitional risks to the Group such as shifts in consumer
preferences. Besides, the Group’s operational cost may increase
because of the increased environmental reporting obligation
and the strengthened specifications for existing products and
services.

The Group will keep reviewing local policies and regulatory
updates to identify potential climate-related risks and has
developed an environmental risk inventory based on the
possibility and impact of the identified risks. Safety warning
system and special working arrangements are put in place to
ensure the safety of employees and on-site workers during
extreme weather conditions or events.

Engaging the Community

The Group attaches great importance to the interaction with the
wider community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility. In
light of community investment, the Group donated RMB 100,000
to Shaoguan Charity Federation so as to alleviate poverty and
make contribution to the pandemic control during the reporting
period. Moreover, the Group believes only if we treasure natural
materials wholeheartedly can we educate our community
to protect the environment. We understand environmental
protection is of everyone responsibility thus we will seize
the chances to organise more meaningful events relating to
environment for the public in the future.
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Social Performance

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R E
HERHK

RIE - HEREARS

2020’
—E-TF

Employment

E1%

Number of Employees

BEARK

252

By Age Group

RERHEHNE S
Below 30
305 AT
30 to 50
305% E505%
Over 50
50m% A £

92

158

By Gender
gk EIba
Female
7
Male
B

97

155

By Geographical Region
it & & 5

Hong Kong

BB

PRC

FRE

16

236

By Employment Type
BEEERE S
Full-time
g
Part-time

B

252

Average Hours of Training per Employees and Percentage (%) of Employees Trained 8.43(94)

5% F 88 FIEl R B R R EE B E 2 EE(%)
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BB HERELARS

2020’
—EoEg

—_——=7

By Gender
HIERE 52
Female
pegli
Male
B

8.44(94)

8.42(94)

Distribution of Suppliers

g™ 5

Number of Key Suppliers

FTEHEHHRE

13

By Geographical Region

it & 8 5
Guangdong
&R
Jiangsu
JLER
Anhui
ZH
Jiangxi
PN}
Shandong
LLIER
Zhejiang
L

Note:

1. Figures of social performance are disclosed from FY2020 onwards.
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Environmental Performance IRIBEN
Unit 2020 2019
B —ECEH —E—hE

Water pollutants from manufacturing of PCB

BUSENRI AR B AR B9 2K 55 224

Chemical oxygen demand’ Tonne 51.13 -
ot ire
Ammonia nitrogen’ Tonne 3.01 -
2R/ Mg
Total nitrogen’ Tonne 15.27 -
ARES g

Air pollutants from manufacturing of PCB

BUSENRI AR B ARBIZE RIS HRY

Nitrogen oxides Tonne 4.94 4.53
aa1t g
Sulphuric acid mist Tonne 10.28 9.24
fii L 58 i
Ammonia Tonne 18.73 17.63
= Mg
VOCs Tonne 0.25 0.22
BEMEEEY g
Particulate matter’ Tonne 5.01 -
EEpRY/L WA

Air pollutants from vehicle usage’

ERSENZER DR

Nitrogen oxides Kg 400.68 -
EaE=K( w7 Ny
Sulfur dioxide Kg 0.85 -
—&|1bh N
Particulate matter Kg 32.67 -
FERY) NN
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Unit
B

Non-hazardous Waste’

mEBEY
Total Tonne 570.14 687.64
“ast Mg
Waste paper Tonne 142.54 118.11
£3i8 it
Waste metals Tonne 420.66 558.81
BE& B WA
Waste plastic Tonne 6.95 10.72
BEEERL 0
Intensity? Tonne per 0.09 0.12
1000ft? PU*
BnE Mg, 1,000 75 R
FEEA
Hazardous Waste®
BEEY
Total Tonne 7,393.89 6,881.39
4@t M
Copper-containing sludge Tonne 2,266.86 2,445.50
=35k 7
Acidic waste” Tonne 2,663.02 1,708.44
e 14 BE Y g
Alkaline waste? Tonne 1,424.24 1,475.15
4 EEe 5
PCB waste Tonne 563.71 518.66
EN R4 B8 AR BE 4D g
Tin-containing wastewater Tonne 329.79 385.46
= 57 g K MR
Others® Tonne 146.28 348.18
HAh? Mg
Intensity” Tonne per 1.16 1.15
1000ft? PU
wE Mg, 1,000 75 R
FEEA
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Environmental, Social and Governance
BB

Unit 2020 2019
B —E_ZF —E-hE
Total Energy Use MWh 75,791.08 67,168.52
REREER4E JKELBF
Direct Energy Use’®
BEESERERE"
Mobile Combustion Sources MWh 530.40 643.30
TREN R 5 K E B
Stationary Combustion Sources MWh 98.68 121.61
& T TR IR IR 5 JKELBF
Indirect Energy Use
B RERAE
Electricity MWh 75,162.00 66,403.61
=5 KB B

Manufacturing Business? MWh per 11.89 11.21
1000ft? PU
RS E BB,
1,000 75 R
FEEM
HK Businesses MWh per
full-time
employee
BEBER KEE, 4
HES

11.33 11.27

Total m3 1,850,831.00 1,730,340.00
“ast K
Intensity” m3 per 290.94 289.74
1000ft? PU
wE 373K 1,000F
FHREEBN
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Unit 2020 2019
Bf —E-%F —E-hEF
Total Tonne 131.64 121.26
“ast U]
Intensity? Tonne per 0.02 0.02
1000ft? PU
BE ma,
1,000 5 R
FEEM

Total tCOze 41,460.54 57,143.01
“ast W _EikEE
Direct Emission (Scope 1)? tCOze 1,122.72 1,570.95
BEEHR (&BE—) WB—EtIRES
Indirect Emission (Scope 2)™ tCO2e 39,633.06 55,557.96
BEHN (BE) Wi _EtHRES
Other Indirect Emission (Scope 3)’® tCOa2e 704.76 14.10
HthEEgn (@E=) » W _EikEE

Manufacturing Business? tCO2e per 6.50 9.55
1000ft? PU
RIS EH Wit ES
/1,000 75 R
FEBN
HK Businesses tCO2 per 5.14 5.32
full-time
employee
BEBER Wit ES
S B2 HEE
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Note:

The figure is disclosed from 2020 onwards.

Figures of air pollutants from vehicle usage are disclosed from
2020 onwards. The emission factors used are from Appendix 2
“Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (“Appendix 2”) and the guidelines on
greenhouse gas emission accounting and reporting provided by
the National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") of
the PRC.

The Group also generates a very small amount of general office
waste during operation which is considered insignificant and is
managed by the property management company, hence no data is
available.

The intensity of 2019 is restated from per 1000m? PU to per
1000ft? PU for consistency.

1000ft2 PU is the production unit which implies 1,000 square feet
of product produced.

The Group also generates a very small amount of waste toner
cartridges from offices during operation which are considered
insignificant and are collected by the corresponding suppliers,
hence no data is available.

Acidic waste includes acidic copper-containing waste liquor and
acidic waste etchant.

Alkaline waste includes alkaline waste etchant.

Others include the other hazardous waste generated from the
production of PCBs, including waste laboratory analytical fluid,
developer solution, nickel-containing wastewater, gold-containing
wastewater, screenwash water, ink and ink cans, ion exchange
resin, film and photosensitive film, filter wool and activated
carbon.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of unleaded petrol
and diesel oil consumption to energy units are in reference to CDP
Technical note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh.

The volume of water use covers the manufacturing business only.
There is no separate water bill for the Hong Kong office as it is
included in the property management fee.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is based on
Appendix 2 and the Guidelines to Account for and Report
on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong
published by EPD and EMSD. The Group inventory includes carbon
dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. For ease of reading and
understanding, the greenhouse gas emissions data is presented in
tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2e).

Scope 1 covers the emissions from stationary combustion sources,
mobile combustion sources, fugitive emissions from the use of
refrigerants and removals from tree planting. The emission factors
used are from Appendix 2 and the guidelines on greenhouse gas
emission accounting and reporting provided by the NDRC.

Scope 2 covers the emissions from purchased electricity from
power companies. The calculation is based on the average carbon
dioxide emission factor of China regional power grid provided by
the NDRC and the emission factor provided by The HongKong
Electric Co., Limited.

Scope 3 covers the emissions from water consumption and paper
waste disposal in 2020, and is calculated based on Appendix 2.
Scope 3 of 2019 covers the emissions only from business travel of
employees, which is not applicable in 2020 due to the outbreak
of COVID-19.

The intensity of 2019 is calculated based on the sum of Scope 1
and 2 emissions only, while that of 2020 covers all Scope 1, 2 and
3.

Renco Holdings Group Limited Annual Report 2020

12.

BEREBHARDREME - RIRRELKE
TRERRNTEBREY @EE-ETEHAH
B RERBHFMRBFNZENRSIE
SUstE - AERENFERE SR Btk
SEDR-RZNHEBERER REREHNR
HEUE_ACHREERY]-

HE—RERE EEMER  BERERBE
T e £ PR 5 7R 9 2 B B TR LA B A A BY R0 B ©
FRERPEMEAFR B - RERENER
HEBEREBRZE S ZHREIER -

HE_REREMENRRDBEENR
AR % B 2R 3% DR = 4R 1 BY 1 [ (& 1 B A P 1T
“REHHRAFREBERARATREM
BBEREF 5t E o

“ETEFNEE-RERBEKERER
BRENHB LREMNGE _GF8E - —T—N4&F
NHEE=ENEREEEBMBEERNBIN H
EHERERREMN S _ZFFEM-

TE-AFHNEEERBEE R ZHNHER
BB E M_ B _EEMNEERERE
— ZR=o



[ A

RENCO HOLDINGS
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